
WORTHINGTON CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING  

7:00 P.M. - MONDAY, JUNE 8, 2020 

FIRE HALL  

A. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

B. INTRODUCTIONS AND OPENING REMARKS

C. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES AND CLOSURE

1. Additions/Changes

2. Closure

D. PUBLIC HEARING - FOR GLENWOOD HEIGHTS SECOND ADDITION
STREET, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, AND WATER
IMPROVEMENTS - ENGINEERING  CASE ITEM 1 (BLUE)

1.  Open Hearing
2. Hearing Presentation
3. Testimony
4. Close Hearing
5. Action on Hearing

E. PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION SUPPORTING MINNESOTA
INVESTMENT FUND APPLICATION (SWIFT PORK COMPANY) -
COMMUNITY EC./DEVELOPMENT CASE ITEM 1 (GRAY)

1.  Open Hearing
2. Hearing Presentation
3. Testimony
4. Close Hearing
5. Action on Hearing

F. CONSENT AGENDA

1. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES (WHITE)

a. City Council Minutes of May 26, 2020



Worthington City Council Agenda
June 8, 2020
Page 2

2. MINUTES OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (PINK)

a. Water & Light Commission Minutes May 18, 2020
b. Economic Development Authority Minutes May 26, 2020
c. Planning Commission Minutes May 5, 2020
d. YMCA Board of Directors Minutes April 27, 2020
e. YMCA Board of Directors Minutes March 20, 2020
f. Convention & Visitors Bureau Board of Directors Minutes January

29, 2020

3. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS - ENGINEERING MEMO (BLUE)

Case Item(s)

1. Terminate Agreement with Southwest Minnesota Fishing Club

4. BILLS PAYABLE (WHITE)

PLEASE NOTE: All utility expenditures are listed as 601, 602, and 604,
and are approved by the Water and Light Commission

G. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS - ADMINISTRATION (WHITE)

Case Item(s)

1. Memorial Auditorium Performing Arts Center - ISD 518 Rental
Agreement

2. Professional Services Agreement - Rehabilitation of Lake Okabena Outlet
Pipes

H. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS - PUBLIC WORKS (GREEN)

Case Item(s)

1. Adopt Resolutions Accepting Park Bench Donations

2. Electric Boat Rental Discussion

3. Review Slater and Ludlow Parking Area Project Bids and Award of
Contract



Worthington City Council Agenda
June 8, 2020
Page 3

I. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS - ENGINEERING (BLUE)

Case Item(s)

2. Petitions for Improvements and Professional Services Contract

3. Adoption of ADA Transition Plan for Public Rights-of-Way

J. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS - COMMUNITY EC./DEVELOPMENT
(GRAY

Case Item(s)

2. Resolution Supporting Job Creation Fund Application (Swift Pork
Company)

3. Preliminary Plat - Glenwood Heights Second Addition (City of
Worthington)

K. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Mayor Kuhle
2. Council Member Janssen
3. Council Member Oberloh
4. Council Member Cummings
5. Council Member Ernst
6. Council Member Harmon

L. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT

M. ADJOURNMENT

*** Please Contact Mindy Eggers, City Clerk (507) 372-8621 for
information to attend the conference call for the City Council Meeting on

Monday, June 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.***



WORTHINGTON CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING, MAY 26, 2020

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. via conference call by Mayor Mike Kuhle with the
following Council Members present: Chad Cummings, Amy Ernst, Alan Oberloh, Larry Janssen,
Mike Harmon.

Staff present: Steve Robinson, City Administrator; Jason Brisson, Assistant City Administrator/
Economic Development Director; Todd Wietzema, Director of Public Works; Dwayne Haffield,
Director of Engineering; Mindy Eggers, City Clerk.  
 
Others present: Justine Wettschreck, Radio Works, Ryan McGaughey, Kelly Reeves, Chris
Kielblock.  

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

AGENDA CLOSED / APPROVED

Mayor Kuhle noted there were two additions to the agenda under Administration and one item to be
removed under Community/Ec. Development.  Administration items  F. 3. Presentation by Dr. Steve
Dudley - Community Wide Coronavirus Antibody Testing and F.4. Expanding Outdoor Service at
Bars and Restaurants will be added.  Community/Ec. Development Item I. 1. Prairie View Golf
Course Topographic Survey Proposal will be removed.  A motion was made by Council Member
Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Cummings and unanimously carried to approve the agenda
with the additions of F.3.  Presentation by Dr. Steve Dudley - Community Wide Coronavirus
Antibody Testing and F.4. Expanding Outdoor Service at Bars and Restaurants and the removal of
I.1. Prairie View Golf Course Topographic Survey Proposal by a roll call vote: Ayes: Cummings,
Ernst, Janssen, Harmon, Oberloh. Nays: None.  Motion passed. 

PUBLIC MEETING - STORM WATER PREVENTION PLAN

Pursuant to published notice, this was the time and date set for a public meeting regarding the City's
Storm Water Pollution Prevention plan.

A motion was made by Larry Janssen, seconded by Council Member Oberloh and unanimously
carried to open the public meeting by roll call vote.  Ayes: Janssen, Harmon, Cummings, Ernst,
Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

Dwayne Haffield, Director of Engineering, provided an overview of the NPDES program and a
review of the City's required Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.  The City is regulated under
Phase II of the federal program to reduce pollution from Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems
(MS4s).  Regulated cities need to be covered under a statewide NPDES permit, which requires the
City to develop a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and then to implement it.  The Plan
includes the following six mandatory minimum control measures:

C Public Education and Outreach



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 2

C Public Involvement and Participation
C Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
C Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control
C Post-Construction Storm Water Management
C Pollution Prevention / Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations

Mr. Haffield said the City conducts an annual public meeting to allow public comment on our plan, 
which satisfies the Public Involvement and Participation control measure.  A copy of the SWPPP,
in the form of the application for NPDES permit coverage, is available for review at the office of the
City Engineer and on the City's website. 

A motion was made by Council Member Cummings, seconded by Council Member Ernst and
unanimously carried to close the public meeting by roll call vote.  Ayes: Janssen, Harmon, Ernst,
Cummings, Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

Following the overview and Council comments, Mayor Kuhle asked if there was anyone on the
conference call who wished to offer comment on the plan.  No comments were received.

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVED

Council Member Oberloh stated that he has a concern regarding the minutes of the Prairie Justice
Operations Committee from January 20, 2020.  He said according to the minutes there is a verbal
agreement regarding the construction of a building for impounded cars in the county.  Council
Member Cummings stated there was recent conversation regarding replacing the impound building
that had originally been brought up 2-3 years ago.  He said there is nothing formal decided as it’s in
the early stages of discussion.  

The motion was made by Council Member Harmon, seconded by Council Member Janssen and
unanimously carried to approve the consent agenda as presented by roll call vote:  Ayes: Cummings,
Ernst, Janssen, Harmon, Oberloh. Nays: None.   Motion passed.  

C City Council Minutes of Regular Meeting of May 11, 2020 
C Local Board of Appeal/Equalization Minutes of April 30, 2020
C Prairie Justice Center Operations Committee Minutes of January 20, 2020
C Municipal Liquor Store Income Statement for the Period of January 1, 2020 through April

30, 2020
C Private Dock Applications approved
C Bills payable and totaling $1,488,484.83 be ordered paid 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05-28 ADOPTED TO PRORATE 2020-2021 CITY ISSUED
LIQUOR LICENSES



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 3

Steve Robinson, City Administrator, stated Governor Tim Walz ordered the closure of bars and
restaurants on March 16, 2020 through Executive Order 20-04. The closure continues as of this
meeting. The closure of these small establishments has had a devastating impact on the professional
and personal lives on the affected business owners.

Mr. Robinson said as a show of goodwill, staff is recommending that  all City-issued liquor licenses
for the July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 period be reduced a prorated amount equal to three months.
There are currently 14 businesses that have liquor licenses issued through the City. The reduction
in license fees is estimated to be $7,650.00.

A motion was made by Council Member Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Cummings and
unanimously carried to adopt a resolution approving three month liquor license fee credits by a roll
call vote.  Ayes: Cummings, Janssen, Ernst, Harmon, Oberloh.  Nays:  None.  Motion passed.  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05-28

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THREE MONTH LIQUOR LICENSE FEE CREDITS

(Refer to Resolution File for complete copy of Resolution)

NOMINATING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION FOR COMMITTEE
APPOINTMENT APPROVED

The Nominating Committee met on March 9, 2020 and are making the following recommendations
for committee appointments:

Housing & Redevelopment Authority Appoint Mike Johnson to fill the unexpired term of
Lyle Ten Haken who is resigning effective May 31,
2020, term to expire October 31, 2023

The motion was made by Council Member Harmon, seconded by Council Member Janssen and
unanimously carried to approve the appointment as recommended by the Nominating Committee by
a roll call vote.  Ayes: Cummings, Harmon, Ernst, Oberloh.  Nays: Janssen.  Motion passed.  

HEARD PRESENTATION BY DR. STEVE DUDLEY - COMMUNITY WIDE
CORONAVIRUS ANTIBODY TESTING

Dr. Steve Dudley gave a presentation for testing the community of Worthington for COVID 19
antibodies.  He explained  Worthington has approximately 12% of the positive cases of COVID19
within the State of Minnesota.  

He said that testing the entire community is an excellent opportunity to add to the epidemiological



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 4

data for the US population for identification of percentage of positive individuals.  Finding out the
percentage of those antibody positive individuals that also tested positive with the PCR test 2 weeks
prior when many JBS employees and local population were tested. This would help to validate
information on the antibody test in confirmed PCR positive people and would also give additional
information for people as they venture back to jobs and opening the economy.  

Mr. Dudley explained that  JBS in Worthington is a substantial employer. By working with their
management team, HR, and their union this information will assist in the dialog of exposure and
education of workers.  If there is a higher than expected exposure rate it would change the dialog
within the plant, the community as well as the state and nation.   This epidemiologic data would help
in the discussion on case fatality rates as well as future predictions of relapse and exposure issues.

He said multiple health care partners can work with the state of Minnesota and the University of
Minnesota to analyze this data. Correlations looking to compare households with and without
positives, employer status within our community, and a host of other epidemiological information
regarding spread of SARS-COV-2.  There are many reasons to push this in Worthington and include
that we are a small population that could be inexpensively tested. With local leadership and the
passion that this issue has developed we would target 80% of the population for participation.

Mr. Dudley noted  to move forward with the testing that the MN Department of Health would have
to say yes.  

Council thanked Mr. Dudley for his informative presentation.  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05-29 APPROVED EXPANDING OUTDOOR SERVICE AT BARS
AND RESTAURANTS 

Jason Brisson, Assistant City Administrator/Director of Economic Development,  stated on May 20,
Governor Walz announced that bars and restaurants may serve sit-down customers starting June 1,
but that seating will be restricted to outdoors. Mr. Brisson explained the City recently updated its
Ordinances to permit outdoor seating areas on private property. The City also recently update its
Ordinances to permit limited obstructions in the public right of way intended to allow some outdoor
seating and display of merchandise.

Mr. Brisson said City staff has reviewed the League of Minnesota Cities' Guidance for Cities on
Expanding Outdoor Service at Bars and Restaurants. According to the League's advice, cities may
issue permits administratively to allow alcohol to be served at outdoor seating areas in public
right-of-way if the following conditions are met: 

• The retailer must provide the city with proof that their liquor liability insurance
covers alcohol sales in any expanded outdoor spaces which, under Minnesota law,
must be "compact and contiguous" to the main structure.



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 5

• The city will need to approve a map of expanded service areas.
• Once approved, the city must send a copy of the map to the Department of Public

Safety (DPS) Alcohol and Gambling Enforcement Division.  

Mr. Brisson said since the agenda was issued Alcohol & Gambling will not be requiring a copy of
the map as previously stated.  With that, Section 3. Procedure Item 3.02 can be removed from the
resolution.  

Council Member Oberloh stated that under 3.01 he thinks it should say the City Clerk shall issue a
permit; not may issue a permit.  Council Member Harmon stated that his opinion is that “may issue
a permit” means once the City Clerk receives all the information that is needed she can get the permit
issued.  Steve Robinson, City Administrator, stated the City Clerk is authorized to issue the permits. 

Council Member Janssen asked how long this temporary permit would be good for.  Council
Member Oberloh stated he would think until at least October.  Council Member Cummings stated
that he would not put an end date on it just in case something would change.  

A motion was made by Council Member Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Cummings and
unanimously carried to adopt the Resolution Enabling Expansion of Outdoor Service at Bars and
Restaurants removing 3.02 under Section 3 by a roll call vote: Ayes: Cummings, Ernst, Janssen,
Oberloh, Harmon.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05-20

RESOLUTION ENABLING EXPANSION OF OUTDOOR SERVICE AT BARS AND
RESTAURANT

(Refer to Resolution File for complete copy of Resolution)

APPROVED SPEC BUILDING CHANGE ORDER NO. 2

Todd Wietzema, Public Works Director, stated Tri-State General Contracting has submitted a second
change order proposal which includes modifications to the aggregate base located under a portion
of the parking lot area. Mr. Wietzema said these modifications include an additional 6” sub cut, type
5 fabric and 6” compacted crushed concrete. The reason for these changes are due to the excess
moisture in the soils where the utilities trenches were dug last fall. The change order pricing is based
on estimated quantities of product needed and these prices were established in change order number
one. The proposed change order is an increase of $11,786.00 increasing our total contract price to
$3,924,512.75.

A motion was made by Council Member Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Ernst and
unanimously carried to approve the Spec Building Change Order No. 2 by a roll call vote.  Ayes:



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 6

Cummings, Ernst, Hartmon, Janssen, Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed. 

BEACH NOOK AGREEMENT AMENDMENT APPROVED

Todd Wietzema, Public Works Director, stated the City of Worthington has received a donation from
the Lake Okabena Improvement Association, to purchase non-motorized watercraft, for rent on Lake
Okabena. The operators of the Beach Nook concession stand have agreed to administer this rental
program for the City of Worthington.

Council Member Cummings asked if there will be a reserve fund for replacement items or adding
additional items.  Mr. Wietzema explained that not all of the donation has been used and monies will
be put into a CIP fund for replacement costs.  

Mr. Wietzema explained that users will have to be 16 years old with an ID and minors will need to
be accompanied by an adult.  Life jackets will need to be worn at all times and a waiver will need
to be signed by each user.  

A motion was made by Council Member Cummings, seconded by Council Member Ernst and
unanimously carried to approve the Beach Nook Agreement Amendment by a roll call vote: Ayes:
Harmon, Cummings, Ernst, Janssen, Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed. 

APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR 2020 BITUMINOUS OVERLAYS

Dwayne Haffield, Director of Engineering, stated the 2020 Construction Fund Budget includes
$400,000 for contract street maintenance.  Mr. Haffield explained contract maintenance typically
includes overlays and seal coating but may include joint sealing or pavement rehabilitation. It is
proposed that the 2020 budget be used for overlays. The streets proposed to be overlayed are:

Apel Avenue - Dover Street to Oxford Street
Elmwood Avenue - Liberty Drive to West Oxford Street
Knollwood Drive - 1st Avenue SW to South Shore Drive
West Gateway Drive - spot patch near TH 59/60

He said the proposed work also includes the surfacing of two driveways as part of the restoration of
West Lake Avenue from a 2018 water main replacement project.

The total estimated cost of the project, including engineering and contingencies, is $393,500. This
also includes an estimated $2,500 attributable to the West Lake Avenue driveway restoration which
will be funded from the Water Utility budget for the street restoration.

Council Member Cummings asked if Knollwood would be getting more of an overlay.  Mr.  Haffield
stated that Knollwood would be receiving a leveling before the overlay.



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 7

A motion was made by Council Member Cummings, seconded by Council Member Oberloh to
approve the Plans and Specifications for the 2020 Bituminous Overlays by a roll call vote.  Ayes:
Cummings Ernst, Harmon, Janssen, Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR TAP TRAIL PROJECT APPROVED 

Dwayne Haffield, Director of Engineering, stated the current 2021 Capital Improvements includes
two proposed federal aid projects. The larger of these projects is the reconstruction of Oxford Street
from McMillan Street to Humiston Avenue. The second project, is the Transportation Alternative
Program (TAP) trails project. This involves extending a trail from Knollwood Drive to the Prairie
Elementary school and a trail from Cecilee Street to the TH 60 trail.

The federal funding for each of these projects has been able to be moved to 2022 to match the
current expected delivery date for the projects. The Oxford Street project has been moved due to an
existing tight schedule now subject to significant delays in regard to property acquisitions and public
outreach. Each of those project development steps typically involve on site and/or multi-person
meetings. 

The wetland delineation and topographic survey work on the project has revealed unexpected
challenges. Given the anticipated interruption of resources, a project delivery date of 2022 is now
expected.

At its December 10, 2018 meeting, Council approved a contract with the firm of SEH to provide full
project development services for the Oxford Street project and only those services needed to develop
the Project Memorandum for the TAP Trails project.

As presented in 2018:

The project cost as presented to Council for approval of the TAP application in December 2016 is
as follows:

TRAIL Total TAP Funding Local Cost
Prairie Elementary
to Knollwood Drive $128,434 $89,334 $39,100

Cecilee Street to TH 60 $201,001 $139,799 $61,200

TOTAL COST $329,435 $229,133 $100,301

Mr. Haffield said local funding included the School District participating in 50% of the local costs
for the Prairie Elementary trail ($19,550). The remaining local share will be from general tax levy,
use of Construction (401) Fund reserves and/or other funds that may be identified at a future date.



Worthington City Council
Regular Meeting, May 26, 2020
Page 8

A motion was made by Council Member Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Harmon and
unanimously carried to approve the Professional Services Agreement for the Tap Trail Project. Ayes: 
Cummings, Oberloh, Harmon, Ernst, Janssen.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS

Mayor Kuhle - Thanked staff for the extra work and leadership.  Also thanked the citizens and
businesses of Worthington for their responsible actions during the pandemic.  Wishes the businesses
well.
Council Member Jansen - No report.
Council Member Oberloh - No report.  
Council Member Cummings - Asked about the trash pick-up fee that appears on the utility bill if
there would not be a pick-up this year, Mr, Wietzema stated that the fee being collected this year is
from last year but if we did not have it, the fee would have to be removed. 
Council Member Ernst - No report. 
Council Member Harmon - Attended Water & Light Commission meeting, heard a presentation from
Bolten & Menck.   

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

Steve Robinson, City Administrator, gave an update on re-opening City Hall, looking at protective
measures in the reception areas, targeting next week.  We have received a grant for artwork from SW
MN Arts Council in the amount of $20,000. The Community Growth Committee will be working
with the artists to incorporate the art work into the Tenth Street Plaza plans.  The plans for the Plaza
are almost finished and will be brought forward to Council at one of the meetings in June.  Working
with the School District on the contract for the Memorial Auditorium which expires at the end of
June.    

ADJOURNMENT

The motion was made by Council Member Oberloh, seconded by Council Member Cummings   
and unanimously carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:23 p.m. by a roll call vote. Ayes: Harmon,
Ernst, Janssen, Cummings, Oberloh.  Nays: None.  Motion passed.

Mindy L. Eggers, MCMC
City Clerk



 

WATER AND LIGHT COMMISSION MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2020 
 

The regular meeting of the Water and Light Commission was called to order at 3:00 P.M. by 
Vice President Mike Harmon with the following members present:  Kathy Hayenga, Chad Nixon 
and Randy Thompson.  Commission members participated remotely.  Absent was Deb Weg 
(excused). 
 
Scott Hain, General Manager, and Deb Scheidt, Secretary to the Commission, participated and 
were located at the Worthington Public Utilities conference room.  Eric Roos, Water 
Superintendent, and Jeremy Braaksma, Wastewater Superintendent, participated remotely. 
 
Others participating remotely:  Kristopher Swanson, Bolton & Menk; Julie Buntjer, The Globe 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS/CLOSURE 
 
Scott Hain, General Manager requested changing the order for Public Hearing for Wastewater 
Treatment Facility Improvements.  Open Hearing would be moved from Item #1 to Item #2 and 
Hearing Presentation would be moved to Item #2 to Item #1.  Items #3 through #5 would remain 
the same.  A motion was made by Commissioner Nixon and seconded by Commissioner 
Hayenga to include the changes to the agenda. 
 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY 
IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Kristopher Swanson, Bolton & Menk, provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Wastewater 
Treatment Facility Improvements.  The presentation included information on project needs, the 
purpose of the facility plan, general alternatives (rehabilitate existing system, construct a new 
suspended biological treatment system or do nothing), recommended alternative to construct a 
new suspended biological treatment system, user rate impacts, possible funding and a tentative 
schedule. 
 
Following the presentation by Mr. Swanson, a motion was made by Commissioner Thompson 
and seconded by Commissioner Hayenga to open the public hearing for wastewater treatment 
facility improvements consistent with the Minnesota Administrative Rules 70.77.0272 (Facilities 
Plan for Wastewater Treatment Systems). 
 

PINK



Water and Light Commission Minutes 
May 18, 2020 
Page 2 
 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
The public hearing was opened at 3:25 p.m. with the following present via video conference:  
Kristopher Swanson, Bolton & Menk; Julie Buntjer, The Globe; Commissioners Harmon, 
Hayenga, Nixon and Thompson; Scott Hain, General Manager; Jeremy Braaksma, Wastewater 
Superintendent; Eric Roos Water Superintendent; Deb Scheidt, Secretary to the Commission.   
 
Vice President Harmon called for public comments and none were received.  Mr. Hain reported 
that no written public comments had been received prior to the public hearing. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Nixon and seconded by Commissioner Hayenga to close 
the public hearing at 3:26 p.m. 
 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
Mr. Swanson left the meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA APPROVED 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Thompson and seconded by Commissioner Hayenga to 
approve the consent agenda as follows:  
 

• Water and Light Commission minutes of the regular meeting held on May 4, 2020 
• Staff reports for April 2020 
• Utility bills payable totaling $248,950.12 for May 8 and May 15, 2020 

 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
 
 

PINK



Water and Light Commission Minutes 
May 18, 2020 
Page 3 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SALES REPORTS 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hayenga and seconded by Commissioner Thompson to 
accept the financial statements and sales reports for April 2020. 
 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
DUGDALE HOUSING PROJECT 

 
Scott Hain, General Manager, reviewed the tentative schedule for the development of the 
Dugdale housing project with the Commission.  After a review of the schedule, Mr. Hain 
requested input from the Commission on what stages of the project they desire to take 
independent formal action such as ordering development of plans and specifications, approval of 
plans and specifications and authorizing the advertisement for bids, and awarding bids.  Mr. Hain 
stated that it is important to note that lot values will be independently appraised and a lot pricing 
evaluation based on bids received will be completed to identify any potential funding gaps prior 
to considering awarding bids.   
 
During discussion, the Commission was in agreement that since Commissioners Nixon and 
Thompson represent Worthington Public Utilities (WPU) on the Housing Committee and the 
Housing Committee is expected to review all information and make a recommendation to the 
governing bodies (City Council and/or Commission), they are comfortable with their level of 
participation in the project at this time.  The Commission did express their desire to take formal 
action should a potential funding gap in lot pricing be identified or if it is projected that WPU’s 
$1.5 million commitment to the project might be exceeded.  
 
DIAGONAL ROAD SHOP RENOVATION PROJECT 

 
Scott Hain, General Manager, presented a final preliminary design concept for the Diagonal 
Road Shop Renovation Project from SEH.  The preliminary cost estimate is approximately $1.9 
million.  Mr. Hain stated the next step would be to proceed with soliciting a proposal for final 
design and the preparation of specifications and bid documents.  The Commission was in 
agreement to proceed with soliciting a proposal for final design and the preparation of 
specifications and bid documents. 
 
BIOLOGICAL FILTRATION 

 
Scott Hain, General Manager, reported that Worthington Public Utilities engaged the firm WSB 
in March 2020 to perform a feasibility study on converting the current process of treating potable 

PINK



Water and Light Commission Minutes 
May 18, 2020 
Page 4 
 
water to a biological filtration process. The feasibility study follows the completion of a 
successful pilot study also completed by WSB. 
 
Mr. Hain indicated that data collection related to the feasibility study indicates that it may be 
possible to covert the facility to biological filtration prior to the construction of any 
improvements or the renovation of the current facilities.  This possibility was discussed with 
WSB and with staff at the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH).  Mr. Hain reported that he 
and Eric Roos, Water Superintendent, met with engineers from WSB via video conference on 
May 15, 2020, to further discuss the possibility of beginning the conversion from our current 
process to biological treatment prior to the completion of the feasibility study and to rearrange 
the order of tasks to be performed as part of the feasibility study in order to address MDH’s 
questions and concerns in a timely manner. 
 
WSB is preparing a letter to the MDH addressing their questions.  Once their questions have 
been answered we will await authorization from them to begin the conversion process prior to 
the completion of the feasibility study. 
 
OWATONNA PUBLIC UTILITIES ELECTRIC & WATER RATE COMPARISON 
STUDY 
 
Scott Hain, General Manager, presented the results of the Owatonna Public Utilities electric and 
water rate comparison study for the period of January 2019 through December 2019.  Based on 
the information included in the survey, Worthington ranked second lowest in cost in the 
residential and commercial electric cost comparisons and the lowest in the industrial class cost 
comparisons.  Fourteen electric utilities were surveyed including eleven municipal utilities, two 
rural electric cooperatives and one investor-owned utility.   
 
In the water cost comparisons, Worthington ranked around the middle when compared with 
twelve other water utilities. 
 
COMMISSION COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Commissioner Thompson reported that he participated in the Missouri River Energy Services 
Annual Meeting that was held via Webinar on May 6, 2020. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
Scott Hain, General Manager, reminded the Commission that the 2020 utility budgets included 
funding for the filling of the Assistant Manager/Utility Coordinator position for approximately 
half of the year 2020.  Mr. Hain reported that, due to the coronavirus pandemic, he has not had 
sufficient time to update the existing position description and advertise for candidates. 
 
 
 
 

PINK



Water and Light Commission Minutes 
May 18, 2020 
Page 5 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Nixon and seconded by Commissioner Thompson to 
adjourn the meeting at 4:17 P.M. 
 
Upon a roll call vote, the following Commission members voted aye:  Randy Thompson, Chad 
Nixon, Kathy Hayenga and Mike Harmon. 
 
Voting nay:  none 
 
Absent and not voting:  Deb Weg 
 
 
 
Deb A. Scheidt 
Secretary to the Commission 

PINK



WORTHINGTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MAY 26, 2020

The Worthington Economic Development Authority meeting was called to order via conference call
at 6:45 p.m. by  Chairman Mike Kuhle with the following members present by roll call vote: Chad
Cummings, Mike Harmon; Alan Oberloh; Amy Ernst and Larry Janssen.

Staff present via conference call : Steve Robinson, City Administrator; Jason Brisson, Assistant City
Administrator/Economic Development Director; Mindy Eggers, Secretary to the Authority. 

Others present: Ryan McGaughey, Daily Globe, Justine Wettschreck, Radio Works.

MINUTES APPROVED

The motion was made by Mike Harmon, seconded by Amy Ernst and unanimously carried to
approve the EDAu minutes of May 27, 2020 by roll call vote: Ayes: Cummings, Ernst, Janssen,
Harmon, Oberloh. Nays: None.  Motion passed.   

WARRANTY DEED IN FULLFILLMENT OF CONTRACT FOR DEED - 414 INDUSTRIAL
LANE (CLIENT COMMUNITY SERVICES INCORPORATED)

Jason Brisson, Assistant City Administrator/Director of Economic Development stated at the August
12, 1996 Worthington City Council meeting the Worthington Economic Development Authority
(EDA) convened for consideration of the loan agreement and development contract between the
EDA and Client Community Services, Inc. (CCSI).  Mr. Brisson said the EDA approved the contract
for deed, development contract, and agreement that included a $74,915.50 forgivable loan for the
property. He explained according to the terms of the loan, each payment was to be forgiven if the
developer maintained and operated a sheltered warehouse on the property for 20 years. The contract
for deed specified that the loan would be completely forgiven on August 15, 2016 if the developer
continued to abide by the terms of the agreement.

Mr. Brisson explained staff has determined that the developer has complied with the terms of the
agreement and the EDA should take action to satisfy the EDA’s lien on the property and transfer the
title to CCSI authorizing the Mayor and Secretary to execute the document and approve the expense
of the deed preparation along with the $247.22 deed tax, both of which are customarily the
responsibility of the seller. The recording fee will be the responsibility of the developer.  

Amy Ernst asked if there was a better way for staff to keep track of these in the future.  Mr. Brisson
said that with staff turnover it was missed but yes, there will be a procedure put into place that will 
assure that these things don’t fall through the cracks.  

ADJOURNMENT

The motion was made by Amy Ernst, seconded by Mike Harmon and unanimously carried to adjourn

PINK



Worthington Economic Development Authority
May 26, 2020
Page 2

the meeting at 6:51 p.m. by a roll call vote: Ayes: Harmon, Cummings, Janssen, Ernst, Oberloh.
Nays: None.  Motion passed. 

Mindy L. Eggers
Secretary to the Authority

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 9 
 
 

CITY OF WORTHINGTON 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 P.M. Tuesday, May 5, 2020 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL  

AND VIA CONFERENCE VIDEO CALL ON ZOOM 
 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, this meeting was held via conference call under section 

13D.021 of Minnesota State Statute, with members and the public calling in to listen, 

discuss, and respond. Participants attended remotely. 

 

Members Present:  Amy Ernst, Chris Kielblock, Rhina Resendez, Mark Vis, Ben Weber, 
Amy Woitalewicz 
 
Members Absent/Excused:  Andy Berg 
 
Staff: Jeremiah Cromie, Community Development/City Planner; Meredith Vaselaar, 
Administrative Secretary 
 
Others Present:  Rod Obermoller, John Landgaard, Ryan McGoughey (Globe) 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Chris Kielblock called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – April 7, 2020 Meeting  

Amy Ernst made a motion to approve the minutes of the April 7, 2020, Planning 
Commission Meeting; seconded by Ben Weber; the minutes were approved 
unanimously via roll-call vote. 

 
C. PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS 

 
1. PUBLIC HEARING AND PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

Variance – 1207 and 1209 South Shore Drive 
 
Jeremiah Cromie read the request for a variance and presented staff findings 
and recommendations. 
 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 9 
 

Rodney Obermoller requested a variance for the property at 1207 and 1209 
South Shore Drive, currently owned by V & O Properties.  He is seeking 
approval to allow a 1% increase over the maximum 35% impervious coverage 
allowed on the property to construct a two-unit 1,654 square foot duplex with 
two 672 square foot garages.   
 
The staff found that the public road running through the property is unique to 
the property and would not undermine the zoning ordinance in regard to 
enforcing the maximum impervious coverage on other properties.  The staff 
recommends approval of the requested 1% above the maximum 35% 
impervious coverage allowed on the property. 
 
Cromie said he received an email earlier in the day, asking about the DNR.  
He said they had sent a letter to the DNR, but he received no comments back 
from them.  Cromie also received a question about the shoreland overlay, and 
this is not within 50 feet of the ordinary high-water line. 
 
Kielblock invited questions from the commissioners. 
 
Ben Weber asked for clarification on Exhibit 1F. Cromie explained that the red 
was what was proposed, and the green was what could be done.   Cromie 
also explained that there was already one duplex on the north side of the 
property. 
 
Kielblock opened the public hearing. 
 
Applicant Rod Obermoller explained that he did not want to rotate the building 
back the way the green lines showed because he wanted to get the best view 
possible, gaining lake views through houses and into Vet’s Memorial Park. 
 
Weber thanked Obermoller for attending and went on to explain that a 
variance is always tough as it is a request to do something that is against the 
rules.  There is a three-factor test that is used, with one factor being hardship.  
He asked Obermoller what hardships exist that prompted him to seek a 
variance. 
 
Obermoller explained that the buildings are condominiums, the condominium 
association, and when they are built they are not always already sold.  The 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 9 
 

view is a big thing in as far as making a sale goes.  To swing back could cost 
Obermoller a sale. 
 
Weber asked if the change of the angle would affect the overall look of the 
two duplexes together. 
 
Obermoller said, “Not necessarily. The northwest corner of that building, he is 
trying to get that far enough west to get past the northerly duplex.  Without a 
variance, the deck would look right into the building. 
 
Cromie added that staff believes that the road is a hardship; it runs through 
that property.  The road limits Rodney’s ability to put the duplex where he 
wants. 
 
Kielblock said that the hardship – the road - was there when Obermoller 
bought the property. 
 
Kielblock asked Cromie, “Is there any talk about improving the road through 
there, or will it be maintained gravel?” 
 
Cromie said that there is a cooperative agreement to try to do something like 
that but does not know the status of that. 
 
Obermoller said that his plan was to hard surface that road, that is the 
cooperative agreement. He said that draining is an issue after a rain, as there 
is a gully wash through that whole section, all the way up to Dan’s Electric on 
the south end of Flower Lane, the water washes gravel into Rod’s property.  
His intent is through a cooperative agreement that he would hard surface that 
road. He asked, “is the road the right-of-way?”  Cromie said that part of the 
road was right-of-way, part of it was not. 
 
Woitalewicz said that a lot of the rainwater drains onto her property and that 
the road and property in question is really unique and really challenging.  She 
observed that the character of the property has changed from private to 
public. 
 
Woitalewicz: “This is different from previous cases we have seen, and not 
approved, as there was no hardship involved with previous cases.  This is a 
truly unique property.” 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 9 
 

 
Weber asked about prior instances such as this – and how unique is the 
property.   
 
Cromie said that South Shore Care Center wanted 53% coverage, and that 
request was not granted.  Instead, it can only replace the amount of 
impervious surface of what is there.  If anything is taken out, then it must be 
reseeded in soil. 
 
Weber asked Cromie for more details about the uniqueness of the property 
and change of road. 
 
Cromie said that if the road had remained private property, as originally it 
was, there could be other options such as taking out the private drive.  The 
road does make it unique and could be considered a hardship. 
 
Obermoller said that the total property coverage would be fine with the 35%, 
but they are deducting the road out of the formula.  If that wasn’t being 
deducted from the formula, then there would not be an issue. 
 
Cromie said that because of the public use of that road, it does not count as 
impervious or green space.  It is somewhat like an “adverse possession.” The 
road is not included in impervious or green space.  The road is unique in that 
only part of it runs through the property.  If it was included in the formula, then 
there would be enough and the 35% would not be exceeded.   
 
Woitalewicz moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Weber; the 
motion passed unanimously, via roll-call vote. 
 
There was no further discussion 
 
Woitalewicz made a motion to approve the variance to allow property to 
exceed the 35% impervious coverage limit by 1% in order to build a duplex in 
a certain location on the property based on the hardship of the road cutting 
through the property; the motion was seconded by Rhina Resendez; the 
motion passed 5 – 1.  Aye: Ernst, Kielblock, Resendez, Vis, Woitalewicz; Nay: 
Weber. 
 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Staff noted that the decision would go through a 7-day appeal period before 
officially being approved. 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING AND PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
Conditional Use Permit –1207 and 1209 South Shore Drive (Duplex-Rodney 
Obermoller) 
 
Jeremiah Cromie read the request for a conditional use permit and presented 
staff findings and recommendations. 
 
Rodney Obermoller is seeking a conditional use permit for the construction of 
a two-unit 1,654 square foot duplex with two 672 square foot attached 
garages at 1207 and 1209 South Shore Drive currently owned by V & O 
Properties. 
 
Staff found that the proposed development is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  Staff opinion is that the development would provide a 
good transition between the existing care center to the west and the existing 
single-family homes to the east.   
 
Staff found that the site plan as submitted does not comply with the applicable 
impervious surface requirements on the subject property.  As such, staff 
recommends approval of the requested conditional use permit with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant receives a variance for a 1% increase above the 
maximum 35% impervious coverage for the lot; 

2. The property is developed in accordance with the submitted site plan, 
Exhibit 2A; and 

3. The subject property maintain compliance with all applicable local, 
state, and federal requirements. 

 
Kielblock invited questions from the commissioners.   
 
Ernst:  “So, it includes a 24’x28’ garage, but it doesn’t show that in Exhibit 
2A?”  Cromie said that should actually be Exhibit 1B, just an error in what 
Exhibit number was used and that should be corrected.  Cromie directed 
commissioners to Exhibit 1B.  
 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 6 of 9 
 

Kielblock opened the public hearing. 
 
Rod Obermoller, applicant,  reiterated that he was just trying to make a 
sellable unit, and he had a request to increase the size of the garage from 
24’x24, to 24’x28’, from some customers who wanted a little more space in a 
garage. 
 
Weber asked Obermoller for clarification that Exhibit 1B was the correct one, 
to which Obermoller answered in the affirmative.  Weber thanked Obermoller 
for his attendance and hard work. 
 
Kielblock noted the concrete patio and asked if it would be encroaching into 
the setback.  Cromie said that concrete patios are allowed in the setback. 
 
Weber moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Vis: the motion 
passed unanimously, via roll-call vote. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Weber made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit, seconded by 
Resendez; the motion passed unanimously via roll-call vote. 
 
The motion:  the commission recommends that the City Council approve the 
request with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant receives a variance for a 1% increase above the 
maximum 35% impervious coverage for the lot; 

2. The property is developed in accordance with the submitted site plan 
in Exhibit 1B; and 

3. The subject property maintain compliance with all applicable local, 
state, and federal requirements. 

 
Staff noted that a copy of the recommendation will be forwarded to the City 
Council for consideration at the May 11, 2020, meeting. 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING AND PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION  
Conditional Use Permit – 1220 Oslo Street (Video Scoreboard-ISD 518) 
 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 7 of 9 
 

Jeremiah Cromie read the request for a conditional use permit and presented 
staff findings and recommendations. 
 
Independent School District 518 (ISD 518) is seeking a conditional use permit 
for property they own at 1220 Oslo Street (aka: Trojan Field) to place an 
approximate 905 square foot video scoreboard on the property.  The 
proposed video scoreboard would meet the criteria for restrictions for its use 
and could be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Staff recommended approval of the proposed video scoreboard subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The scoreboard is constructed where it is shown on the site plan; 
2. The scoreboard does not exceed 45 feet in total height, including 

supports; 
3. The scoreboard and property comply with all applicable local, state, 

and federal requirements. 
 
Kielblock invited questions from the commissioners.   
 
Weber asked:  “Condition #3, planting of the trees.  Is there a time frame?” 
 
John Landgaard, applicant, said that the trees and shrubs are to be planted 
this fall as part of the overall construction plan. 
 
Kielblock opened the public hearing. 
 
Weber asked:  “With the planting of trees, even though it is intended, would 
you be opposed to have some landscaping done within one year?”  
 
Landgaard:  “No. I am not opposed.  Trees that will go along the west side are 
all part of the construction bid so those will all have to go in this fall.  That’s 
fine with me. I don’t have an issue with that.” 
 
Ernst moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Vis: the motion passed 
unanimously, via roll-call vote. 
 
Weber had a question for staff:  “I asked about the timing on the trees.  Is that 
a necessary thing to add in?  John indicated that he wouldn’t have any 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 8 of 9 
 

problem, but don’t know if that is a good move or a bad move.  How does 
staff look at adding a time frame?” 
 
Cromie:  “If you want to add a time frame, I don’t have a problem with that.  I 
believe that the school district is not going to back out of planting the trees.  A 
time frame can definitely be added.” 
 
Weber:  “I agree that the school district has been doing a good job on it.  I 
was thinking more for future patterns.  I would like to hear if anyone else has 
anything to add to that.” 
 
Ernst:  “If it’s in the site plan or in the construction bid, it will happen.  I am not 
concerned about it at all.” 
 
Kielblock:  “When I first saw the paperwork, that line jumped out at me, too.  
Not that the school district would not maintain the planted trees but think that 
word should be added into that item also. That applicant plants and maintains 
trees according to the landscape plan.” 
 
Weber made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit, seconded by 
Vis; the motion passed unanimously via roll-call vote. 
 
The motion:  The commission recommends that the City Council approves the 
request with the following conditions: 
 

1. The scoreboard is constructed where it is shown on the site plan in 
Exhibit 3A; 

2. The scoreboard does not exceed 45 feet in total height, including 
supports; 

3. The applicant plants and maintains tress according to their 
landscaping plan in Exhibit 3D within 1 year of approval; and 

4. The scoreboard and property comply with all applicable local, state, 
and federal requirements. 
 

Staff noted that a copy of the recommendation will be forwarded to the City 
Council for consideration at the May 11, 2020, meeting. 
 

4. OTHER BUSINESS 

PINK



Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                                          *** DRAFT *** 
May 5, 2020 
Page 9 of 9 
 

• Cromie said that Jason Brisson wanted to mention the multi-family 
housing the commissioners might have seen in the paper or heard about, 
regarding the area north of Cecilee, south of the movie theater.  There is 
work going on with that and you will see more on that soon.  There was a 
question about whether there needed to be an extension of that multi-
family section in the single family lots on the north side of Cecilee street, 
to be included in the multi-family use.  Staff says that it is currently zoned 
R4 and they plan to keep within that zoning at the current time.  Please be 
aware that multi-family development could be a future discussion in regard 
to rezoning in the planned single family lots on the north side of Cecilee, if 
necessary. 

• June Meeting Date – June 2,2020; 7:00 p.m.   
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Kielblock made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Woitalewicz; the 
motion passed unanimously via roll-call vote. 

Meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

Meredith Vaselaar, 
Administrative Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PINK



Worthington Area YMCA – DeGroot Family Center 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes  

April 27, 2020 – Chad Nixon, Presiding 

 

WORTHINGTON AREA YMCA – DEGROOT FAMILY CENTER 
1501 Collegeway 
P 507 376 6197 
W YMCAWORTHINGTON.ORG 
 
Our Mission: To put Christian Principles into practice through programs that help build spirit, mind, and body for all.  

 

Board Members (Those present are shown in bold):  Chad Nixon, Colin O’Donnell, Kenton Meier, Julie Lopez, 
Randy Thompson, America Voss, Chad Cummings, Bill Gordon, Jennifer Weg, Adam Blume, Mark Schreiber, 
Jason Gerdes, Dale Carlson, Heidi Meyer, Amber Luinenburg, and Lori Dudley.  
 
Staff Present: Meredith Daley, Kris Hohensee 
 
Call to Order: Chad called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m.  
Consent Agenda 

*Approval of Consent Agenda                                   
• Board of Directors March Meeting minutes   
• February/March Treasurers/Finance Committee Report.  

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented was made by Dale Carlson and supported by Julie Lopez, 
motion passed.  
 
Board of Directors Business: 
 Committee/Task Force Updates 
 Diversity Task force (did not meet) 
 Youth Task Force: did not meet, Jason reported that Adam Blume had asked to be removed as he is on 

the Finance and feel that he would not be able to effectively contribute to this task force as well. 
Discussion was held on a possible replacement and Christy Menke was mentioned. Discussion was started 
on what after school programming would look like and trying to put the transportation piece in place 
with it to meet the children’s needs.    

 CEO Onboarding: (did not meet) 
 Finance Committee: (minutes in packet) 
 Meeting Highlights 

• Randy reviewed the financial reports and mentioned that we are running in the black for the first 
3 months of the year. So far memberships are holding their own which is a good sign so far. 
Randy mentioned that heating/cooling expenses were over budget and this was due to some 
repairs. He mentioned that we did receive the PPP Program and that staff was starting to work on 
bringing other staff back to work on various projects. We have figured that it will be roughly 
cover 8 weeks’ worth of expenses.  He mentioned that Giving Tuesday was talked about and 
would refer to Meredith in her reporting to talk about this. Randy also stated that discussion was 
had about a YMCA credit card.  

A motion was made by Randy and supported by Dale to approve Meredith to apply for a YMCA credit card with 
her being the signer and responsible for it. The application should be made through FSBSW where we hold our 
accounts at. Discussion was held and an amendment was made to include the line of credit to be $10,000. Motion 
passed with Kenton abstaining.   

 Board Development Committee: (minutes in packet)  

PINK



WORTHINGTON AREA YMCA – DEGROOT FAMILY CENTER 
1501 Collegeway 
P 507 376 6197 
W YMCAWORTHINGTON.ORG 
 
Our Mission: To put Christian Principles into practice through programs that help build spirit, mind, and body for all.  

 Chad reviewed that board terms have been reviewed and they are still contacting board members to 
address their terms and determine how many new members will be needed.  

 Committee assignment was also addressed. It was decided with Bill’s schedule being so very full that 
an additional member on the Finance committee would be a good idea. Discussion was held and 
Mark Schreiber will be reaching out to Austin Opdahl to see if he would be interested. We have not 
heard back from him yet.  

A motion was made to add Amber Luinenburg to the Board Development committee by Kenton and 
supported by Julie. Motion passed  

 
Executive Director Items:  

• Meredith included in the packet a copy of the United Way Grant application. She explained that it 
was straightforward and not much different than years past. She asked if there were any comments, 
none were made. Discussion was held on the black out dates are generally from September 15th – 
November 15th but there could be exceptions made if presented to their board with having the Cruise 
Dinner pushed back to August 14th and possibly still needing to push it back further. The point was 
also made that if we push it back again or even with leaving it in August how will that look for next 
year. Having the event to close together may not be good either.   

• She then talked about the Southern MN CEO’s hold regular meetings and that many of them have 
noticed how they have fallen short on various issues that have come up within the facilities, example; 
HR resources and marketing. Discussion has been held on sharing or combining efforts on various 
resources where applicable.  

A motion was made by Randy and supported by Kenton to pursue the potential combined services with other 
Southern Minnesota YMCA’s and bring worth to the Board for review and final approval. Motion passes.  

• Meredith mentioned that she was working on a reopening plan and asked if there was anyone on the 
board that would be interested in working on this plan with her that they should just let her know. 
She explained some of the issues with masks, gloves, and cleaning supplies that have been coming 
up. Discussion was also held on temperature taking.   

• Meredith stated that Cory & Jordan were working on implementing Summer Programs still as 
planned for June 1st. They are developing how it would look with Social Distancing and everything 
else. Steve Robinson has stated that he would like to see the summer programs go on as planned.  

• Meredith also mentioned that the Annual Audit was scheduled to be on site on May 4 & 5. This will 
still happen, but it will not be on site. They will still be going over things and will call or email with any 
questions or requests.  

• Meredith reviewed that normally the Y’s do not participate in the giving Tuesday campaigns but that 
they were thinking about it this year. This is May 5th and asked for discussion on whether this should 
be something that we should participate in. It was talked about whether to include these funds into 
the Strong Kids Campaign as this will be a slow and unusual year for that. Discussion was held.  

A motion was made by Jason and supported by Lori to participate in a general ask on giving Tuesday, May 5th. The 
Board would later decide what to do with the funds that came in. Motion passed  
 
Department Reports:  

• Executive Summary, Program Director, Program Coordinator, Administrative Services enclosed in packet 
• Upcoming Y events: Red Cross Blood Drive, Thursday, May 14th.  
• Next Board Meeting: May 18th, 2020 at noon Virtually     

Next Month Meetings:  
• Next Board Meeting: Monday, May 18, 12:00pm  
• Board Development: May 14, 5:30pm  

PINK



WORTHINGTON AREA YMCA – DEGROOT FAMILY CENTER 
1501 Collegeway 
P 507 376 6197 
W YMCAWORTHINGTON.ORG 
 
Our Mission: To put Christian Principles into practice through programs that help build spirit, mind, and body for all.  

• Finance Committee: May 13, 4:30pm  
• Diversity: TBD 
• Youth Development: May 7th @ 10am Virtually 
• CEO Onboarding: May 11 @ 12pm 
• Executive Committee: TBA as needed  

 
Adjournment: motion made by Randy, supported by Julie  
   
Respectfully Submitted by,     ________________________________________ 
Kris Hohensee                                   Jason Gerdes - Secretary 

PINK



Worthington Area YMCA – DeGroot Family Center 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes  

March 30, 2020 – Chad Nixon, Presiding 

 

WORTHINGTON AREA YMCA – DEGROOT FAMILY CENTER 
1501 Collegeway 
P 507 376 6197 
W YMCAWORTHINGTON.ORG 
 
Our Mission: To put Christian Principles into practice through programs that help build spirit, mind, and body for all.  

 

Board Members (Those present are shown in bold):  Chad Nixon, Colin O’Donnell, Kenton Meier, Julie Lopez, 
Randy Thompson, America Voss, Chad Cummings, Bill Gordon, Jennifer Weg, Adam Blume, Mark Schreiber, 
Jason Gerdes, Dale Carlson, Heidi Meyer, Amber Luinenburg, and Lori Dudley.  
 
Staff Present: Meredith Daley, Mark Wibbens, Kris Hohensee 
 
Call to Order: Chad called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.  
Consent Agenda 

*Approval of Consent Agenda                                   
• Board of Directors February Meeting minutes   
• February Treasurers/Finance Committee Report.  

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented was made by Kenton Meier and supported by Dale Carlson, 
motion passed.  
 
Board of Directors Business: 
 Committee/Task Force Updates 
 Diversity Task force (minutes in packet) 
 Dale reviewed that the minutes included were reviewed at the last meeting and there was nothing 

new to report. Next meeting is April 9th and will be held virtually.  
 Youth Task Force: did not meet and there was nothing new to report. The next meeting will be on March 

30 @ 1pm and will be held virtually.    
 CEO Onboarding: Lori reviewed that the minutes included we also reviewed at the last meeting and there 

was nothing new to report. The next meeting will be April 9th and will be held virtually.  
 Finance Committee: (minutes in packet) 
 Meeting Highlights 

• A Randy summarized the minutes and discussed that the Strong Kids campaign will be postponed. 
He also pointed out that there is a timing issues with the Untied Way funds and it will be made up 
in March.   

 Executive Committee:  
 Chad N. reviewed that they have been meeting weekly to keep on top of things as they are 

happening and to create a week to week strategic plan. 
 

Executive Director Items:  
• City of Worthington Field House Proposal – (draft included in packet) Discussion was held on the 

proposal as presented. There was modification that needed to be made to the second line 
management terms line item. The question was asked if all three options were going to be left in the 
proposal. The answer was yes, and that negotiations would start with these three options and get 
narrowed down to one final choice. Suggestions were made to pursue specific business terms. 
Additional discussion was held to clarify various parts of the proposal. It was stated that there needs 
to be a good proofing and some clean up made before submitting this proposal. Meredith 

PINK



WORTHINGTON AREA YMCA – DEGROOT FAMILY CENTER 
1501 Collegeway 
P 507 376 6197 
W YMCAWORTHINGTON.ORG 
 
Our Mission: To put Christian Principles into practice through programs that help build spirit, mind, and body for all.  

commented that she had clarified with Steve Robinson that he would like the proposal presented by 
mid-April. 

  A motion was made by Kenton Meier and supported by Jason Gerdes to submit the presented proposal after 
proofing and clean up and to allow staff to enter negotiations with the City of Worthington if they choose to go 
with the YMCA proposal. Motion passed Lori Dudley and Chad Cummings abstained from the vote.  
 

• 2020 Cruise Dinner Proposed Date Change: Friday August 14th is the proposed reschedule date for 
this event. Meredith reviewed the current ticket sales and mentioned that we still need to sell more 
tickets but that should be able to pick this up in June or July once things hopefully start to settle 
down. She also mentioned that we have 42 bottles of wines sitting at the liquor store and that they 
will continue to hold them until our August date. She also mentioned that if you have not purchased 
your donation yet that we still can go in and make a purchase. Our goal is to get to 100 bottles still.  

• Randy had asked about the upcoming Learning camp. Meredith explained that this was part of the 
partnership with the Governor. It was asked if this was open to anyone or just those in need. 
Meredith explained that the partnership was designed for the Tier 2 or frontline workers that were in 
need. She also explained that the cost was reduced from $40 to $30 as we felt that this was a better 
price point for the area. She also explained that she received a phone call from Jeff Rotert from the 
WRHCF and went over what he was proposing to do. He is hoping to provide funds to buy down the 
costs by half. He was submitting this next week and she should now by the end of the week if it was 
approved. The question was then asked if we could use Strong Kids Money for the same purpose. 
Mark Wibbens explained that this is the type of thing that the funds were designed to do. Meredith 
then explained that other Y’s were offering a flat rate off for FA applications, such as 50% off for 
reduced lunch and 75% off for free lunch participants.  

A motion was made by Randy Thompson and supported by Mark Schreiber to utilize Strong Kids Funds to offset 
the cost of the Learning Camp if the WRHCF grant does not come through. Discussion was held on whether to use 
the funds to offset all or just those asking for Financial Assistants. An amendment was made to the original 
proposal to utilize the funds to offset the cost of the Learning Camp by 50% to those that apply for assistance. 
Motion passed.  
 
Department Reports:  

• Executive Summary, Program Director, Program Coordinator enclosed in packet 
• Upcoming Y events: YMCA learning Camp 
• Next Board Meeting: April 27, 2020 at noon Virtually     

Next Month Meetings:  
• Next Board Meeting: Monday, April 27, 12:00pm  
• Board Development: April 16, 5:30pm at the Y 
• Finance Committee: April 22, 4:30pm at the Y 
• Diversity: April 9, 12pm 
• Youth Development: March 30 @ 1pm 
• CEO Onboarding: April 9 @ 12pm 
• Executive Committee: TBA as needed  

 
Adjournment: motion made by Randy  
   
Respectfully Submitted by,     ________________________________________ 
Kris Hohensee                                   Jason Gerdes - Secretary 

PINK



   Worthington Area Convention & Visitors Bureau  
   Board of Directors Meeting 
   January 29, 2020  
   Chamber of Commerce/CVB Office 
   3:30 P.M. 
 
 
Present: Jessica Noble, Stacy Fricke, Nicholas Raymo, Len Bakken, Brad Meester, 

Sharon Johnson, Chad Cummings, Julie Foote, Dee Bartosh, Tyler 
Knutson, Gwen Post, Robyn Moser, Darlene Macklin and Alicia Jensen. 

 
Excused Absence: Aaron Kinser, DeWayne McIntyre, Ryan McGaughey and Miguel Rivas.   
      
   Chairman of the Board Brad Meester presiding. 
 
   A motion was passed unanimously to approve the agenda as presented. 
 

A motion was passed unanimously to approve the minutes of the 
December 10, 2019 meeting. 

 
 A motion was passed unanimously to accept the December, 2019 financial 

statement as presented.   
 
International Festival After discussion it was suggested to have a representative from the   
Sponsorship:  International Festival make a presentation to the board prior to approving 
 a sponsorship.  
 
Windsurfing Regatta  Last year a $3,500 sponsorship was given.  In addition to the sponsorship  
& Music Festival CVB paid $2,000 for television ads.  A motion was passed unanimously to   
Sponsorship:   give a combined sponsorship of $5,500 which includes the TV ads. 
 
MN State  Matt Widboom presented a request for sponsorship of the Minnesota State   
Cattlemen’s  Cattlemen’s Summer Beef Tour & Trade Show.  The last time the event  
Sponsorship: was hosted by Worthington was eleven years ago.  They expect over 1,000 

people to attend.  The event will be headquartered at the Nobles County 
Fairgrounds.  A motion was passed unanimously to approve $5,000 
sponsorship for the event.  

 
MN Bison  The Minnesota Bison Conference will be held in Round Lake at the 
Association Vineyards and Winery on April 3rd through the 5th.  Information on  
Sponsorship: the event was included in the board packet.  A motion was passed 

unanimously to approve a $1,000 sponsorship for the Minnesota  
 Bison Association’s Annual Meeting. 

PINK



 
Board Meeting Continued, Page 2 
 
   
 
Committee Reports: Marketing/Hotel – Created three new Worthington post cards.  Post cards 

will be sent out to everyone who requested a visitor’s guide last year.  
Looking at adding another billboard.  Working with Smith Trucking on 
the design of the traveling billboard.  

 
 Sports & Recreation – Sponsored the youth wrestling tournament this past 

weekend.  Approved sponsorship for the Winterfest bean bag and dart 
tournaments.  Also gave a sponsorship to the MN West wresting 
tournament.  Planning for the Wild Turkey Shoot-out in March.  

 
 Winterfest – Postponed due to the weather.  New date is February 1st.  

Events that will not take place are the fishing tournament and dart 
tournament.  All other events still going on as planned.  

     
Appoint Budget  A motion was passed unanimously to appoint Brad Meester, Stacy Fricke,  
Committee:  Sharon Johnson, Ryan McGaughey and Julie Foote to the budget 

committee.  
 
City Report: Improvements happening on the Hotel Thompson.  The roof is being 

replaced now and the new boiler is in.  Design plans will be finalized 
soon.     

 
Next Meeting:  The next meeting of the board will be held on February 26th.   
 
   A motion was passed unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 4:37 P.M. 
 
   Respectfully Submitted, 
 
   Darlene Macklin 
   Executive Director  

PINK



ADMINISTRATION MEMO 
 
DATE: JUNE 8, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
SUBJECT: ITEMS REQUIRING CITY COUNCIL ACTION OR REVIEW 
 

 
CASE ITEM 

 
 

1. MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM PERFORMING ARTS CENTER - ISD 518 RENTAL 
AGREEMENT  
For many years, Worthington ISD 518 has utilized the City’s Memorial Auditorium 
Performing Arts Center for school productions and activities including the High School’s 
fall play, musical, spring choir concert, and, the Middle School’s spring choral concert, 
band concert, and spring orchestra concert.   This agreement reserves the facility for ISD 
518’s use for a total of 62 days per contract year.  Should the usage exceed 62 days per 
contract year, ISD 518 shall pay a pro-rated amount for the additional days. 
 
The current contract expires on June 30, 2020.  Memorial Auditorium management and 
administration staffs from both the City and ISD 518 have agreed that a three year 
agreement, in effect from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023, is advantageous for both parties.   
 
Recent contract payments are as follows: 
 July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018  $30,600 annually 
 July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2019  $31,212 annually 
 July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020  $31,836 annually 
  
The proposed agreement, included as Exhibit 1 includes a two percent (2%) increase for 
each of the three years of the new contract and provides that the school district shall pay the 
City the following rental fees: 
 
 July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021  $32,473 annually 
 July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022  $33,122 annually 
 July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023  $33,784 annually  
 
One additional term was included in the proposed agreement that has not been in 
previously.  It allows the contract to be adjusted on a prorated basis in the event ISD #518 is 
unable to use the Auditorium for any of the contracted days due to circumstances beyond 
their control.  
 
Staff recommends Council approved the agreement and authorize execution by the Mayor 
and Clerk.      
 

 
2. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – REHABILITATION OF LAKE 

OKABENA OUTLET PIPES 
The water level of Lake Okabena is managed by the dam at the southeast corner of the lake.  
Overflow from the dam is conveyed to the Lake Okabena outlet to County Ditch 6 through 



two 42-inch diameter concrete pipes that in part run under the future Field House building 
and the Union Pacific rail line.  An inspection of the condition of the pipes was performed 
this past winter using multi-sensor condition inspection technology including 
electromagnetic pipe penetrating radar.  The inspection reviewed the structural condition of 
the pipes, offset and separated joints, and voids in the soil surrounding the pipes.   
 
The inspection revealed deficiencies in the pipes that can be addressed using no-dig pipe 
rehabilitation methods.  The rehabilitation includes initially filling the voids in foundation 
soils surrounding the pipes with non-shrink grout.  Once the voids have been addressed, the 
pipes will be lined with a fiberglass reinforced cast in place pipe liner (CIPP).  
 
CIPP provides structural rehabilitation and produces a water-tight barrier that prevents 
contaminated groundwater and vapors entering the pipes while minimally reducing the 
inside diameter of the pipes.   
 
Attached as Exhibit 2 is a professional services agreement from SEH Inc. to prepare 
construction and bid documents for the pipe rehabilitation project.  The proposed fee is 
based on an hourly not to exceed $80,124.00.  The work will be scheduled to be performed 
midwinter 2020-2021 when Lake Okabena is frozen. 
 
Staff recommends Council approved the agreement and authorize execution by the Mayor 
and Clerk.      
 
 
 
 



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



Exhibit 2 



GREEN



GREEN



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington has been notified that Don Linssen, hereinafter “Donor” 
desires to donate personal property to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Donor has placed the following restrictions upon gift: The bench will be placed 
along the County 35 Bike trail; and 

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. 465.03 requires that acceptance of any donation be approved by the 
City Council by a two-thirds majority vote; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED: 

The City of Worthington does hereby accept the donation referenced above with any and all 
conditions, if any, as specified by the donor. 

That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of the City of 
Worthington. 

Approved this __________ day of ____________, 20____, by a two thirds majority vote of the 
Worthington City Council with the following members voting in favor thereof: 
________________  __________________  _________________  ___________________ 
________________, and __________________; and the following members opposed: 
________________, ___________________, _____________________ (if not, so state). 

CITY OF WORTHINGTON 

BY: ______________________________ 
Mike Kuhle, Its Mayor 

______________________________ 
Mindy Eggers, Its Clerk 

Exhibit 1A 

GREEN



Exibit 1B 

GREEN



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington has been notified that Patrick and Jenalee Mahoney, 
hereinafter “Donor” desires to donate personal property to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Donor has placed the following restrictions upon gift: The bench will be placed in 
Chautauqua Park near the Playground; and 

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. 465.03 requires that acceptance of any donation be approved by the 
City Council by a two-thirds majority vote; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED: 

The City of Worthington does hereby accept the donation referenced above with any and all 
conditions, if any, as specified by the donor. 

That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of the City of 
Worthington. 

Approved this __________ day of ____________, 20____, by a two thirds majority vote of the 
Worthington City Council with the following members voting in favor thereof: 
________________  __________________  _________________  ___________________ 
________________, and __________________; and the following members opposed: 
________________, ___________________, _____________________ (if not, so state). 

CITY OF WORTHINGTON 

BY: ______________________________ 
Mike Kuhle, Its Mayor 

______________________________ 
Mindy Eggers, Its Clerk 

Exhibit 2A 

GREEN



Exibit 2B 

GREEN



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington has been notified that Worthington Regional Healthcare 
Foundation, hereinafter “Donor” desires to donate personal property to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Donor has placed the following restrictions upon gift: The bench will be placed 
next to the Splash Pad in Centennial Park; and 

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. 465.03 requires that acceptance of any donation be approved by the 
City Council by a two-thirds majority vote; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED: 

The City of Worthington does hereby accept the donation referenced above with any and all 
conditions, if any, as specified by the donor. 

That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of the City of 
Worthington. 

Approved this __________ day of ____________, 20____, by a two thirds majority vote of the 
Worthington City Council with the following members voting in favor thereof: 
________________  __________________  _________________  ___________________ 
________________, and __________________; and the following members opposed: 
________________, ___________________, _____________________ (if not, so state). 

CITY OF WORTHINGTON 

BY: ______________________________ 
Mike Kuhle, Its Mayor 

______________________________ 
Mindy Eggers, Its Clerk 

Exhibit 3A 

GREEN



  

 
 
      Exibit 3B 
 
 
 
 
 

GREEN



  

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington has been notified that WHS Class of 1981, hereinafter 
“Donor” desires to donate personal property to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Donor has placed the following restrictions upon gift: The bench will be placed on 
Sailboard Beach, along the bike trail by 5th Ave.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. 465.03 requires that acceptance of any donation be approved by the 
City Council by a two-thirds majority vote; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED: 
 
The City of Worthington does hereby accept the donation referenced above with any and all 
conditions, if any, as specified by the donor. 
 
That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of the City of 
Worthington. 
 
Approved this __________ day of ____________, 20____, by a two thirds majority vote of the 
Worthington City Council with the following members voting in favor thereof: 
________________  __________________  _________________  ___________________ 
________________, and __________________; and the following members opposed: 
________________, ___________________, _____________________ (if not, so state). 
 
 
CITY OF WORTHINGTON 
 
 
BY: ______________________________ 
 Mike Kuhle, Its Mayor 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mindy Eggers, Its Clerk 
   
 

      
      Exhibit 4A 
 
 
 
 
 

GREEN



  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit 4B 
 

GREEN



  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 5A 
 

GREEN



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      Exhibit 5B 

GREEN



  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
      Exhibit 5C 

GREEN



ENGINEERING MEMO

DATE: JUNE 4, 2020
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL
SUBJECT: ITEMS REQUIRING COUNCIL ACTION OR REVIEW

CONSENT AGENDA CASE ITEMS

1. TERMINATE AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHWEST MINNESOTA FISHING
CLUB

In 1990, the City entered into an agreement with the Southwest Minnesota Fishing Club
to allow the club to use “Smith Lake” as a fish rearing pond. Smith Lake is the name
given to the water reservoir created south of Worthington at the location of what is now
utilized as the police gun range. The agreement is in Exhibit 1. It is not clear if the club
ever utilized the pond as intended but has not in the recent past. As indicated in the
agreement, the club provided a $500 deposit. In order to conclude the outstanding
agreement and return the deposit, staff recommends Council provide the required 30 day
notice to terminate the agreement. 

AGENDA CASE ITEMS

1. HEARING FOR GLENWOOD HEIGHTS SECOND ADDITION STREET,
STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, AND WATER IMPROVEMENTS

Should Council approve of the Glenwood Heights Second Addition Street, Storm Sewer,
Sanitary Sewer, and Water Improvements as proposed in the project feasibility report and
at the hearing, staff recommends that Council pass the resolutions in Exhibit 2 Ordering
Improvement and Preparation of Plans and Specifications for the street surfacing
improvement; and for the storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and water distribution
improvements.

As provided in the feasibility report: 

The street improvement consists of the surfacing of the streets to be constructed
by the developer (City and WPU);

The storm sewer improvement consists of an urban drainage system including
treatment for the area to be developed. The storm sewer improvement includes
elements that need to be sized larger to accommodate flows from upstream
(generally west and northwest) of the proposed development and is therefore not
required to be developer installed;

BLUE



Engineering Memo - June 4, 2020
Page 2

The sanitary sewer improvement consists of authorizing the extension of sewer
lateral mains to be installed by the developer and the levying of additional
assessments for prior trunk sanitary sewer improvements;

The water improvement consists of authorizing the extension of water lateral
mains to be installed by the developer, furnishing fire hydrant units, and the
levying of additional assessments for prior trunk water main improvements. 

A summary of the improvement costs and total estimated assessments for the projects are
provided below:

STREET SURFACING

City share for non-assessable costs $13,996.12
City share of assessable costs $  1  5,235.12
Total city share $29,231.24
 
Assessments receivable $142,716.76
TOTAL COST $171,948.00

The estimated assessment rate is $40.18/ft

DRAINAGE AND STORM SEWER

"Private" Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Estimated Assessments Receivable for Lots to be Sold $63,783.01
Estimated Assessments Receivable for Outlot I $90,295.10
Total Estimated Assessments Receivable $154,078.11 (25.7%)

City Share of Improvement Cost - Non-Assessable

Public Rights-of-Way $24,125.37
Above Rate Limit and Non-Assessable Subdistricts $413,673.18
Rounding Adjustment      -$154.30
Total City Share of Non-Assessable Cost $437,644.25

City Share of Improvement Cost - Assessable

Outlot J      $8,217.64
Total Estimated City Share of Improvement $445,861.89 (74.3%)

BLUE



Engineering Memo - June 4, 2020
Page 3

SANITARY SEWER

Trunk Assessments Due to Trunk $47,439.07

WATER DISTRIBUTION

Hydrant Costs $15,000.00
Trunk Assessments $29,649.48
Due to Trunk $14,649.48

Should Council order the improvements ahead, staff also recommends that Council pass
the resolution in Exhibit 2 declaring the City’s intent to bond for the surfacing and storm
water improvements. The maximum amount that may be bonded as stated in the
resolution is approximately 10% more than listed in the report.  

Exhibit 2 also includes the preliminary assessment roll for the improvements. 

2. PETITIONS FOR IMPROVEMENTS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CONTRACT

Petition for Extension of Water Main on North Crailsheim Road

The City has received the petition in Exhibit 3 for improvement of North Crailsheim
Road from Fox Farm Road to a point 600 feet south of the north line of the Southwest
Quarter of Section 22, Township 102 North, Range 40 West, Nobles County, Minnesota
by extension of the municipal water distribution system. The petition was submitted by
School District 518 and is for the extension of the water main needed to serve the new
intermediate school. As Council will recall, the water main extension needed for the
ALC/Gymnastics building did not extend south of that facility. Completion of the water
main loop south to Fox Farm Road will now be recommended. 

The petition executed by ISD 518 does represent over 35% of the property abutting the
improvement being petitioned for. Council may declare the petition adequate. 

Petition for Improvement of Cherrywood Addition and Adjacent Property by Storm
Sewer  

The City has also received the petition in Exhibit 3 for improvement of all or parts of
Cherrywood Addition together with that part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 28,
Township 102 North, Range 40 West, lying east of South Crailsheim Road and south of
Cherrywood Addition by extension of the municipal storm water collection and
management system. The petitioned improvement is to provide the storm water collection

BLUE



Engineering Memo - June 4, 2020
Page 4

and treatment system needed to allow completion of Cherrywood Addition as well as
provide urban drainage for the property immediately south of the subdivision. Although
the Cherrywood Addition has been platted, all of the public improvements required for
the subdivision have not been completed. In 2008, the storm sewer improvement being
petitioned for at this time was also petitioned for and ordered. A housing market upset
resulted in the development not being completed. The development contract ultimately
lapsed. A contract for the ordered storm sewer improvement was not awarded within one
year and therefore the action to order the improvement sunset. The developer is now
pursuing completion of the subdivision. 

 The petition executed by Kelly Properties of Worthington, Inc. Does represent over 35%
of the property within the drainage area of the improvement being petitioned for. Council
may declare the petition adequate. 

Professional Services for Completion of Reports, and Plans and Specifications

As with any assessable improvement, an initial step required is the preparation of a
feasibility report. Following receipt of the report, Council may order a hearing on the
proposed improvement. Preparation of plans and specifications will then be required
should Council Order the improvement following the hearing. At this time it is
recommended that the engineering services that may be required through preparation of
plans and specifications for both of the petitioned improvements be referred to the
consulting firm of Bolton and Menk, Inc. (BMI). A determination as to how construction
phase services may best be provided may be deferred at this time. 

Exhibit 3 includes a proposed contract with BMI. The contract has been reviewed by the
City Attorney, the City’s insurance agent, and the League of Minnesota Cities Risk
Management Attorney. The fee rates are ordinary for the services to be provided and are
proposed as not to exceed. 

Recommendation

Staff recommends that Council accept the two petitions, pass the two resolutions
Declaring Adequacy of Petition and Ordering Preparation of Feasibility Report on
Proposed Improvement, and authorize execution of the agreement with BMI. 

3. ADOPTION OF ADA TRANSITION PLAN FOR PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY

Council approved a draft of the proposed Americans with Disabilities Act  (ADA)
Transition Plan for Public Rights-of-Way at its May 11, 2020 meeting. The draft plan was
subsequently posted for public comment. In addition to soliciting comments through

BLUE



Engineering Memo - June 4, 2020
Page 5

advertisement in the official newspaper and online, the Active Living Plan (ALP) steering
committee and Client Community Services Inc. were emailed invitations to comment on
the draft plan. At this time, only comments from a staff member of the Southwest
Regional Development Commission (ALP committee member) have been received. The
comments pertained to clarification of trails versus walks and application of standards. To
improve the plan in regard to clarifying how trails are addressed versus walks, wording
was changed to clarify that the plan treats trails that are physically in, or for intended
purposes within, street rights-of-way the same. Trails are those defined as being
maintained fully by the City while other multi-use trails in rights-of-way are not classified
different than a sidewalk. The park trail through Olson Park has been classified as a park
feature. Map A has been changed to show classification and jurisdiction rather than
width. 

The comment regarding application of standards somewhat overlaps with the question
directed to staff at the time the draft report was presented. With the exception of delay of
truncated domes being the required tactile warning for the visually impaired, the basic
ADA requirements or rules have not changed. The basic requirements are not anticipated
to change, but if they do, a new transition plan may be required to address what changes
are adopted. What has evolved over the years since adoption of the ADA is the guidance
for applying the rules and the means to achieve compliance. Prior to development of the
Public Right of Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG) efforts to achieve compliance
often fell short. Wording in the plan has been changed to state that goals are to achieve
ADA compliance rather than meet standards. The standards to be used are PROWAG, as
adopted by the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT), in effect at the time
of an improvement.

Council’s adoption of the ADA Transition Plan for Public Rights-of-Way as presented in
Exhibit 4 is recommended. This recommendation is subject to receipt of any additional
comments.  

BLUE



EXHIBIT 1-1

BLUE



EXHIBIT 1-2

BLUE



EXHIBIT 1-3

BLUE



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06-         

ORDERING IMPROVEMENT AND PREPARATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-05-25 of the City Council of the City of Worthington,
adopted on May 11, 2020, fixed a date for a council hearing on the proposed improvement of the
following described streets by necessary grading and base, and by bituminous surfacing:

Aspen Drive, Campbell Boulevard, Sterling Avenue, and Sutherland Drive 
within the proposed plat of Glenwood Heights Second Addition; 

and

WHEREAS, ten days' mailed notice and two weeks' published notice of the hearing was
given, and said hearing was held on June 8, 2020, at which all persons desiring to be heard were
given an opportunity to be heard thereon.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA:

1. Such improvement is necessary, cost-effective, and feasible as detailed in the
feasibility report received on May 11, 2020.

2. Such improvement is hereby ordered as proposed in the council resolution
adopted on May 11, 2020.

3.  Bolton & Menk, Inc. is hereby designated as the engineer for such improvement
and shall prepare plans and specifications for the making of such improvement.

4. The City Council declares its official intent to reimburse itself for the cost of the
improvement from the proceeds of tax exempt bonds.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Worthington, Minnesota, this the 8th day of
June, 2020.

(SEAL)

___________________________________
     Mike Kuhle, Mayor

     
 
Attest: ___________________________________

           Mindy L. Eggers, City Clerk

EXHIBIT 2-1

BLUE



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06-                 

ORDERING IMPROVEMENT AND PREPARATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2020-05-27 of the City Council of the City of Worthington, adopted
May 11, 2020, fixed a date for a council hearing on the proposed improvement of following described
area by extension of the storm water collection and management system, by extension of the municipal
wastewater collection system, and by extension of the municipal water distribution system:

That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, Township 102 North, Range 40 West, Nobles County,
Minnesota, described as: 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 28; thence South 89
degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds West, (Minnesota County Coordinate System - Nobles
County Zone - HARN NAD83 - 1996), along the north line of the Northeast Quarter of
said Section 28, a distance of 885.79 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16
seconds East, a distance of 856.00 feet to the west right-of-way line of South Crailsheim
Road (County State Aid Highway No. 10); thence continuing South 00 degrees 39
minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 450.96 feet to the northeasterly corner of
Glenwood Heights First Addition, according to the plat thereof on file and of record with
the Nobles County Recorder, Minnesota; thence South 89 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds
West, along the northerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of
219.69 feet; thence North 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds West, along said northerly
line, a distance of 459.69 feet to the most northerly corner of said Glenwood Heights
First Addition, said point being the point of beginning; thence South 44 degrees 20
minutes 44 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 130.00 feet; thence
South 19 degrees 15 minutes 07 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of
77.30 feet; thence South 42 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds West, along said northerly
line, a distance of 93.17 feet; thence South 57 degrees 21 minutes 04 seconds West,
along said northerly line, a distance of 142.63 feet to the northwesterly corner of said
Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East,
along the westerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 130.84
feet; thence South 09 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West, along said westerly line, a
distance of 78.97 feet; thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along said
westerly line, a distance of 132.99 feet; thence North 66 degrees 50 minutes 00 seconds
East, along said westerly line, a distance of 185.98 feet; thence North 60 degrees 45
minutes 04 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 164.63 feet; thence
South 32 degrees 17 minutes 32 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of
120.25 feet; thence South 16 degrees 24 minutes 31 seconds East, along said westerly
line, a distance of 72.67 feet; thence South 20 degrees 40 minutes 38 seconds East, along
said westerly line, a distance of 156.13 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16
seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 713.27 feet to the southwesterly
corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 50
seconds West, along the westerly extension of the southerly line of said Glenwood
Heights First Addition, a distance of 107.17 feet; thence South 00 degrees 13 minutes 12
seconds East, a distance of 120.01 feet to the southeast corner of the West Half of the
Northeast Quarter of said Section 28; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 15 seconds
West, along the East - West center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1325.82 feet to
the Center of said Section 28; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes 04 seconds West,
along the North - South center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1775.28 feet to the 

EXHIBIT 2-2

BLUE



Resolution No.  2020-06-
Ordering Improvements
Page 2 of 2.

southwest corner of the North 856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28;
thence North 89 degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds East, along the south line of the North
856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of 1085.48 feet to the
point of intersection with a line which bears North 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds
West from the point of beginning; thence South 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East,
a distance of 178.64 feet to the point of beginning. 

and

WHEREAS, ten days' mailed notice and two weeks' published notice of the hearing was
given, and said hearing was held on June 8, 2020, at which all persons desiring to be heard were
given an opportunity to be heard thereon.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA:

1. Such improvement by extension of the storm water collection and management
system, by extension of the municipal wastewater collection system, and by extension of the
municipal water distribution system is necessary, cost-effective, and feasible as detailed in the
feasibility report received on May 11, 2020.

2. Such improvement by extension of the storm water collection and management
system, by extension of the municipal wastewater collection system, and by extension of the
municipal water distribution system is hereby ordered as proposed in the council resolution
adopted on May 11, 2020.

3. Bolton & Menk, Inc., is hereby designated as the engineer for these
improvements and shall prepare plans and specifications for the making of said improvements.

4. The City Council declares its official intent to reimburse itself for the costs of
the improvements from the proceeds of a tax exempt bond.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Worthington, Minnesota, this the 8th day of
June, 2020.

(SEAL)

Mike Kuhle, Mayor

Attest:
Mindy L. Eggers, City Clerk

EXHIBIT 2-3

BLUE



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06-        

RELATING TO FINANCING OF CERTAIN PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 
BY THE CITY OF WORTHINGTON; ESTABLISHING COMPLIANCE WITH REIMBURSEMENT

BOND REGULATIONS UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE

WHEREAS, The Internal Revenue Service has issued Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax
Regulations (the "Regulations") dealing with the issuance of bonds, all or a portion of the proceeds of
which are to be used to reimburse the City for project expenditures made by the City prior to the date of
issuance of the bonds.

WHEREAS, The Regulations generally require that the City, as issuer of the bonds, make a
declaration of its official intent to reimburse itself for such prior expenditures out of the proceeds of a
subsequently issued series of bonds within 60 days after payment of the expenditures, that the bonds be
issued and the reimbursement allocation be made from the proceeds of such bonds within the
reimbursement period (as defined in the Regulations), and that the expenditures reimbursed be capital
expenditures or costs of issuance of the bonds.

WHEREAS, The City desires to comply with requirements of the Regulations with respect to
certain public improvement projects to be undertaken within the City.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (THE "COUNCIL") OF
THE CITY OF WORTHINGTON (THE "CITY"), MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City expects to make original expenditures with respect to the following described
projects prior to the issuance of reimbursement bonds, and the City reasonably expects to issue
reimbursement bonds for such projects in the maximum principal amount shown below:

Maximum Amount of
Bonds Expected to be

Project Issued for Project

Improvement of Aspen Drive, Campbell Boulevard,               $189,000
Sterling Avenue, and Sutherland Drive within the
proposed plat of Glenwood Heights Second Addition
by necessary grading and base, and by bituminous surfacing.

Improvement of that part of the Northeast Quarter of                   $660,000 
Section 28, Township 102 North, Range 40 West, Nobles 
County, Minnesota, described as: Commencing at the Northeast
corner of said Section 28; thence South 89 degrees 22 minutes
48 seconds West, (Minnesota County Coordinate System -
Nobles County Zone - HARN NAD83 - 1996), along the north
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of
885.79 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds
East, a distance of 856.00 feet to the west right-of-way line of
South Crailsheim Road (County State Aid Highway No. 10);
thence continuing South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East,
a distance of 450.96 feet to the northeasterly corner of
Glenwood Heights First Addition, according to the plat thereof 

EXHIBIT 2-4

BLUE



Resolution No. 2020-06-
Relating to Financing . . . 
Page 2 of 2.

on file and of record with the Nobles County Recorder,
Minnesota; thence South 89 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds
West, along the northerly line of said Glenwood Heights First
Addition, a distance of 219.69 feet; thence North 45 degrees 39
minutes 16 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of
459.69 feet to the most northerly corner of said Glenwood
Heights First Addition, said point being the point of beginning;
thence South 44 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds West, along said
northerly line, a distance of 130.00 feet; thence South 19 degrees
15 minutes 07 seconds West, along said northerly line, a
distance of 77.30 feet; thence South 42 degrees 53 minutes 58
seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 93.17 feet;
thence South 57 degrees 21 minutes 04 seconds West, along said
northerly line, a distance of 142.63 feet to the northwesterly
corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South
18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along the westerly line
of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 130.84
feet; thence South 09 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West,
along said westerly line, a distance of 78.97 feet; thence South
18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along said westerly line,
a distance of 132.99 feet; thence North 66 degrees 50 minutes 00
seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 185.98 feet;
thence North 60 degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds East, along said
westerly line, a distance of 164.63 feet; thence South 32 degrees
17 minutes 32 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance
of 120.25 feet; thence South 16 degrees 24 minutes 31 seconds
East, along said westerly line, a distance of 72.67 feet; thence
South 20 degrees 40 minutes 38 seconds East, along said
westerly line, a distance of 156.13 feet; thence South 00 degrees
39 minutes 16 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance
of 713.27 feet to the southwesterly corner of said Glenwood
Heights First Addition; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 50
seconds West, along the westerly extension of the southerly line
of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 107.17
feet; thence South 00 degrees 13 minutes 12 seconds East, a
distance of 120.01 feet to the southeast corner of the West Half
of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28; thence South 88
degrees 59 minutes 15 seconds West, along the East - West
center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1325.82 feet to the
Center of said Section 28; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes
04 seconds West, along the North - South center line of said
Section 28, a distance of 1775.28 feet to the southwest corner of
the North 856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section
28; thence North 89 degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds East, along
the south line of the North 856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter
of said Section 28, a distance of 1085.48 feet to the point of
intersection with a line which bears North 45 degrees 39 minutes 

EXHIBIT 2-5

BLUE



Resolution No. 2020-06-
Relating to Financing . . . 
Page 3 of 3.

16 seconds West from the point of beginning; thence South 45
degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 178.64 feet to
the point of beginning by extension of the storm water collection
and management system.

2. Other than (i) de minimis amounts permitted to be reimbursed pursuant to Section 1.150-
2(f)(1) of the Regulations or (ii) expenditures constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in Section
1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, the City will not seek reimbursement for any original expenditures with
respect to the foregoing projects paid more than 60 days prior to the date of adoption of this resolution.  
All original expenditures for which reimbursement is sought will be capital expenditures or costs of
issuance of the reimbursement bonds.  

3. As of the date hereof, there are no City funds reserved, pledged, allocated on a long term
basis or otherwise set aside (or reasonably expected to be reserved, pledged, allocated on a long term
basis or otherwise set aside) to provide permanent financing for the original expenditures related to the
projects, other than pursuant to the issuance of the reimbursement bonds.  Consequently, it is not
expected that the issuance of the reimbursement bonds will result in the creation of any replacement
proceeds.

4. The City's financial officer shall be responsible for making the "reimbursement
allocations" described in the Regulations, being generally the transfer of the appropriate amount of
proceeds of the reimbursement bonds to reimburse the source of temporary financing used by the City to
make payment of the original expenditures relating to the projects.  Each reimbursement allocation shall
be made within 30 days of the date of issuance of the reimbursement bonds, shall be evidenced by an
entry on the official books and records of the City maintained for the reimbursement bonds and shall
specifically identify the original expenditures being reimbursed.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Worthington, Minnesota, this the 8th day of June,
2020.

(SEAL)

        Mike Kuhle, Mayor

Attest
Mindy L. Eggers, City Clerk

EXHIBIT 2-6

BLUE



Estimated Assessment Roll Glenwood Heights Second Addition June 8, 2020
Water Main Trunk

Property Owner Legal Description Abutting Street

Assessable 
Adjusted 

Frontage in Feet
 Assessable 

Rate Per Foot
Assessment 

Amount
Assessable Area 
in Square Feet

 Assessable 
Rate Per     

Square Foot
Assessment 

Amount
Assessable 

Area in Acres
Assessment 

Amount
Assessable 

Area in Acres Assessment

COMBINED 
TOTAL 

ASSESSMENT

Glenwood Hghts Second Add'n
City of Worthington Lot 1, Block 1 127.9 @ $40.177 $5,138.64 21,255.0 @ $0.1550 $3,294.53 0.488 @ $2,585.41 $1,261.68 0.488 @ $4,136.65 $2,018.69 $11,713.54

City of Worthington Lot 2, Block 1 110.0 @ $40.177 $4,419.47 24,246.0 @ $0.1550 $3,758.13 0.557 @ $2,585.41 $1,440.07 0.557 @ $4,136.65 $2,304.11 $11,921.78

City of Worthington Lot 3, Block 1 110.0 @ $40.177 $4,419.47 30,013.0 @ $0.1550 $4,652.02 0.689 @ $2,585.41 $1,781.35 0.689 @ $4,136.65 $2,850.15 $13,702.99

City of Worthington Lot 4, Block 1 Aspen Drive 144.0 @ $40.177 $5,785.49 34,134.0 @ $0.1550 $5,290.77 0.784 @ $2,585.41 $2,026.96 0.784 @ $4,136.65 $3,243.13 $21,051.08

Sterling Avenue 117.1 @ $40.177 $4,704.73 117.2 $4,708.74

261.1 $10,490.22

City of Worthington Lot 5, Block 1 181.0 @ $40.177 $7,272.04 34,749.0 @ $0.1550 $5,386.10 0.798 @ $2,585.41 $2,063.16 0.798 @ $4,136.65 $3,301.05 $18,022.35

City of Worthington Lot 6, Block 1 178.6 @ $40.177 $7,175.61 38,539.0 @ $0.1550 $5,973.55 0.885 @ $2,585.41 $2,288.09 0.885 @ $4,136.65 $3,660.94 $19,098.19

City of Worthington Lot 7, Block 1 133.9 @ $40.177 $5,379.70 12,446.7 @ $0.1550 $1,929.24 0.518 @ $2,585.41 $1,339.24 0.518 @ $4,136.65 $2,142.78 $11,284.55

10,135.3 @ $0.0487 $493.59

22,582.0 $2,422.83

City of Worthington Lot 8, Block 1 129.9 @ $40.177 $5,218.99 7,367.5 @ $0.1550 $1,141.96 0.491 @ $2,585.41 $1,269.44 0.491 @ $4,136.65 $2,031.10 $10,344.43

14,023.5 @ $0.0487 $682.94

21,391.0 $1,824.90

City of Worthington Lot 1, Block 2 Sterling Avenue 139.8 @ $40.177 $5,616.74 2,430.0 @ $0.1550 $376.65 0.581 @ $2,585.41 $1,502.12 0.581 @ $4,136.65 $2,403.39 $14,568.82

Aspen Drive 88.5 @ $40.177 $3,555.66 88.6 $3,559.68 22,880.0 @ $0.0487 $1,114.26

228.3 $9,172.40 25,310.0 $1,490.91

City of Worthington Lot 2, Block 2 121.2 @ $40.177 $4,869.45 3,985.5 @ $0.1550 $617.75 0.496 @ $2,585.41 $1,282.36 0.496 @ $4,136.65 $2,051.78 $9,679.36

17,618.5 @ $0.0487 $858.02

21,604.0 $1,475.77

City of Worthington Lot 3, Block 2 110.0 @ $40.177 $4,419.47 4,279.1 @ $0.1550 $663.26 0.455 @ $2,585.41 $1,176.36 0.455 @ $4,136.65 $1,882.18 $8,897.14

15,520.9 @ $0.0487 $755.87

19,800.0 $1,419.13

City of Worthington Lot 4, Block 2 110.0 @ $40.177 $4,419.47 4,323.6 @ $0.1550 $670.16 0.455 @ $2,585.41 $1,176.36 0.455 @ $4,136.65 $1,882.18 $8,901.87

15,476.4 @ $0.0487 $753.70

19,800.0 $1,423.86

City of Worthington Lot 5, Block 2 110.0 @ $40.177 $4,419.47 4,005.3 @ $0.1550 $620.82 0.455 @ $2,585.41 $1,176.36 0.455 @ $4,136.65 $1,882.18 $8,868.03

15,794.7 @ $0.0487 $769.20

19,800.0 $1,390.02

City of Worthington Lot 6, Block 2 120.5 @ $40.177 $4,841.33 7,119.5 @ $0.1550 $1,103.52 0.548 @ $2,585.41 $1,416.80 0.548 @ $4,136.65 $2,266.88 $10,445.06

16,766.5 @ $0.0487 $816.53

23,886.0 $1,920.05

City of Worthington Lot 1, Block 3 Campbell Blvd 120.0 @ $40.177 $4,821.24 17,100.0 @ $0.1550 $2,650.50 0.393 @ $2,585.41 $1,016.07 0.393 @ $4,136.65 $1,625.70 $12,974.11

Sutherland Drive 71.2 @ $40.177 $2,860.60 71.3 $2,864.62

191.2 $7,681.84

City of Worthington Lot 2, Block 3 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 3, Block 3 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 4, Block 3 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 1, Block 4 Campbell Blvd 120.0 @ $40.177 $4,821.24 17,100.0 @ $0.1550 $2,650.50 0.393 @ $2,585.41 $1,016.07 0.393 @ $4,136.65 $1,625.70 $12,974.11

Sutherland Drive 71.2 @ $40.177 $2,860.60 71.3 $2,864.62

191.2 $7,681.84

City of Worthington Lot 2, Block 4 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 3, Block 4 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 4, Block 4 100.0 @ $40.177 $4,017.70 14,250.0 @ $0.1550 $2,208.75 0.327 @ $2,585.41 $845.43 0.327 @ $4,136.65 $1,352.68 $8,424.56

City of Worthington Lot 1, Block 5 67.4 @ $40.177 $2,707.93 3,994.4 @ $0.1550 $619.13 0.092 @ $2,585.41 $237.86 0.092 @ $4,136.65 $380.57 $3,945.49

City of Worthington Lot 2, Block 5 65.0 @ $40.177 $2,611.51 3,876.4 @ $0.1550 $600.84 0.089 @ $2,585.41 $230.10 0.089 @ $4,136.65 $368.16 $3,810.61

City of Worthington Lot 3, Block 5 65.0 @ $40.177 $2,611.51 3,877.7 @ $0.1550 $601.04 0.089 @ $2,585.41 $230.10 0.089 @ $4,136.65 $368.16 $3,810.81

City of Worthington Lot 4, Block 5 65.0 @ $40.177 $2,611.51 3,879.0 @ $0.1550 $601.25 0.089 @ $2,585.41 $230.10 0.089 @ $4,136.65 $368.16 $3,811.02

City of Worthington Lot 5, Block 5 65.0 @ $40.177 $2,611.51 3,880.3 @ $0.1550 $601.45 0.089 @ $2,585.41 $230.10 0.089 @ $4,136.65 $368.16 $3,811.22

City of Worthington Lot 6, Block 5 75.0 @ $40.177 $3,013.28 3,117.6 @ $0.1550 $483.23 0.072 @ $2,585.41 $186.15 0.072 @ $4,136.65 $297.84 $3,980.50

City of Worthington Outlot J 379.2 @ $40.177 $15,235.12 53,017.0 @ $0.1550 $8,217.64 N/A N/A @ $4,136.65 $23,452.76

City of Worthington Outlot I 135.0 @ $40.177 $5,423.90 493,977.8 @ $0.1550 $76,566.56 0.000 @ $2,585.41 $0.00 0.000 @ $4,136.65 $0.000 $81,990.46

281,900.3 @ $0.0487 $13,728.54 0.000 @ $2,585.41 $0.00 0.000 @ $4,136.65 $0.000 $13,728.54

3,931.4              $157,951.88 348.4 $13,997.66 1,328,329.5 $162,295.75 11.468 $29,649.48 11.468 $47,439.07 $397,336.18

Assessable 
Rate Per Acre

Assessable 
Rate Per Acre

Sanitary Sewer Trunk

Total Estimated Assessment

Lot Allowances

Paving Storm Sewer

EXHIBIT 2-7

BLUE



Glenwood Heights Second Addition
Summary of Estimated Paving Cost

June 8, 2020

Estimated Base Rate Determining Cost $171,948.00
Total Rate Determining Frontage in feet 4,279.80
Estimated Assessable Rate Per Foot $40.177

Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

"Private" Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Lots to be sold
Proposed Assessable Frontage in feet 3,417.2
Estimated Assessments Receivable $137,292.86

City/WPU Share of Improvement Cost
Proposed Assessable Frontage in feet 135.0
Estimated Assessments Receivable $5,423.90

Total Estimated Assessments Receivable: $142,716.76

City Share of Improvement Cost

Non-Assessable
Proposed Non-Assessable Rate Determining Frontages in feet 348.40
Estimated Amount $13,997.66

Rounding Adjustment -$1.54
Total Estimated City Share of Non-Assessable Cost $13,996.12

Assessable
Outlot I Proposed Assessable Frontages in feet 379.2
Estimated Amount $15,235.12

Estimated City Share of Improvement: $29,231.24

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF PAVING IMPROVEMENT: $171,948.00

ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENT

DISTRIBUTION OF ESTIMATED COST

EXHIBIT 2-8

BLUE



Estimated Cost of Improvement $599,940.00

Rate Calculations
Rate Determining Area in Square Feet- See Attached Rate Calculation Summary

Actual Base Rate per Square Feet Subdistricts 3 and 4 $0.0487
Subdistricts 5 - 8 $0.1550

Contract Date: Summer 2020

Estimated Contract Date ENR Index: 11,624

Base ENR Index, July 1975 2248

Base Rate, July 1975 $0.03

Maximum Assessable Base Rate per Square Feet $0.1550

"Private" Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Lots to be sold
Assessable Area in Square Feet 499,434.4

Estimated Assessments Receivable $63,783.01

City/WPU Share of Improvement Cost
Assessable Area in Square Feet 775,878.1

Estimated Assessments Receivable $90,295.10

Total Estimated Assessments Receivable: $154,078.11

City Share of Improvement Cost
Non-assessable

Public Rights-of-Way - Subdistricts 3 and 4 2,377.4 ' @ 0.0487 $115.78
Public Rights-of-Way - Subdistricts 5 - 8 154,900.6 ' @ 0.1550 $24,009.59
Above Rate Limit and Non-assessable Subdistricts $413,673.18
Rounding Adjustment -$154.30

Total City Share of Non-Assessable Cost $437,644.25

Assessable
Outlot J 53,017.0 sq ft @ 0.1550 $8,217.64

Total Estimated City Share of Improvement: $445,861.89

Total Estimated Cost of Improvement $599,940.00

ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENT

DISTRIBUTION OF ESTIMATED COST

Glenwood Heights Second Addition
Summary of Estimated Storm Sewer Cost

June 8, 2020

EXHIBIT 2-9

BLUE



Trunk Cost of Improvement $15,000.00
Lateral Cost $0.00
Estimated Cost of Current Improvement $15,000.00
Trunk Cost Attributable to Prior Improvements $14,649.48
Total Cost of Improvement Including Prior Improvements $29,649.48

Rate Calculations

Assessable Trunk Units of Area in Acres 11.468
Contract Date: Summer 2020
Estimated Contract Date ENR Index: 11,624
Base ENR Index, July 1975 2248
Base Rate, July 1975 $500
Assessable Trunk Rate per Acre $2,585.41

Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Assessable Units in Acres 11.468
Assessments Receivable $29,649.48

$29,649.48

Water Main Trunk Account

Assessable Trunk Costs $29,649.48
Trunk Costs of Current Improvement $15,000.00
Due to Trunk Account for Prior Improvements $14,649.48

City Share of Improvement Cost

Total City Share of Improvement $0.00

Total Estimated Cost of Improvement $29,649.48

Glenwood Heights Second Addition
Summary of Water Main Trunk Improvement Estimated Cost

June 8, 2020

Total Assessments Receivable

ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENT

DISTRIBUTION OF ESTIMATED COST

EXHIBIT 2-10

BLUE



Trunk Cost of Improvement $0.00
Lateral Cost $0.00
Estimated Cost of Current Improvement $0.00
Due to Trunk Account for Prior Improvements $47,439.07
Total Cost of Improvement Including Prior Improvements $47,439.07

Rate Calculations
Assessable Trunk Units of Area in Acres 11.468

Contract Date: Summer 2020

Estimated Contract Date ENR Index: 11,624

Base ENR Index, July 1975 2248

Base Rate, July 1975 $800

Assessable Trunk Rate per Acre $4,136.65

Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Assessable Units in Acres 11.468

Assessments Receivable $47,439.07

$47,439.07

Sanitary Sewer Trunk Account

Assessable Trunk Costs $47,439.07
Trunk Cost of Current Improvement $0.00
Due to Trunk Account for Prior Improvements $47,439.07

City Share of Improvement Cost

Total City Share of Improvement $0.00

Total Estimated Cost of Improvement $47,439.07

ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENT

DISTRIBUTION OF ESTIMATED COST

Total Assessments Receivable

Glenwood Heights Second Addition
Summary of Sanitary Sewer Trunk Improvement Estimated Cost

June 8, 2020

EXHIBIT 2-11

BLUE



Estimated Assessment Roll
Glenwood Heights Second Addition
Combined Summary

Paving Storm Water Main Sanitary Sewer Total

Property Owner Share of Improvement Cost

Proposed Assessable Frontages 3552.20 Feet
Proposed Assessable Acres 11.47 Acres 11.47 Acres
Proposed Assessable Square Feet  1,275,312.50    Sq Ft

$142,716.76 $154,078.11 $29,649.48 $47,439.07 $373,883.42

Trunk Account
Assessable Trunk Costs - - - - - - $29,649.48 $47,439.07 $77,088.55
Trunk Costs of Current Improvement - - - - - - $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00
Due to Trunk Account for Prior Improvements - - - - - - $14,649.48 $47,439.07 $62,088.55

City Share of Improvement Cost
Proposed Non-assessable Frontage 348.40              Feet 0.00 0.00 0.00

and Estimated Amount $13,997.66 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,997.66
Proposed Public Right-of-way Frontage 0.00 157,278.00       - - - - - - 

and Estimated Amount $0.00 $24,125.37 $24,125.37
Additional Due to Rate Differential $413,673.18 $0.00 $0.00 $413,673.18
Rounding Adjustment -$1.54 -$154.30 $0.00 $0.00 -$155.84
Total City Share of Non-Assessable Cost $13,996.12 $437,644.25 $0.00 $0.00 $451,640.37
Proposed Assessable Frontage or Area 379.20              Feet 53,017.00         Sq Ft

and Estimated Amount $15,235.12 $8,217.64 $0.00 $0.00 $23,452.76

Total Estimated City Share of Improvement $29,231.24 $445,861.89 $0.00 $0.00 $475,093.13

$171,948.00 $599,940.00 $29,649.48 $47,439.07 $848,976.55

June 8, 2020

Estimated Assessments Receivable

Total Estimated Cost of Improvement

EXHIBIT 2-12

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-1

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-2

BLUE



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06-                   

DECLARING ADEQUACY OF PETITION AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF
FEASIBILITY REPORT ON PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WORTHINGTON,
MINNESOTA:

1. A certain petition requesting the improvement of North Crailsheim Road (CSAH
10) from Fox Farm Road to a point 600 feet south of the north line of the Southwest Quarter of
Section 22, Township 102 North, Range 40 West, Nobles County, Minnesota by extension of the
municipal water distribution system, received on May 26, 2020, and filed with the City Council
on June 8, 2020, is hereby declared to be signed by the required percentage of the owners of the
property affected thereby.  This declaration is made in conformity to Minnesota Statutes, section
429.035.

2. The petition is hereby referred to the firm of Bolton & Menk, Inc. for study, and
the firm is instructed to report to the council with all convenient speed advising the council in a
preliminary way as to whether the proposed improvement is necessary, cost-effective, and
feasible; whether it should best be made as proposed or in connection with some other
improvement; the estimated cost of the improvement as recommended; and a description of the
methodology used to calculate individual assessments for affected parcels.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Worthington, Minnesota, this the 8th day of
June, 2020.

(SEAL)

       
         Mike Kuhle, Mayor

Attest
Mindy L. Eggers, City Clerk

EXHIBIT 3-3

BLUE



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06-               

DECLARING ADEQUACY OF PETITION AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF
FEASIBILITY REPORT ON PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WORTHINGTON,
MINNESOTA:

1. A certain petition requesting the improvement of Cherrywood Addition together
with that part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 28, Township 102 North, Range 40 West, lying
east of South Crailsheim Road and south of Cherrywood Addition, all in the City of
Worthington, Nobles, County Minnesota, or parts thereof, by extension of the municipal storm
water collection and management system, received on April 23, 2020, and filed with the City
Council on June 8, 2020, is hereby declared to be signed by the required percentage of the
owners of the property affected thereby.  This declaration is made in conformity to Minnesota
Statutes, section 429.035.

2. The petition is hereby referred to Bolton & Menk, Inc. for study, and the firm is
instructed to report to the council with all convenient speed advising the council in a preliminary
way as to whether the proposed improvement is necessary, cost-effective, and feasible, and as to
whether it should best be made as proposed or in connection with some other improvement, and
the estimated cost of the improvement as recommended.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Worthington, Minnesota, this the 8th day of
June, 2020.

(SEAL)

       Mike Kuhle, Mayor

Attest:
Mindy L. Eggers, City Clerk

EXHIBIT 3-4

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-5

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-6

BLUE



  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

EXHIBIT 3-7

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-8

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-9

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-10

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-11

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-12

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-13

BLUE



EXHIBIT 3-14

BLUE



Preliminary Design Services 

EXHIBIT 3-15

EXHIBIT  I

BLUE



Final Design, Permitting and Bidding Services 

Proposed Fees 

EXHIBIT 3-16

BLUE



Schedule 

EXHIBIT 3-17

BLUE



 

 

 

 

         Minnesota 

 

ADA Transition Plan 

for 

Public Rights-of-Way  

EXHIBIT 4-1

BLUE



 

Introduction 

Transition Plan Need and Purpose 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), enacted on July 26, 1990, is a civil rights law 
prohibiting discrimination against individuals on the basis of disability.   ADA consists of five 
titles outlining protections in the following areas: 

1. Employment 
2. State and local government services 
3. Public accommodations 
4. Telecommunications  
5. Miscellaneous Provisions  

 
Title II of ADA pertains to the programs, activities and services public entities provide.   As a 
provider of public transportation services and programs, the City of Worthington must comply 
with this section of the Act as it specifically applies to public service agencies.  Title II of ADA 
provides that, “…no qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason of such disability, be 
excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the services, programs, or activities 
of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such entity.”  (42 USC. Sec. 12132; 28 
CFR. Sec. 35.130)   

As required by Title II of ADA, 28 CFR. Part 35 Sec. 35.105 and Sec. 35.150, the City of 
Worthington has conducted a self-evaluation of its facilities within public rights-of-way and has 
developed this Transition Plan detailing how the organization will ensure that all of those 
facilities are accessible to all individuals. This document serves as a supplement to the City of 
Worthington’s existing Transition Plan covering buildings, services, programs and activities. 

ADA and its Relationship to Other Laws 
Title II of ADA is companion legislation to two previous federal statutes and regulations: the 
Architectural Barriers Acts of 1968 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  

The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 is a Federal law that requires facilities designed, built, 
altered or leased with Federal funds to be accessible. The Architectural Barriers Act marks one 
of the first efforts to ensure access to the built environment. 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 is a Federal law that protects qualified individuals 
from discrimination based on their disability. The nondiscrimination requirements of the law 
apply to employers and organizations that receive financial assistance from any Federal 

EXHIBIT 4-2

BLUE



department or agency.  Title II of ADA extended this coverage to all state and local government 
entities, regardless of whether they receive federal funding or not.   

Agency Requirements 
Under Title II, the City of Worthington must meet these general requirements: 

• Must operate their programs so that, when viewed in their entirety, the programs are 
accessible to and useable by individuals with disabilities (28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.150).   

• May not refuse to allow a person with a disability to participate in a service, program or 
activity simply because the person has a disability (28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.130 (a).   

• Must make reasonable modifications in policies, practices and procedures that deny 
equal access to individuals with disabilities unless a fundamental alteration in the 
program would result (28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.130(b) (7).   

• May not provide services or benefits to individuals with disabilities through programs 
that are separate or different unless the separate or different measures are necessary to 
ensure that benefits and services are equally effective (28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.130(b)(iv) & (d).   

• Must take appropriate steps to ensure that communications with applicants, 
participants and members of the public with disabilities are as effective as 
communications with others (29 C.F.R. Sec. 35.160(a). 

• Must designate at least one responsible employee to coordinate ADA compliance [28 
CFR Sec. 35.107(a)]. This person is often referred to as the "ADA Coordinator." The 
public entity must provide the ADA coordinator's name, office address, and telephone 
number to all interested individuals [28 CFR Sec. 35.107(a)].  

• Must provide notice of ADA requirements. All public entities, regardless of size, must 
provide information about the rights and protections of Title II to applicants, 
participants, beneficiaries, employees, and other interested persons [28 CFR Sec. 
35,106].  The notice must include the identification of the employee serving as the ADA 
coordinator and must provide this information on an ongoing basis [28 CFR Sec. 
104.8(a)].   

• Must establish a grievance procedure.  Public entities must adopt and publish grievance 
procedures providing for prompt and equitable resolution of complaints [28 CFR Sec. 
35.107(b)]. This requirement provides for a timely resolution of all problems or conflicts 
related to ADA compliance before they escalate to litigation and/or the federal 
complaint process.  

This document has been created to specifically cover accessibility within the public rights-of-
way and does not include information on City programs, practices, or building facilities not 
related to public rights-of-way.  

EXHIBIT 4-3

BLUE



Self-Evaluation 

Overview 
The City of Worthington is required, under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
and 28CFR35.105, to perform a self-evaluation of its current transportation infrastructure 
policies, practices, and programs. This self-evaluation will identify what policies and practices 
impact accessibility and examine how the City implements these policies. The goal of the self-
evaluation is to verify that, in implementing the City policies and practices, the City is providing 
accessibility and not adversely affecting the full participation of individuals with disabilities. 

The self-evaluation also examines the condition of the City’s Pedestrian Circulation 
Route/Pedestrian Access Route (PCR/PAR) and identifies potential need for PCR/PAR 
infrastructure improvements. This will include the sidewalks, curb ramps, bicycle/pedestrian 
trails, and traffic control signals that are located within the City’s rights-of-way. For the purpose 
of this plan, City rights-of-way include those County State Aid Highways that the City is 
responsible for providing maintenance of pursuant to written maintenance agreement with 
Nobles County. Other County State Aid Highways and state highway rights-of-ways are not 
included. Trails located in parks or other city properties in lieu of being in a corresponding right-
of-way are included as walks and trails within right-of-way. Any barriers to accessibility 
identified in the self-evaluation and the remedy to the identified barrier are set out in this 
transition plan. 

Summary 
In 2019, the City of Worthington conducted an inventory of pedestrian facilities within its public 
rights-of-way consisting of the evaluation of the following facilities: 

• 47.8 miles of sidewalks 
• 865 curb ramps 
• 2.6 miles of trails 
• 1 traffic control signal 

The trails and walks identified above are treated as the same for the purpose of this transition 
plan. These trails, which are also shown in Appendix A, are those trails maintained by the City 
and exclude multi-use trails partially maintained by the abutting owners. 

Graphical presentation on how these facilities relate to ADA standards is found in Appendix A 
and will be updated periodically.   

In addition to those pedestrian facilities located within City controlled rights-of-way, the 
following Worthington Parks, Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) and Nobles 

EXHIBIT 4-4

BLUE



County walks and trails are located within the City. These are listed for informational purposes 
only and are not included in the City’s transition plan.  

Worthington Parks 

• .5 miles of sidewalk 
• 1.2 miles of trails 

 

Nobles County 

• .04 miles of sidewalks 
• 2.2 miles of trails 

 
MnDOT 

• 2.5 miles of trails 
• 1.8 miles of sidewalks 

 

Policies and Practices 

Previous Practices 
Since the adoption of the ADA, the City of Worthington has striven to provide accessible 
pedestrian features as part of the City’s capital improvement projects.  As additional 
information was made available as to the methods of providing accessible pedestrian features, 
the City updated their procedures to accommodate these methods. 

After 1990 and prior to development of the current Accessible Public Rights-of-Way Guidelines 
(PROWAG), the City had replaced curbs at all identified street crosswalks with curb ramps in a 
manner found to be consistent with ADA requirements and guidance at the time of 
replacement. None of the initial replacements included truncated dome panels but typically 
included distinctively textured surfaces near the street edge. Curb ramps replaced after about 
2001 included truncated panels; however, the ramps may not meet current PROWAG. At this 
time about 40% of curb ramps include truncated dome tactile warning panels. Only ramps 
completed in the past few years are expected to meet all current PROWAG. Abrupt vertical 
offsets and gutter inslope/backslope deficiencies are likely in all ramps except those recently 
replaced or constructed. Abrupt vertical offsets are seen as a possible deficiency developing in 

EXHIBIT 4-5

BLUE



even recently constructed ramps except those constructed in compliance with contemporary 
MnDOT standards.  

In general, past practices include replacing deficient curb ramps: 

At the time a street improvement, including overlays, extends through a crosswalk. 

At the time any portion of a ramp, including its landing, is removed and replaced due to 
ordinary deterioration.  

At the time any portion of a ramp, including its landing, are removed and replaced as 
part of a utility installation. Private utilities are required to restore a ramp to PROWAG, 
however, the City provides necessary truncated dome panels. Ramp construction 
requiring a change in street geometry and/or additional right-of-way are only required 
to be restored as close to PROWAG as possible without the street or right-of-way 
changes.  

 

 

Policy 
The City of Worthington’s goal is to continue to provide accessible pedestrian design features 
as part of the City’s capital improvement projects. The City has established ADA design 
standards and procedures as listed in Appendix F.  These standards and procedures will be kept 
up to date with MnDOT standards unless other nationwide and/or local best management 
practices are found to provide better performance. 

The City will consider and respond to all accessibility improvement requests. All accessibility 
improvements that have been deemed reasonable will be scheduled consistent with 
transportation priorities. The City will coordinate with external agencies to ensure that all new 
or altered pedestrian facilities within the City’s jurisdiction are ADA compliant to the maximum 
extent feasible. Requests for accessibility improvements can be submitted to the City Engineer. 
Contact information for the City Engineer is located in Appendix E.  

Maintenance of pedestrian facilities within the public right-of-way will continue to follow the 
policies set forth in the City’s sidewalk inspection and repair policy as may be amended from 
time to time. A ramp shall be brought into compliance with PROWAG at the time any portion of 
the ramp, including its landing, is removed and replaced due to ordinary deterioration. Ramp 
construction requiring a change in street geometry and/or additional right-of-way are only 
required to be restored as close to PROWAG as possible without the street or right-of-way 
changes. 

EXHIBIT 4-6

BLUE



At the time any portion of a ramp, including its landing, is removed and replaced as part of a 
utility installation, private utilities will be required to restore a ramp to PROWAG; however, the 
City provides necessary truncated dome panels. Ramp construction requiring a change in street 
geometry and/or additional right-of-way are only required to be restored as close to PROWAG 
as possible without the street or right-of-way changes. 

 

Improvement Schedule 

Priority Areas 
The City of Worthington has identified specific locations as priority areas for planned 
accessibility improvement projects.  These areas have been selected due to their proximity to 
specific land uses such as schools and public facilities, and are within a walkable distance of a 
significant population.  The priority areas as identified in the 2019 self-evaluation are as follows: 

• Central Business district generally bound by 5th Avenue, 2nd Avenue, 9th Street and 11th 
Street. 
 

• Senior High/Memorial Auditorium area. 
 

• Prairie Elementary School 
 
The priority areas are depicted on Maps A and B in Appendix A.  

If hatched area is disturbed entire ramp and landing
is to be brought to current ADA (PROWAG)
standards. Additional walk and curb & gutter is to be
removed and replaced as needed to bring ramp to
standard.

EXAMPLES OF RAMP DISTURBANCE
Other Scenarios Exist

EXHIBIT 4-7

BLUE



Additional priority will be given to any location where an improvement project or alteration 
was constructed after January 26, 1991, and accessibility features were omitted. 

External Agency Coordination 
Many other agencies are responsible for pedestrian facilities within the jurisdiction of the City 
of Worthington.  The City will coordinate with those agencies to track and assist in the 
facilitation of the elimination of accessibility barriers along their routes. 

Nobles County has adopted the Nobles County Highway Department ADA Transition Plan dated 
December 2018. Pedestrian facilities within those County Highways being maintained by the 
City per a written maintenance agreement with the County and the City issues utility 
(excavation) permits for work within will be subject to both the County and City’s transition 
plans.  

Schedule 
The City of Worthington has set the following goals for improving the accessibility of its 
pedestrian facilities within the City’s jurisdiction: 

• After 20 years, 75% of accessibility features within the priority areas would be ADA 
compliant. 

• After 35 years, 75% of accessibility features within the jurisdiction of City would be ADA 
compliant. 

ADA Coordinator 
In accordance with 28 CFR 35.107(a), the City of Worthington has identified an ADA Title II 
Coordinator to oversee the City’s policies and procedures.   Contact information for this 
individual is located in Appendix E. 

Implementation Schedule  

Methodology 
The City of Worthington will utilize three methods for upgrading pedestrian facilities to the 
current ADA standards.  The first and most comprehensive of the three methods is through the 
scheduled street, sanitary sewer, water main and storm sewer improvement projects.  All 
pedestrian facilities impacted by these projects will be upgraded to current ADA accessibility 
standards.  

The second method is through the standalone sidewalk and ADA Transition projects.  These 
projects will be incorporated into the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) on a case by case 

EXHIBIT 4-8

BLUE



basis or funded through use of the budget for ADA Transition as determined by City of 
Worthington staff. The City’s Street CIP is included in Appendix B. 

The third method is through the restoration of pedestrian facilities impacted by private utility 
installations.  

Public Outreach 
The City of Worthington recognizes that public participation is an important component in the 
development of this document.  Input from the community has been gathered and used to help 
define priority areas for improvements within the jurisdiction of the City of Worthington.   

Public outreach for the creation of this document consisted of the following activities: 

A draft of this document was submitted to the Worthington City Council on May 11, 2020 for 
preliminary review and comment. The draft was posted on the City web site for solicitation of 
public comment through June 1, 2020. Notice of solicitation of the opportunity to comment on 
the report was published in the official paper on May 13, 2020 and emailed to the members of 
the Active Living Plan Steering Committee and Client Community Services, Inc. A summary of 
comments received are located in Appendix C. Final Council approval of the plan was given at 
its June 8, 2020 meeting.  

This document will be continuously available on the City’s web site.   

Grievance Procedure 
Under the Americans with Disabilities Act, each agency is required to publish its responsibilities 
in regard to the ADA.  A draft of this public notice is provided in Appendix D.  If users of the City 
of Worthington facilities and services believe the City The has not provided reasonable 
accommodation, they have the right to file a grievance. 

In accordance with 28 CFR 35.107(b), the City has developed a grievance procedure for the 
purpose of the prompt and equitable resolution of citizens’ complaints, concerns, comments, 
and other grievances.  This grievance procedure is outlined in Appendix D.   

Monitor the Progress 
This document will continue to be updated as conditions within the City evolve.  
The appendices in this document will be updated periodically, while the main body of the 
document will be updated in or before 2025 with a future update schedule to be developed at 

EXHIBIT 4-9

BLUE



that time.  With each main body update, a public comment period will be established to 
continue the public outreach. 

  

EXHIBIT 4-10

BLUE



Appendices 

A. Self-Evaluation Results 

B. Schedule / Budget Information 

C. Public Outreach 

D. Grievance Procedure 

E. Contact Information 

F. Agency ADA Design Standards and Procedures 

G. Glossary of Terms 
  

EXHIBIT 4-11

BLUE



Appendix A – Self-Evaluation Results 
This initial self-evaluation of pedestrian facilities yielded the following results: 

• Based on random sampling, 61% of sidewalks meet cross slope accessibility criteria 
• 8.1% of curb ramps met accessibility criteria. An additional 5.7% are expected to be able 

to meet accessibility criteria by grinding off or otherwise repairing abrupt vertical 
changes at the curb interface. 

• No intersections having no curb ramps were identified 
• 100% of traffic control signals had push buttons that are accessible, or had the 

pedestrian indications on recall 
• 100% of traffic control signals had APS 

See Maps A through C for a graphical representation of the results of the self-evaluation. Those 
ramps identified as compliant or not compliant were surveyed and inventoried in detail. Those 
assumed to be non-compliant were not inventoried in detail. The assumption that these ramps 
are not compliant is based on not having found any ramp in compliance that was not 
constructed in the recent past.  

  

EXHIBIT 4-12

BLUE



H
W

Y.
 5

9-
60

C
H

U
R

C
H

 

10TH AVE

HILL 

ORCHARD RD

PL
EA

SA
N

T

RO
AD

(C
.S

.A
.H

.  1
0)

C
R

AI
LS

H
EI

M

NO
RT

H 

COLLEGEWAY

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 

LEXINGTON

SU
N

D
O

W
N

 D
R

WEST  LAKE    AVENUE

FOX   FARM   ROAD

MOON CIRCLE

LAKE COURT

D
U

G
D

AL
E

AV
E

N
U

E

BUCHANAN  COURT  D
R

IV
E

   
SH

OR
E 

  
W

ES
T 

  

   DRIVE

 SHORE   

SOUTH   

   DRIVE
 SHORE   

SOUTH   
SOUTH  S

HORE   D
RIV

E
DORATHEA  

DRIFTWOOD   

WILLOW  

SUMMIT  

 B
AY

 S
T

KN
O

LL
W

O
O

D
   

D
R

IV
E

DRIVE
SCHAAP 

1ST AVENUE   SOUTHWEST

MINNE TA   

SO

LI
N

D
A 

LA
N

ECREST

INDIAN HILL 

ECKERSON 

LAN
E

FLO
W

ER

SO
U

TH
  LAKE 

 STREET

HWY    59 - 60

SHERWOOD STREET

EAST LAKE BLVD.

HW
Y 

59
 &

 6
0 WOODCREST AVE

SHADY LN
ASH ROAD JA

M
ES

 B
O

U
L E

V A
R

D

NOBLES STREET

EAST AVENUE

C.S.A.H.  35

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

ST
AT

E 
  

O
AK

   

CIRCLE   DRIVE

SP
R

IN
G

  

C
LI

FT
O

N

SPRUCE AVE

CEDAR 

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

 

M
ORN

OKABENA ST

 A
VE

N
U

E

KR
AG

NE
SS

 

EAST CLARY STREET

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

FIRST AVENUE

CLARY     STREET

G
R

AN
D

   
   

O
M

AH
A 

   
   

   

BU
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
   

   
 

ST
R

AI
T 

   
 

H
U

M
IS

TO
N

   
   

DOVER    STREET

MILLER ST

M
IL

TO
N

   
  

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

  

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 

SM
IT

H
 

M
AR

IN
E 

 

WILBUR 

O
SL

O
   

PAULSON  

DUBA 

M
C

M
IL

LA
N

  S
T

WHITE LANE

AP
EL

  

VI
R

G
IN

IA
  

KERR 

BRISTOL   

AP
EL

   
 

CYNTHIA  

DOVER  

THOMAS  

HAGGE  

DIAGONAL       ROAD

11TH AVE

TU
R

N
ER

 

ROOS  

W
IN

IF
R

ED
 S

TTO
W

ER
 S

T

FR
ED

R
IC

K 

WEST  OKABENA ST

C
LE

M
EN

T 
  

9TH AVE

SH
EL

L 
  

8TH AVE
LAKE      AVENUE

M
AY

 

8TH ST

10TH  ST9TH   ST

11TH ST
12TH ST

13TH ST
14TH ST

15TH ST
16TH ST

1S
T AVE

2N
D AVE3R

D AVE

4TH   A
VE

5TH   A
VE6T

H   A
VE

7T
H   A

VE
8T

H   A
VE

E 9TH   A
VE

EAST 13TH

EAST AVE TR
EV

O
R

 

FR
AN

KL
IN

 

MURRAY  

POLAR ROAD

JO
O

ST
EN

 R
D

ARMOUR RD

COUNTY ROAD 33

HWY   6
0

I-90

SP
R

IN
G

 

ELEANOR   

CASTLEWOOD

CECILEE

EVELYN

SP
R

IN
G

 A
VE

N
O

R
TH

 B
U

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 

N
O

R
TH

  H
U

M
IS

TO
N

  A
VE

DARLING  DRIVE 

RYAN'S  ROAD

M
cM

IL
LA

N
   

 S
T

OXFORD STREET

STOWER DRIVEN
. FR

ED
R

IC
K

R
O

W
E 

AV
EN

U
E

INDUSTRIAL  LANE

DRIVE
LUCY DIAGONAL RD (C.S.A.H.  25)

BA
N

TO
M

 P
L

VI
KI

N
G

 R
D

R
U

ST
 R

D

G
R

EE
N

 V
IE

W

JOHNSON LN
FAIRWAY LN
BIRCHWOOD PL

OXFORD STREET (C.S.A.H.  35)

HOMEWOOD AVE

BRIARWOOD DR.

MILES DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

O
AK

W
O

O
D

 D
R

LAKEHILL  
W CLARYGALENA

OLAN

WOR

EL
M

W
O

O
D

   
AV

EN
U

E

LIBERTY   
GRANDVIEW

LE
ON   

BETTYGODFREY   
PE

R
SH

IN
G

   
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

CAMPBELL

ST
ER

LI
N

G
 

SUTHERLAND  

(C
SA

H
  1

0)
SO

U
TH

   
C

R
AI

LS
H

EI
M

   
R

O
AD

I-90

SK
Y

LI
N

E

PRAIRIE DRIVE 

ELEANOR

PINEWOOD DR

W  OXFORD ST

PA
R

K 
AV

EN
U

E

WEST RIDGE ROAD

SALLY'S
ALLEY

A

A
B

C
D

B

C D EE

DOVER  

W
ES

T 
 G

AT
E

R
O

SESUNSET

SO
U

TH
   

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

NOBLES

ING SI
D

E 
 D

R

G
G

G

G
H
J
K
L

H J L

K

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

G
EO

R
G

E

CHARLES

M
M

H

THMORE

DER

DONAVON DR.

DAYTON DR  

WOODLAND CT

R
ES

E

R
AY

 D
R

IV
E

PA
U

LI
N

E

PA
U

L 
AV

E

FLOWER LANE

EAST GATE

WAY  DR
WAY DR

G
R

AN
D

 A
VE

CLARY     STREET

0 890 1,780 2,670 3,560445
Feet

/
MINNESOTA

MAP A
Walks
Type, Authority

Trail, City
Trail, County
Trail, MnDOT
Trail, park
Walk, City
Walk, County
Walk, MnDOT
Walk, park
priorityareas

EXHIBIT 4-13

BLUE



H
W

Y.
 5

9-
60

C
H

U
R

C
H

 

10TH AVE

HILL 

ORCHARD RD

PL
EA

SA
N

T

RO
AD

(C
.S

.A
.H

.  1
0)

C
R

AI
LS

H
EI

M

NO
RT

H 

COLLEGEWAY

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 

LEXINGTON

SU
N

D
O

W
N

 D
R

WEST  LAKE    AVENUE

FOX   FARM   ROAD

MOON CIRCLE

LAKE COURT

D
U

G
D

AL
E

AV
E

N
U

E

BUCHANAN  COURT  D
R

IV
E

   
SH

OR
E 

  
W

ES
T 

  

   DRIVE

 SHORE   

SOUTH   

   DRIVE
 SHORE   

SOUTH   
SOUTH  S

HORE   D
RIV

E
DORATHEA  

DRIFTWOOD   

WILLOW  

SUMMIT  

 B
AY

 S
T

KN
O

LL
W

O
O

D
   

D
R

IV
E

DRIVE
SCHAAP 

1ST AVENUE   SOUTHWEST

MINNE TA   

SO

LI
N

D
A 

LA
N

ECREST

INDIAN HILL 

ECKERSON 

LAN
E

FLO
W

ER

SO
U

TH
  LAKE 

 STREET

HWY    59 - 60

SHERWOOD STREET

EAST LAKE BLVD.

HW
Y 

59
 &

 6
0 WOODCREST AVE

SHADY LN
ASH ROAD JA

M
ES

 B
O

U
L E

V A
R

D

NOBLES STREET

EAST AVENUE

C.S.A.H.  35

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

ST
AT

E 
  

O
AK

   

CIRCLE   DRIVE

SP
R

IN
G

  

C
LI

FT
O

N

SPRUCE AVE

CEDAR 

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

 

M
ORN

OKABENA ST

 A
VE

N
U

E

KR
AG

NE
SS

 

EAST CLARY STREET

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

FIRST AVENUE

CLARY     STREET

G
R

AN
D

   
   

O
M

AH
A 

   
   

   

BU
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
   

   
 

ST
R

AI
T 

   
 

H
U

M
IS

TO
N

   
   

DOVER    STREET

MILLER ST

M
IL

TO
N

   
  

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

  

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 

SM
IT

H
 

M
AR

IN
E 

 

WILBUR 

O
SL

O
   

PAULSON  

DUBA 

M
C

M
IL

LA
N

  S
T

WHITE LANE

AP
EL

  

VI
R

G
IN

IA
  

KERR 

BRISTOL   

AP
EL

   
 

CYNTHIA  

DOVER  

THOMAS  

HAGGE  

DIAGONAL       ROAD

11TH AVE

TU
R

N
ER

 

ROOS  

W
IN

IF
R

ED
 S

TTO
W

ER
 S

T

FR
ED

R
IC

K 

WEST  OKABENA ST

C
LE

M
EN

T 
  

9TH AVE

SH
EL

L 
  

8TH AVE
LAKE      AVENUE

M
AY

 

8TH ST

10TH  ST9TH   ST

11TH ST
12TH ST

13TH ST
14TH ST

15TH ST
16TH ST

1S
T AVE

2N
D AVE3R

D AVE

4TH   A
VE

5TH   A
VE6T

H   A
VE

7T
H   A

VE
8T

H   A
VE

E 9TH   A
VE

EAST 13TH

EAST AVE TR
EV

O
R

 

FR
AN

KL
IN

 

MURRAY  

POLAR ROAD

JO
O

ST
EN

 R
D

ARMOUR RD

COUNTY ROAD 33

HWY   6
0

I-90

SP
R

IN
G

 

ELEANOR   

CASTLEWOOD

CECILEE

EVELYN

SP
R

IN
G

 A
VE

N
O

R
TH

 B
U

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 

N
O

R
TH

  H
U

M
IS

TO
N

  A
VE

DARLING  DRIVE 

RYAN'S  ROAD

M
cM

IL
LA

N
   

 S
T

OXFORD STREET

STOWER DRIVEN
. FR

ED
R

IC
K

R
O

W
E 

AV
EN

U
E

INDUSTRIAL  LANE

DRIVE
LUCY DIAGONAL RD (C.S.A.H.  25)

BA
N

TO
M

 P
L

VI
KI

N
G

 R
D

R
U

ST
 R

D

G
R

EE
N

 V
IE

W

JOHNSON LN
FAIRWAY LN
BIRCHWOOD PL

OXFORD STREET (C.S.A.H.  35)

HOMEWOOD AVE

BRIARWOOD DR.

MILES DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

O
AK

W
O

O
D

 D
R

LAKEHILL  
W CLARYGALENA

OLAN

WOR

EL
M

W
O

O
D

   
AV

EN
U

E

LIBERTY   
GRANDVIEW

LE
ON   

BETTYGODFREY   
PE

R
SH

IN
G

   
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

CAMPBELL

ST
ER

LI
N

G
 

SUTHERLAND  

(C
SA

H
  1

0)
SO

U
TH

   
C

R
AI

LS
H

EI
M

   
R

O
AD

I-90

SK
Y

LI
N

E

PRAIRIE DRIVE 

ELEANOR

PINEWOOD DR

W  OXFORD ST

PA
R

K 
AV

EN
U

E

WEST RIDGE ROAD

SALLY'S
ALLEY

A

A
B

C
D

B

C D EE

DOVER  

W
ES

T 
 G

AT
E

R
O

SESUNSET

SO
U

TH
   

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

NOBLES

ING SI
D

E 
 D

R

G
G

G

G
H
J
K
L

H J L

K

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

G
EO

R
G

E

CHARLES

M
M

H

THMORE

DER

DONAVON DR.

DAYTON DR  

WOODLAND CT

R
ES

E

R
AY

 D
R

IV
E

PA
U

LI
N

E

PA
U

L 
AV

E

FLOWER LANE

EAST GATE

WAY  DR
WAY DR

G
R

AN
D

 A
VE

CLARY     STREET

0 890 1,780 2,670 3,560445
Feet

/
MINNESOTA

MAP B
Ramp Inventory
COMPLIANT

No
No assumed
Yes
priorityareas

EXHIBIT 4-14

BLUE



"S
"S

"S

"S "S
"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S
"S

"S

"S

"S

"S "S
"S

"S

"S

"S

"S

"S "S

"S

"S

"S "S

"S"S
"S
"S "S

"S
"S"S

"S"S
"S

"S

"S
"S

"S"S "S

"S

"S "S

"S

"S
"S

"S

"S

"S

H
W

Y.
 5

9-
60

C
H

U
R

C
H

 

10TH AVE

HILL 

ORCHARD RD

PL
EA

SA
N

T

RO
AD

(C
.S

.A
.H

.  1
0)

C
R

AI
LS

H
EI

M

NO
RT

H 

COLLEGEWAY

TH
O

M
PS

O
N

 

LEXINGTON

SU
N

D
O

W
N

 D
R

WEST  LAKE    AVENUE

FOX   FARM   ROAD

MOON CIRCLE

LAKE COURT

D
U

G
D

AL
E

AV
E

N
U

E

BUCHANAN  COURT  D
R

IV
E

   
SH

OR
E 

  
W

ES
T 

  

   DRIVE

 SHORE   

SOUTH   

   DRIVE
 SHORE   

SOUTH   
SOUTH  S

HORE   D
RIV

E
DORATHEA  

DRIFTWOOD   

WILLOW  

SUMMIT  

 B
AY

 S
T

KN
O

LL
W

O
O

D
   

D
R

IV
E

DRIVE
SCHAAP 

1ST AVENUE   SOUTHWEST

MINNE TA   

SO

LI
N

D
A 

LA
N

ECREST

INDIAN HILL 

ECKERSON 

LAN
E

FLO
W

ER

SO
U

TH
  LAKE 

 STREET

HWY    59 - 60

SHERWOOD STREET

EAST LAKE BLVD.

HW
Y 

59
 &

 6
0 WOODCREST AVE

SHADY LN
ASH ROAD JA

M
ES

 B
O

U
L E

V A
R

D

NOBLES STREET

EAST AVENUE

C.S.A.H.  35

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

ST
AT

E 
  

O
AK

   

CIRCLE   DRIVE

SP
R

IN
G

  

C
LI

FT
O

N

SPRUCE AVE

CEDAR 

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

 

M
ORN

OKABENA ST

 A
VE

N
U

E

KR
AG

NE
SS

 

EAST CLARY STREET

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

FIRST AVENUE

CLARY     STREET

G
R

AN
D

   
   

O
M

AH
A 

   
   

   

BU
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
   

   
 

ST
R

AI
T 

   
 

H
U

M
IS

TO
N

   
   

DOVER    STREET

MILLER ST

M
IL

TO
N

   
  

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

  

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 

SM
IT

H
 

M
AR

IN
E 

 

WILBUR 

O
SL

O
   

PAULSON  

DUBA 

M
C

M
IL

LA
N

  S
T

WHITE LANE

AP
EL

  

VI
R

G
IN

IA
  

KERR 

BRISTOL   

AP
EL

   
 

CYNTHIA  

DOVER  

THOMAS  

HAGGE  

DIAGONAL       ROAD

11TH AVE

TU
R

N
ER

 

ROOS  

W
IN

IF
R

ED
 S

TTO
W

ER
 S

T

FR
ED

R
IC

K 

WEST  OKABENA ST

C
LE

M
EN

T 
  

9TH AVE

SH
EL

L 
  

8TH AVE
LAKE      AVENUE

M
AY

 

8TH ST

10TH  ST9TH   ST

11TH ST
12TH ST

13TH ST
14TH ST

15TH ST
16TH ST

1S
T AVE

2N
D AVE3R

D AVE

4TH   A
VE

5TH   A
VE6T

H   A
VE

7T
H   A

VE
8T

H   A
VE

E 9TH   A
VE

EAST 13TH

EAST AVE TR
EV

O
R

 

FR
AN

KL
IN

 

MURRAY  

POLAR ROAD

JO
O

ST
EN

 R
D

ARMOUR RD

COUNTY ROAD 33

HWY   6
0

I-90

SP
R

IN
G

 

ELEANOR   

CASTLEWOOD

CECILEE

EVELYN

SP
R

IN
G

 A
VE

N
O

R
TH

 B
U

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 

N
O

R
TH

  H
U

M
IS

TO
N

  A
VE

DARLING  DRIVE 

RYAN'S  ROAD

M
cM

IL
LA

N
   

 S
T

OXFORD STREET

STOWER DRIVEN
. FR

ED
R

IC
K

R
O

W
E 

AV
EN

U
E

INDUSTRIAL  LANE

DRIVE
LUCY DIAGONAL RD (C.S.A.H.  25)

BA
N

TO
M

 P
L

VI
KI

N
G

 R
D

R
U

ST
 R

D

G
R

EE
N

 V
IE

W

JOHNSON LN
FAIRWAY LN
BIRCHWOOD PL

OXFORD STREET (C.S.A.H.  35)

HOMEWOOD AVE

BRIARWOOD DR.

MILES DR

MAPLEWOOD DR

O
AK

W
O

O
D

 D
R

LAKEHILL  
W CLARYGALENA

OLAN

WOR

EL
M

W
O

O
D

   
AV

EN
U

E

LIBERTY   
GRANDVIEW

LE
ON   

BETTYGODFREY   
PE

R
SH

IN
G

   
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

CAMPBELL

ST
ER

LI
N

G
 

SUTHERLAND  

(C
SA

H
  1

0)
SO

U
TH

   
C

R
AI

LS
H

EI
M

   
R

O
AD

I-90

SK
Y

LI
N

E

PRAIRIE DRIVE 

ELEANOR

PINEWOOD DR

W  OXFORD ST

PA
R

K 
AV

EN
U

E

WEST RIDGE ROAD

SALLY'S
ALLEY

A

A
B

C
D

B

C D EE

DOVER  

W
ES

T 
 G

AT
E

R
O

SESUNSET

SO
U

TH
   

C
.S

.A
.H

.  
  5

NOBLES

ING SI
D

E 
 D

R

G
G

G

G
H
J
K
L

H J L

K

C
LI

FT
O

N
 

G
EO

R
G

E

CHARLES

M
M

H

THMORE

DER

DONAVON DR.

DAYTON DR  

WOODLAND CT

R
ES

E

R
AY

 D
R

IV
E

PA
U

LI
N

E

PA
U

L 
AV

E

FLOWER LANE

EAST GATE

WAY  DR
WAY DR

G
R

AN
D

 A
VE

CLARY     STREET

0 890 1,780 2,670 3,560445
Feet

/
MINNESOTA

MAP C
Walk Sampling
Xslope
"S 0.1 - 2.0%
"S 2.0 - 3.5%
"S 3.5 - 6.1%

EXHIBIT 4-15

BLUE



Appendix B – Schedule / Budget Information 

Cost Information 

Unit Prices 
Construction costs for upgrading facilities can vary depending on each individual improvement 
and conditions of each site.  Costs can also vary on the type and size of project the 
improvements are associated with.  Listed below are representative costs for some typical 
accessibility improvements based on an average cost incurred by the City. 

Intersection corner ADA improvement retrofit: +/- $5,250 per ramp 

An estimated cost for grinding abrupt changes in contemporary ramps that otherwise meet 
ADA requireemnts is $500 or less.  

Priority Areas 
Based on the results of the self-evaluation, the estimate costs associated with eliminating 
accessibility barriers within the targeted priority areas is as follows: 

• Central Business district: $245,500 
• Senior High/Memorial Auditorium area: $288,750 
• Prairie Elementary: $32,500 

Entire Jurisdiction 
Based on the results of the self-evaluation, the estimate costs associated with providing ADA 
accessibility within the entire jurisdiction is $3,941,000. This amount signifies a significant 
investment that the City of Worthington is committed to making in the upcoming years.  A 
systematic approach to providing accessibility will be taken in order to absorb the cost into the 
City of Worthington’s budget for improvements to the public right-of-way. 

The following pages are the City’s 2020 through 2024 Street CIP. Funding for ADA Transition 
projects will continue to be considered in each budget cycle.  

  

EXHIBIT 4-16

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-17

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-18

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-19

BLUE



Appendix C – Public Outreach 
 

  

EXHIBIT 4-20

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-21

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-22

BLUE



The City of Worthington is seeking public comment on its new Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan for 
Public Rights-of-Way, which was presented to the City Council in draft form on May 11, 2020. The Transition Plan is 
designed to help the City adhere to Title II of the ADA. The public is invited to submit comments on the draft Transition 
Plan for Public Rights-of-Way up to and including at the June 8, 2020 Council meeting at which time it is tentatively 
scheduled for Council to consider adoption of the plan. 
 
The draft Transition Plan is attached. 
 
The draft Transition Plan is also available by requesting it in a printed format by contacting: 
 
Worthington City Engineer 
P.O. Box 279 
Worthington, MN 56187 
507-372-8640 
engineering@ci.worthington.mn.us 
 
t is encourage that comments be submitted to the above contact prior to June 8, 2020; however, comments will also be 
received at the June 8, 2020 Council meeting. Adoption of the Plan may be delayed as necessary to address comments 
received. 
 
---------------------------------------------- 
Dwayne Haffield  
City of Worthington  
P.O. Box 279  
Worthington, MN   56187  
Ph: 507-372-8640 
 

EXHIBIT 4-23

BLUE



The City of Worthington is seeking public comment on its new Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan for 
Public Rights-of-Way, which was presented to the City Council in draft form on May 11, 2020. The Transition Plan is 
designed to help the City adhere to Title II of the ADA. The public is invited to submit comments on the draft Transition 
Plan for Public Rights-of-Way up to and including at the June 8, 2020 Council meeting at which time it is tentatively 
scheduled for Council to consider adoption of the plan. 
 
The draft Transition Plan is attached. 
 
The draft Transition Plan is also available by requesting it in a printed format by contacting: 
 
Worthington City Engineer 
P.O. Box 279 
Worthington, MN 56187 
507-372-8640 
engineering@ci.worthington.mn.us 
 
It is encourage that comments be submitted to the above contact prior to June 8, 2020; however, comments will also be 
received at the June 8, 2020 Council meeting. Adoption of the Plan may be delayed as necessary to address comments 
received. 
 
---------------------------------------------- 
Dwayne Haffield  
City of Worthington  
P.O. Box 279  
Worthington, MN   56187  
Ph: 507-372-8640 
 

EXHIBIT 4-24

BLUE



Comments Received  

 

From Southwest Regional Development Commission Staff: 

 

• In the definition section, should there be a delineation between sidewalk and 
trail? They are separately noted in the self-evaluation section but the map shows just “walks” 
and their widths.  

• For the Improvement Schedule section. When setting ADA compliant goals such 
as “after 20 years 25% of accessibility features within priority areas will be ADA compliant.” 
Should this say something closer to “after 20 years 25% of accessibility features within priority 
areas will be meet 2020 ADA compliancy standards.” Just in case there are any new standards 
or does this not matter if the document is updated regularly.  

 

  

EXHIBIT 4-25

BLUE



Appendix D – Grievance Procedure 
As part of the ADA requirements the City has posted the following notice outlining its ADA 
requirements: 

Public Notice 
In accordance with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 
the City of Worthington will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities on 
the basis of disability in City services, programs, or activities.  

Employment: The City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its hiring or 
employment practices and complies with all regulations promulgated by the U.S. Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission under Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

Effective Communication: The City will generally, upon request, provide appropriate aids and 
services leading to effective communication for qualified persons with disabilities so they can 
participate equally in the City’s programs, services, and activities, including qualified sign 
language interpreters, documents in Braille, and other ways of making information and 
communications accessible to people who have speech, hearing, or vision impairments.  

Modifications to Policies and Procedures: The City will make all reasonable modifications to 
policies and programs to ensure that people with disabilities have an equal opportunity to 
enjoy all City programs, services, and activities. For example, individuals with service animals 
are welcomed in City offices, even where pets are generally prohibited. 

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a modification 
of policies or procedures to participate in a City program, service, or activity, should contact the 
office of the City Administrator as soon as possible but no later than 48 hours before the 
scheduled event. 

The ADA does not require the City to take any action that would fundamentally alter the nature 
of its programs or services or impose an undue financial or administrative burden.  

The City will not place a surcharge on a particular individual with a disability or any group of 
individuals with disabilities to cover the cost of providing auxiliary aids/services or reasonable 
modifications of policy, such as retrieving items from locations that are open to the public but 
are not accessible to persons who use wheelchairs. 

  

EXHIBIT 4-26

BLUE



City of Worthington 
Grievance Procedure under 
the Americans with Disabilities Act 

This Grievance Procedure is established to meet the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"). It may be used by anyone who wishes to file a complaint 
alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the provision of services, activities, programs, 
or benefits by the City of Worthington. The City's Personnel Policy governs employment-related 
complaints of disability discrimination.  

The complaint should be in writing and contain information about the alleged discrimination 
such as name, address, phone number of complainant and location, date, and description of 
the problem. The complaint should be submitted by the grievant and/or his/her designee as 
soon as possible but no later than 60 calendar days after the alleged violation.  Alternative 
means of filing complaints, such as personal interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, 
will be made available for persons with disabilities upon request. 

Those wishing to file a formal written grievance with the City of Worthington may do so by one 
of the following methods: 

Internet 

Visit the City of Worthington website (http://www.ci.worthington.mn.us/) and click the “ADA” 
link to the ADA Grievance Form. Fill in the form online and click “Email Street or Walk Problem” 
or “Email Other City Facility Problem” as applicable. A copy of The ADA Grievance Form is 
included in this Appendix. 

Telephone 

Contact the pertinent City staff person listed in the Contact Information section of Appendix E 
to submit an oral grievance. The staff person will utilize the Internet method above to submit 
the grievance on behalf of the person filing the grievance. 

Paper Submittal 

Contact the pertinent City staff person listed in the Contact Information section of Appendix E 
to request a paper copy of the county’s grievance form, complete the form, and submit it to the 
ADA Title II Coordinator (City Administrator) or  Public Right-of-Way ADA Implementation 
Coordinator (City Engineer) or as indicated on the form. A copy of the form for mailing is also 
included on Worthington’s website.   

The ADA Grievance Form will ask for the following information: 

EXHIBIT 4-27

BLUE



The name, address, telephone number, and email address for the person filing the grievance 

A description and location of the alleged violation and the nature of a remedy sought, if 
known by the complainant. 

The City will acknowledge receipt of the grievance to the complainant within 10 working days of 
its submittal. City will also provide to the complainant within 10 working days of its submittal: 
1) a response or resolution to the grievance; or 2) information on when the complainant can 
expect a response or resolution to the grievance. 

If the grievance filed does not concern a City of Worthington facility, the City will work with the 
complainant to contact the agency that has jurisdiction. 

3. Within 60 calendar days of receipt, the City Administrator or City Engineer, as applicable, will 
conduct an investigation necessary to determine the validity of the alleged violation. If 
appropriate as a part of the investigation, the staff person would conduct an engineering study 
to help determine the City’s response. The City Administrator or City Engineer will be available 
to meet with the complainant to discuss the matter as a part of the investigation and resolution 
of the matter.  

If the response by the City Administrator or City Engineer does not satisfactorily resolve the 
issue, the complainant and/or his/her designee may appeal the decision within 15 calendar 
days after receipt of the response to the City Council. 

Within 15 calendar days after receipt of the appeal, or the first regularly scheduled Council 
meeting thereafter, the City Council will meet with the complainant to discuss the complaint 
and possible resolutions. The City Council shall hear complaints, requests, or suggestions from 
individuals regarding the access to and participation in public facilities, services, activities, and 
functions of the City of Worthington only upon receiving a written request appealing the 
decision of the ADA Coordinator. The City Council shall hear such complaint in public, after 
adequate public notice is given. The City Council shall issue a written decision within 30 days of 
its hearing. The decision of the City Council shall be final. 

The City will consider all specific grievances within its particular context or setting. 
Furthermore, the City will consider many varying circumstances including: 1) the nature of the 
access to services, programs, or facilities at issue; 2) the specific nature of the disability; 3) the 
essential eligibility requirements for participation; 4) the health and safety of others; and 5) the 
degree to which an accommodation would constitute a fundamental alteration to the program, 
service, or facility, or cause an undue hardship to the City of Worthington. 

EXHIBIT 4-28

BLUE



Accordingly, the resolution by the City of Worthington of any one grievance does not constitute 
a precedent upon which the City is bound or upon which other complaining parties may rely. 

All written complaints and appeals received by the City and the City’s responses will be retained 
by the City for at least three years. 

Complaints of Title II violations may also be filed with the Department of Justice (DOJ) within 
180 days of the date of discrimination. In certain situations, cases may be referred to a 
mediation program sponsored by the DOJ. The DOJ may bring a lawsuit where it has 
investigated a matter and has been unable to resolve violations. 
 
For more information, contact: 
 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Civil Rights Division 
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Disability Rights Section - NYAV 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
www.ada.gov 
(800) 514-0301 (voice – toll free) 
(800) 514-0383 (TTY) 
 
Title II may also be enforced through private lawsuits in Federal court. It is not necessary to file 
a complaint with the DOJ or any other Federal agency, or to receive a "right-to-sue" letter, 
before going to court. 
 
Complaint form is included on the following page.  

  

EXHIBIT 4-29

BLUE



EXHIBIT 4-30

BLUE



Appendix E – Contact Information 

ADA Title II Coordinator/City Administrator 
Name:  Steve Robinson  
Address: P.O. Box 279  
  Worthington, MN  56187 
Phone:   507-372-8622  
Fax:  507- 372-8630 
E-mail:   ser@ci.worthington.mn.us 

Public Right-of-Way ADA Implementation Coordinator/City Engineer 
Name:   Dwayne Haffield 
Address:  P.O. Box 279  
  Worthington, MN  56187 
Phone:   507-372-8640   
Fax:  507-372-8643 
E-mail:  d.haffield@ci.worthington.mn.us 

 

  

EXHIBIT 4-31

BLUE



Appendix F – Agency ADA Design Standards and Procedures 

Design Procedures  

Intersection Corners 
Curb ramps or blended transitions will attempt to be constructed or upgraded to achieve 
compliance within all capital improvement projects.  There may be limitations which make it 
technically infeasible for an intersection corner to achieve full accessibility within the scope of 
any project. Those limitations will be noted and those intersection corners will remain on the 
transition plan.  As future projects or opportunities arise, those intersection corners shall 
continue to be incorporated into future work.  Regardless if full compliance can be achieved or 
not, each intersection corner shall be made as compliant as possible in accordance with the 
judgment of City staff. 

Sidewalks / Trails 
Sidewalks and trails will attempt to be constructed or upgraded to achieve compliance within 
all capital improvement projects.  There may be limitations which make it technically infeasible 
for segments of sidewalks or trails to achieve full accessibility within the scope of any project. 
Those limitations will be noted and those segments will remain on the transition plan.  As 
future projects or opportunities arise, those segments shall continue to be incorporated into 
future work.  Regardless if full compliance can be achieved or not, every sidewalk or trail shall 
be made as compliant as possible in accordance with the judgment of City staff. 

Traffic Control Signals 
Traffic control signals will attempt to be constructed or upgraded to achieve compliance within 
all capital improvement projects.  There may be limitations which make it technically infeasible 
for individual traffic control signal locations to achieve full accessibility within the scope of any 
project. Those limitations will be noted and those locations will remain on the transition plan.  
As future projects or opportunities arise, those locations shall continue to be incorporated into 
future work.  Regardless if full compliance can be achieved or not, each traffic signal control 
location shall be made as compliant as possible in accordance with the judgment of City staff. 

Bus Stops 
Currently the City has no permanent bus stops established. It will be attempted to construct 
any permanently designated bus stops to achieve compliance within all capital improvement 
projects.  There may be limitations which make it technically infeasible for individual bus stop 
locations to achieve full accessibility within the scope of any project. Those limitations will be 
noted and those locations will remain on the transition plan.  As future projects or 
opportunities arise, those locations shall continue to be incorporated into future work.  

EXHIBIT 4-32

BLUE



Regardless on if full compliance can be achieved or not, each bus stop location shall be made as 
compliant as possible in accordance with the judgment of City staff. 

Other Transit Facilities 
Additional transit facilities are present within the limits of City.  Those facilities fall under the 
jurisdiction of Nobles County Joint Powers Transit Authority. The City of Worthington will work 
with the Nobles County Joint Powers Transit Authority to ensure that those facilities meet all 
appropriate accessibility standards. 

Other policies, practices and programs 
Policies, practices and programs not identified in this document will follow the applicable ADA 
standards. 

 

Design Standards 
The City of Worthington has PROWAG, as adopted by the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (MnDOT), as its design standard.  Current standards are available on MnDOT’s 
website. Those standards in effect at the time of an improvement will be utilized to achieve 
ADA compliance. 

  

EXHIBIT 4-33

BLUE



Appendix G – Glossary of Terms 
 

ABA: See Architectural Barriers Act. 

ADA: See Americans with Disabilities Act. 

ADA Transition Plan: Mn/DOT’s transportation system plan that identifies accessibility needs, 
the process to fully integrate accessibility improvements into the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP), and ensures all transportation facilities, services, programs, and 
activities are accessible to all individuals. 

ADAAG: See Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines.  

Accessible: A facility that provides access to people with disabilities using the design 
requirements of the ADA. 

Accessible Pedestrian Signal (APS): A device that communicates information about the WALK 
phase in audible and vibrotactile formats. 

Alteration: A change to a facility in the public right-of-way that affects or could affect access, 
circulation, or use. An alteration must not decrease or have the effect of decreasing the 
accessibility of a facility or an accessible connection to an adjacent building or site. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): The Americans with Disabilities Act; Civil rights 
legislation passed in 1990 and effective July 1992. The ADA sets design guidelines for 
accessibility to public facilities, including sidewalks and trails, by individuals with disabilities.  

Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG): contains scoping and 
technical requirements for accessibility to buildings and public facilities by individuals with 
disabilities under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. 

APS: See Accessible Pedestrian Signal. 

Architectural Barriers Act (ABA): Federal law that requires facilities designed, built, altered or 
leased with Federal funds to be accessible. The Architectural Barriers Act marks one of the first 
efforts to ensure access to the built environment. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP): The CIP for the Transportation Department includes an 
annual capital budget and a five-year plan for funding the new construction and reconstruction 
projects on the county’s transportation system. 

EXHIBIT 4-34

BLUE



Detectable Warning: A surface feature of truncated domes, built in or applied to the walking 
surface to indicate an upcoming change from pedestrian to vehicular way. 

DOJ: See United States Department of Justice 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA): A branch of the US Department of Transportation 
that administers the federal-aid Highway Program, providing financial assistance to states to 
construct and improve highways, urban and rural roads, and bridges.  

FHWA: See Federal Highway Administration 

Pedestrian Access Route (PAR): A continuous and unobstructed walkway within a pedestrian 
circulation path that provides accessibility. 

Pedestrian Circulation Route (PCR):  A prepared exterior or interior way of passage provided for 
pedestrian travel. 

PROWAG: An acronym for the Guidelines for Accessible Public Rights-of-Way issued in 2005 by 
the U. S. Access Board. This guidance addresses roadway design practices, slope, and terrain 
related to pedestrian access to walkways and streets, including crosswalks, curb ramps, street 
furnishings, pedestrian signals, parking, and other components of public rights-of-way. 

Right-of-Way: A general term denoting land, property, or interest therein, usually in a strip, 
acquired for the network of streets, sidewalks, and trails creating public pedestrian access 
within a public entity’s jurisdictional limits. 

Section 504: The section of the Rehabilitation Act that prohibits discrimination by any program 
or activity conducted by the federal government.   

Uniform Accessibility Standards (UFAS):  Accessibility standards that all federal agencies are 
required to meet; includes scoping and technical specifications.   

United States Access Board: An independent federal agency that develops and maintains 
design criteria for buildings and other improvements, transit vehicles, telecommunications 
equipment, and electronic and information technology. It also enforces accessibility standards 
that cover federally funded facilities. 

United States Department of Justice (DOJ): The United States Department of Justice (often 
referred to as the Justice Department or DOJ), is the United States federal executive 
department responsible for the enforcement of the law and administration of justice.  

 

 

EXHIBIT 4-35

BLUE



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMO 
 
DATE:  JUNE 8, 2020 
TO:   HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
SUBJECT:  ITEMS REQUIRING CITY COUNCIL ACTION OR REVIEW 
 

CASE ITEMS 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION SUPPORTING MINNESOTA 
INVESTMENT FUND APPLICATION (SWIFT PORK COMPANY) 
 
Swift Pork Company (“Swift”), owned by parent company JBS USA Holdings Inc., has 
submitted a request to the City of Worthington for incentives to support Project Ice, a $30 
million, 175,000-200,000 square foot freezer facility that will create approximately 70 new 
full-time positions ranging from $17.05 to $21.30 per hour, plus benefits. Swift is 
requesting up to $450,000 from the Department of Employment and Economic 
Development (DEED) Minnesota Investment Fund (MIF) program in the form of a 
forgivable loan. The new freezer expansion will be capable of holding 25 million pounds 
of frozen product and 2.5 million pounds of fresh product. This will increase Swift’s 
capacity to produce more value added and retail ready products in the future. 
 
The proposed site for the expansion is currently zoned “M-2” – Industrial and the 
Comprehensive Plan identifies the site for “Special Industrial” land uses. The Plan 
specifically seeks to provide adequate land for the future needs of Swift Pork Company. 
The location of the proposed expansion conforms to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance that specifically identified providing for expansion at this location. The 
City’s Comprehensive Plan has identified goods and services, jobs, and tax base as the 
economic objectives of the community. The construction of the proposed facility that will 
create new jobs and add tax base to the community, two goals outlined in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Further, JBS would be able to utilize the new freezer facility to 
alleviate a shortage of freezer storage space in the region. 
 
If approved by DEED, the City will enter a grant contract with DEED where DEED will 
award a $450,000 grant to the City’s Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) to be utilized for a 
forgivable loan to Swift. The City will work with Ehlers Inc. and Dorsey and Whitney to 
draft loan documents between the City and Swift outlining the requirements for 
forgiveness. The funds will be disbursed to the City’s RLF upon receipt of Swift’s expenses 
to DEED. As the loan terms for forgiveness are satisfied, the loan to Swift will be forgiven. 
The City will collect up to 3% of the loan amount for administrative costs incurred with 
Ehlers and Dorsey. City staff will be responsible for submitting annual reports to DEED to 
document compliance with the terms of the loan agreement. 
 
A proposed resolution supporting Swift’s application to DEED is shown in Exhibit 1A. A 
full copy of the application and required submittals can be reviewed upon request at City 
Hall. Council is requested to consider passing the resolution shown in Exhibit 1A, 
approving the application to DEED, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

GRAY



the application documents, all to further the economic development goals of the City as 
outlined in its Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Upon conclusion of a public hearing on the matter, Council action is requested. 
 

2. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING JOB CREATION FUND APPLICATION (SWIFT 
PORK COMPANY) 
 
Swift Pork Company (“Swift”), owned by parent company JBS USA Holdings Inc., has 
submitted a request to the City of Worthington for incentives to support Project Ice, a $30 
million, 175,000-200,000 square foot freezer facility that will create approximately 70 new 
full-time positions ranging from $17.05 to $21.30 per hour, plus benefits. Swift is 
requesting up to $550,000 from the DEED Job Creation Fund (JCF) program. The new 
freezer expansion will be capable of holding 25 million pounds of frozen product and 2.5 
million pounds of fresh product. This will increase Swift’s capacity to produce more value 
added and retail ready products in the future. 
 
The proposed site for the expansion is currently zoned “M-2” – Industrial and the 
Comprehensive Plan identifies the site for “Special Industrial” land uses. The Plan 
specifically seeks to provide adequate land for the future needs of Swift Pork Company. 
The location of the proposed expansion conforms to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance that specifically identified providing for expansion at this location. The 
City’s Comprehensive Plan has identified goods and services, jobs, and tax base as the 
economic objectives of the community. The construction of the proposed facility that will 
create new jobs and add tax base to the community, two goals outlined in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Further, JBS would be able to utilize the new freezer facility to 
alleviate a shortage of freezer storage space in the region. 
 
DEED requires applicants to work with a local unit of government in applying for JCF 
assistance. After passing a resolution in support of the project and the application, the local 
unit of government is required to submit the application on behalf of the business to the 
State of Minnesota. If Swift is awarded JCF assistance by DEED, Swift will enter into a 
loan agreement with DEED. The business will be required to provide annual reports 
detailing job creation and wage information to DEED to document compliance with the 
terms of the agreement. The local unit of government is required to assist the business with 
these yearly reports and payment requests to DEED. If the employer meets the job creation 
and wage goals outlined in their subsidy agreement, DEED will disburse funds to the 
business annually. 
 
A proposed resolution supporting Swift’s application to DEED is shown in Exhibit 2A. A 
full copy of the application and required submittals can be reviewed upon request at City 
Hall. Council is requested to consider passing the resolution shown in Exhibit 2A, 
approving the application to DEED, and authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
the application documents, all to further the economic development goals of the City as 
outlined in its Comprehensive Plan. 
 

GRAY



Council action is requested. 
 

3. PRELIMINARY PLAT – GLENWOOD HEIGHTS SECOND ADDITION (CITY 
OF WORTHINGTON) 
 
The City of Worthington submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat of a residential 
subdivision to be known as Glenwood Heights 2nd Addition on a 51.45-acre tract of land 
the City owns located west and mainly north of an extension of Sutherland Drive. The 
plat would create twenty-eight (28) lots intended for residential development and ten (10) 
Outlots, of which one (1) will likely be subdivided in the future for additional residential 
lots. The legal description of the property under consideration is as follows: 

 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, Township 102 North, 
Range 40 West, Nobles County, Minnesota, described as:  
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 28; thence South 89 
degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds West, (Minnesota County Coordinate 
System - Nobles County Zone - HARN NAD83 - 1996), along the north 
line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of 885.79 feet; 
thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 856.00 
feet to an iron monument located on the west right-of-way line of South 
Crailsheim Road (County State Aid Highway No. 10); thence continuing 
South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 450.96 feet to 
the northeasterly corner of Glenwood Heights First Addition, according 
to the plat thereof on file and of record with the Nobles County Recorder, 
Minnesota; thence South 89 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds West, along 
the northerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 
219.69 feet; thence North 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds West, along 
said northerly line, a distance of 459.69 feet to the most northerly corner 
of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, said point being the point of 
beginning; thence South 44 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds West, along 
said northerly line, a distance of 130.00 feet; thence South 19 degrees 15 
minutes 07 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 77.30 
feet; thence South 42 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds West, along said 
northerly line, a distance of 93.17 feet; thence South 57 degrees 21 
minutes 04 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 142.63 
feet to the northwesterly corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition; 
thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along the westerly 
line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 130.84 feet; 
thence South 09 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West, along said westerly 
line, a distance of 78.97 feet; thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 
seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 132.99 feet; thence 
North 66 degrees 50 minutes 00 seconds East, along said westerly line, a 

GRAY



distance of 185.98 feet; thence North 60 degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds 
East, along said westerly line, a distance of 164.63 feet; thence South 32 
degrees 17 minutes 32 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance 
of 120.25 feet; thence South 16 degrees 24 minutes 31 seconds East, 
along said westerly line, a distance of 72.67 feet; thence South 20 degrees 
40 minutes 38 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 156.13 
feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, along said 
westerly line, a distance of 713.27 feet to the southwesterly corner of said 
Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 50 
seconds West, along the westerly extension of the southerly line of said 
Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 107.17 feet; thence South 
00 degrees 13 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 120.01 feet to the 
southeast corner of the West Half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 
28; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 15 seconds West, along the East 
- West center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1325.82 feet to the 
Center of said Section 28; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes 04 
seconds West, along the North - South center line of said Section 28, a 
distance of 1775.28 feet to the southwest corner of the North 856.00 feet 
of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28; thence North 89 degrees 22 
minutes 48 seconds East, along the south line of the North 856.00 feet of 
the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of 1085.48 feet to the 
point of intersection with a line which bears North 45 degrees 39 minutes 
16 seconds West from the point of beginning; thence South 45 degrees 39 
minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 178.64 feet to the point of 
beginning. Containing 51.45 acres. 

 
The Planning Commission considered the application at its June 2, 2020 
meeting. After holding a public hearing, the Commission voted unanimously to 
adopt the required findings for approval of a subdivision request and recommend 
the City Council approve the preliminary plat subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. Outlots A through H are conveyed to abutting property owners; 
2. The legal description be updated to say “South Crailsheim Road” instead of 

“Crailsheim Drive”. 
3. The defined wetlands on the plat are either left in place or are mitigated in 

compliance with state and federal requirements; and 
4. The preliminary plat and all improvements associated with it follow all local, state 

and federal regulations. 
 
The Commission’s recommendation was based on the following considerations: 

GRAY



 
Most of the property for this preliminary plat was officially annexed into the City on May 
15, 2020. This was accomplished through a joint resolution with the Worthington 
Township Board. An aerial of the proposed preliminary plat from 2017 is shown in Exhibit 
1A. A feasibility report on the Glenwood Heights 2nd Addition Residential Development 
was completed by the consulting firm Bolton and Menk in April 2020 and pieces of the 
report can be found in Exhibit 1E. The full report can be found at the following:  
http://www.ci.worthington.mn.us/sites/default/files/docs-
forms/Glenwood%20Hgts%202%20Feasibility%20Report%20.pdf 
 
There are certain things to look for when considering a preliminary plat subdivision. 
Things like the best use of the land, location of streets, sidewalks, utilities, drainage, lot 
sizes and arrangements as well as any public uses that may be incorporated into the plat 
should be considered. Planning Commission and City Council shall find the following 
things before approval of a subdivision: 
 

1. All the applicable provisions of the city code are complied with. 
The property is mostly zoned “R-1” except for a small chunk of “R-2” on the 
southern side of Sutherland Drive. The preliminary plat can be seen in Exhibit 
1B. All lots in the preliminary plat meet the required minimum lot size and 
width for “R-1” (7,500 sq. ft. lot area, 75 ft. lot width) and “R-2” (6,000 sq. ft. 
lot area and 60 ft. lot width) districts except for Outlots A through H. City Code 
Section 154.34 (B) states that “Lot remnants which are below minimum lot area 
or dimension must be added to adjacent or surrounding lots rather than to be 
allowed to remain as an unsuitable outlet or parcel unless the subdivider can 
show acceptable plans for the future use of some remnants”. The subdivider has 
provided to convey Outlots A-H to abutting property owners and thereby meets 
this requirement. The preliminary plat meets all other applicable provisions of 
the City Code Subdivision Regulations in Chapter 154 regarding Streets, 
Blocks, Lots and Easements. It has the required 70-foot minimum width for 
roads, blocks are less than 1,320 feet between street lines, and the proposed plat 
has the required 10-foot easements for utilities. 
 

2. The proposed subdivision will not be detrimental to the present and 
potential surrounding land uses. 
 
The proposed subdivision consists of mainly subdividing for Single Family 
Homes while allowing for possible duplexes or townhomes on the Southern 
Side of Sutherland Drive. These uses would not be detrimental to the area that 
already contains single-family homes and will likely will have additional future 
single-family homes in the same general area. An aerial view from 2017 can be 

GRAY

http://www.ci.worthington.mn.us/sites/default/files/docs-forms/Glenwood%20Hgts%202%20Feasibility%20Report%20.pdf
http://www.ci.worthington.mn.us/sites/default/files/docs-forms/Glenwood%20Hgts%202%20Feasibility%20Report%20.pdf


seen in Exhibit 1A. The current uses around the proposed development are the 
following: 
 
East: Single Family Homes 
West: Agricultural Fields 
North: Single Family Homes on Acreage 
South: Agricultural Fields 
 

3. The area surrounding the subdivision can be planned and developed in 
coordination and compatibility with the proposed subdivision. 
 
The preliminary plat subdivision does leave room for other subdivisions to be 
planned around it as extensions of roads off Sutherland Drive and Aspen Drive 
along with a possible road to the west of Outlot J to the north that could serve 
other development. There is also a planned sewer and water extensions that will 
be able to serve development to the North and South of the proposed 
development. In addition to this, the proposed subdivision will be able to handle 
current stormwater from upstream of the subdivision.  
 

4. The subdivision is in conformance with the Future Land Use and 
Thoroughfare Plan 
 
The proposed subdivision is located in what is known as the Future Residential 
Growth Area in the City’s Comprehensive Plan as shown in Exhibit 1C. This 
area is intended to continue residential growth on the west side of the City. The 
comprehensive plan indicates that a logical development pattern is to continue 
the low-density residential development pattern as shown in Exhibit 1D. It also 
indicated more planning should be considered in the area for different housing 
types or neighborhood commercial uses along with a possible public greenway 
along drainage systems. The proposed single family and possibly two-family 
lots are in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

5. The subdivision preserves and incorporates the site’s important natural 
features, whenever possible 
 
The proposed subdivision is incorporating some of the existing Wetlands into 
the property. The site has been previously used for farming purposes and there 
are no other important natural features on the property that staff is currently 
aware of. The subdivision is incorporating the site’s natural features where 
possible. 

GRAY



 
6. All land intended for building sites can be used safely without endangering 

the residents by peril from floods, erosion, continuously high-water table, 
severe soil conditions or other menace 
 
The proposed subdivision lots are not in the floodplain and are in Zone X, 
which is the minimal risk area outside the 1 percent and .2 percent annual 
chance floodplains. In the feasibility report in Appendix B, a Geotechnical 
Report was prepared in January of this year for the site. It was found that the 
site has underlying non-organic natural soils that could support residential 
building construction as shown in Exhibits 1E-1 and 1E-2. It also mentioned 
that this site was prone to perched water and therefore some houses may require 
sump pumps to avoid water in potential basements. 
 

7. The subdivision can be economically served with public facilities and 
services 
 
The proposed subdivision can be economically served by public facilities and 
services including roads, water, sewer and electric service that connect to 
existing services to the east without long expansions in-between proposed lots. 
Proposed water, sewer and stormwater lines can be seen in the feasibility report 
in Exhibits 1E-3, 1E-4 and 1E-5. 
 
In addition to these findings, the proposed subdivision will have City sewer and 
water available to it and it adjoins an existing subdivision (Glenwood Heights 1st 
Addition) and therefore is not considered scattered development. 
 

Should Council concur with the findings of the Planning Commission, it may approve the 
requested preliminary plat by motion. Minnesota State Statute does require that any 
Council member voting against the land use application must state for the record their 
reason(s) for denial. 
 
Council action is requested. 
 

4. CITY OF WORTHINGTON WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM 
REQUIREMENTS AMENDMENT 
 
In November 2008, the Worthington City Council established a Workforce Housing 
program with funds from a previous tax increment financing district that has successfully 
created home ownership opportunities for individuals and families whose incomes do not 
exceed 80% of the current area median income. The original program was amended in 

GRAY



April 2012 and the current program and its policies is shown in Exhibit 4A. The current 
income guidelines as defined the policy are shown in Exhibit 4B and the current balance 
of the program funds are shown in Exhibit 4C. In the end of the Implementation section, 
the policy states the following: “The sale price of the home shall not exceed $237,031.” 
Any home whose sale price is higher than $237,031 is not eligible for this program and no 
provision was included for inflation within the policy as established in 2008 or amended 
in 2012. 
 
Staff has received an inquiry from the Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership (the 
“Partnership”) regarding the construction of two single-family homes. One is a 4-bedroom, 
2 bath split foyer with an attached double garage and the proposed sale price is $264,000. 
If the Partnership can use TIF workforce housing assistance, the buyer’s cost will be 
reduced to $239,298.81. The second is a 3-bedroom, 2 bath slab on grade house with an 
attached double garage and the proposed sale price is $260,500. If the Partnership can use 
TIF workforce housing assistance, the buyer’s cost will be reduced to $235,798.81. The 
Partnership is requesting the City Council to consider raising the sale price limit established 
in the City’s Workforce Housing Program policy. 
 
Staff finds that the costs of residential construction have risen steadily since the programs 
was established in 2008, including a 5% increase in costs in 2018 alone. Therefore, staff 
finds that some increase in the ceiling of the sale price is appropriate to ensure the continued 
effectiveness of the program. Staff also finds that tying the ceiling to an index that will 
keep pace with construction costs, whether increasing or decreasing, would prevent the 
Council from needing to continually revisit the program’s requirements. Staff finds that 
tying the maximum sale price to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
Rural Development (RD) Single Family Housing – Area Loan Limits for Nobles County 
shown in Exhibit 4D would meet the original spirit and intent of the program and increase 
its efficiency and effectiveness moving forward. The original limit established in 2008 was 
$237,031 and the current USDA RD limit for Single Family Housing – Area Loan Limits 
for Nobles County is $265,400. Staff is requesting Council to consider an amendment of 
the program that would have the effect of the modified program policy shown in Exhibit 
4E. 
 
Council action is requested. 
 
 

GRAY



CITY OF WORTHINGTON 

NOBLES COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING AN APPLICATION FOR THE MINNESOTA 

INVESTMENT FUND BY SWIFT PORK COMPANY 

BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Worthington act as the legal sponsor for the project contained 
in the Minnesota Investment Fund Application to be submitted on or about June 8, 2020 and that 
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to apply to the Department of Employment and 
Economic Development for funding of this project on behalf of City of Worthington. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Worthington has the legal authority to apply for 
financial assistance, and the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to administer the 
proposed project. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Worthington has not violated any Federal, State, or 
local laws pertaining to fraud, bribery, kickbacks, collusion, conflict of interest of other unlawful 
or corrupt practice. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon approval of its application by the State, the City of 
Worthington may enter into a Grant Contract with the State of Minnesota for the approved project, 
and that City of Worthington certifies that it will comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 
regulations, and rules as stated in the Grant Contract and described in the Project Compliance 
Certification of the Application. 

AS APPLICABLE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Worthington has obtained 
credit reports and credit information on Swift Pork Company. Upon review by City of Worthington 
and Flynn & Riordan PLLC, no adverse findings or concerns regarding, but not limited to, tax 
liens, judgements, court actions, and filings with state, federal, and other regulatory agencies were 
identified. Failure to disclose any such adverse information could result in revocation or other legal 
action. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk, or their successors in 
office, are hereby authorized to execute the Grant Contract and amendments, thereto, as are 
necessary to implement the project on behalf of the City of Worthington. 

I certify that the above resolution was adopted by the City Council of City of Worthington on June 
8, 2020. 

Dated June 8, 2020 

Exhibit 1A

GRAY



(SEAL) 

____________________________________ 
Mike Kuhle, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Melinda L. Eggers, City Clerk 

Exhibit 1A

GRAY



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA 

NOBLES COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE SUPPORT OF A JOB CREATION FUND 

APPLICATION IN CONNECTION WITH SWIFT PORK COMPANY 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington, Minnesota (the “City”), desires to assist Swift Pork 
Company, an animal protein processor, which is proposing to construct a facility in the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington understands that Swift Pork Company, through and with 
the support of the City, intends to submit to the Minnesota Department of Employment and 
Economic Development an application for an award and/or rebate from the Job Creation Fund 
Program; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Worthington held a city council meeting on June 8, 2020 to consider this 
matter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Worthington, 
Minnesota, that after due consideration, the Mayor and Clerk of the City of Worthington, 
Minnesota, hereby adopts the following findings of fact related to the project proposed by Swift 
Pork Company and its application for an award and/or rebate from the Job Creation Fund Program 
and express their approval. 

The City Council hereby finds and adopts the reasons and facts supporting the following findings 
of fact for the approval of the Job Creation Fund Program application: 

1. Finding that the project is in the public interest because it will encourage the growth of
commerce and industry, prevent the movement of current or future operations to locations
outside Minnesota, result in increased employment in Minnesota, and preserve or enhance
the state and local tax base.

JBS is considering constructing a new freezer facility as part of this location, resulting in
new net headcount growth of approximately 70 full-time employees and $30 million in
facility investment. By expanding its functions to include a significant freezer expansion,
the Worthington facility will continue to provide new opportunities for area residents and
support the local economy. Further, JBS would be able to utilize the new freezer facility to
alleviate a shortage of freeze space in the region.

For this freezer project, JBS has operations in Illinois that is under consideration to host
the facility. The Illinois operations are more centrally located to the rest of the pork
processing chain than Minnesota. Receiving support from DEED for the project would aid
JBS’s decision in selecting Minnesota over the Illinois facility.

Exhibit 2A

GRAY



 
2. Finding that the proposed project, in the opinion of the City Council, would not reasonably 

be expected to occur solely through private investment within the reasonably foreseeable 
future. 
 
JBS’s internal capital decisions are driven by per unit production costs among its facilities. 
The costs included in per unit production include labor costs, equipment costs, facility and 
equipment condition, suppliers, raw materials distance, overall production capacity and 
process, and the transportation of finished product. 
 
For this freezer project, JBS has operations in Illinois that is under consideration to host 
the facility. The Illinois operations are more centrally located to the rest of the pork 
processing chain than Minnesota. Receiving support from DEED for the project would aid 
JBS’s decision in selecting Minnesota over the Illinois facility.  
 

3. Finding that the proposed project conforms to the general plan for the development or 
redevelopment of the City as a whole. 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Plan has identified goods and services, jobs, and tax base as 
the economic objectives of the community. The proposed site for the expansion is currently 
zoned “M-2” – Industrial and the Comprehensive Plan identifies the site for “Special 
Industrial” land uses. The Plan specifically seeks to provide adequate land for the future 
needs of Swift Pork Company. 
 
The construction of a $30 million facility that will create approximately 70 new jobs 
achieves the stated goals of adding jobs and tax base to the community. The location of the 
proposed expansion conforms to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance 
that specifically identified providing for expansion at this location. 
 

4. Finding that the proposed project will afford maximum opportunity, consistent with the 
sound needs of the City as a whole, for the redevelopment or development of the project 
by private enterprise. 
 
In addition to conforming to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance, the 
proposed project will create 68 new jobs ranging from $17.05 per hour to $21.30 per hour 
plus benefits. Swift Pork Company will also be required to post their employment 
opportunities on www.minnesotaworks.net and will pay prevailing wages to workers 
employed in its construction, both of which would not be required of a private enterprise 
constructing a similar project without State of Minnesota assistance. 

 
The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member 
_____________ and duly seconded by Council Member _____________, and upon roll call voting 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: ___________, ____________, 

Exhibit 2A

GRAY

http://www.minnesotaworks.net/


_____________, _____________, _____________. and the following voted against the same: 
_____________. 
 
 
Dated June 8, 2020 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Mike Kuhle, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Melinda L. Eggers, City Clerk 
 

Exhibit 2A

GRAY



SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

Exhibit 3A

GRAY



PROPOSED R-2

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLA
ND

CENTER
SECTION 28-102-40
FOUND IRON MONUMENT

N
O

RT
H 

- S
O

U
TH

  ℄
SE

C.
 2

8-
10

2-
40

EAST - WEST  ℄
SEC. 28-102-40

156.13

72
.6

7

120.25

164.63

185.9813
2.

99
78

.9
7

13
0.

84

142.63

93.17

77
.3

0

130.00

178.64

1085.48
17

75
.2

8

1325.82

12
0.

01

107.17

71
3.

27

S 20°40'38" E

S 
16

°2
4'

31
" E

S 32°17'32" E

N 60°45'04" E

N 66°50'00" E

S 
18

°0
9'

16
" E

S 
09

°2
5'

19
" W

S 
18

°0
9'

16
" E

S 57°21'04" W

S 4
2°53'58" W

S 
19

°1
5'

07
" W

S 4
4°20'44" W

S 45°39'16" E

N 89°22'48" E
N

 0
0°

25
'0

4"
 W

S 88°59'15" W

S 
00

°1
3'

12
" E S 88°59'50" W

S 
00

°3
9'

16
" E

70

70

70

70

70

70

80

330.01

S 89°22'48" W

45
0.

96
S 

00
°3

9'
16

" E

219.69
S 89°20'44" W

459.69

N 45°39'16" W

335.81 335.25
S 89°22'48" W

NW CORNER
E 1/2 - SE 1/4
SECTION 28-102-40

POINT OF
BEGINNING

S 88°59'50" W

SE CORNER
W 1/2 - NE 1/4

SECTION 28-102-40
FOUND STONE

MONUMENT

SOUTH LINE - NORTH 856.00 FEET
NE 1/4 - SEC. 28-102-40

SW
 C

O
RN

ER
 - 

N
O

RT
H 

85
6 

FE
ET

N
E 

1/
4 

- S
EC

. 2
8-

10
2-

40

17,100 SQ.FT.

14,250 SQ.FT.

14,250 SQ.FT.

14,250 SQ.FT.14,250 SQ.FT.

14,250 SQ.FT.

14,250 SQ.FT.

17,100 SQ.FT.

21,391 SQ.FT.

22,582 SQ.FT.

38,539 SQ.FT. 34,749 SQ.FT.

30,013 SQ.FT.

24,246 SQ.FT.

21,255 SQ.FT.

23,886 SQ.FT.

19,800 SQ.FT.

19,800 SQ.FT.

19,800 SQ.FT.

34,134 SQ.FT.

21,604 SQ.FT.

25,310 SQ.FT.

7,801 SQ.FT. 7,978 SQ.FT.7,802 SQ.FT.7,802 SQ.FT.7,803 SQ.FT.9,005 SQ.FT.

(TO BE MITIGATED)

WETLAND
(TO BE MITIGATED)

WETLAND

(TO BE MITIGATED)

SUTHERLAND DRIVE

STERLING AVENUE
AS

PE
N

CA
M

PB
EL

L 
BO

U
LE

VA
RD

4

3

2

11

2

3

4

6

5
4

3

2
1

8

7

6 5

4

3
2

1

123456

2,119 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT A

3,076 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT B

2,089 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT C

2,028 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT D

1,978 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT E

1,929 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT F

1,880 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT G

2,047 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT H

53,017 SQ.FT.
OUTLOT J

B L  O C K    5

B 
L 

O
  C

 K
   

 3

B 
L 

O
  C

 K
   

 4

B L O   C K    2

B L O C K         1

70 70

70

70

70
70

70

70

DR
IV

E

34.16 ACRES
OUTLOT I

PROPOSED R-1

PROPOSED R-1

12
0

142

12
0

10
0

142

10
0

10
0

143

10
0

10
0

143

10
0

10
0

142

10
0

142

10
0

142

10
0

143

12
0

24

14
6

161 22
68

14
7

174 53

83

230
14

6

166
90

14
9

155

90
174

174

152

77

10
4

125

144

122

299

110

122

247

110

45

171

194

61

46

30
58

15

32330
58

45

284

1153

19
6

164

17
3

33

72

82

57

110

180

110

110

180

110

110

180

110

165

63

180

20

23
0

75

12
0

75

12
0

65

65

12
0

65

65

12
0

65

65

12
0

65

65

12
0

67

62

20
' D

RA
IN

AG
E 

&
 

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

20.0'

25.0' 25' DRAINAGE & 
UTILITY EASEMENT

8' UTILITY 

EASEMENT

10.0'

8.0'

10' UTILITY   EASEMENT

10.0'

20

10
1

21

90

21

90

22

90

22

90

23

91

23

92

4545

21

112

12
0

10
0

10
0

10.0'

10.0'

20' DRAINAGE &

UTILITY EASEM
ENT

8.0'8.0'

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

8' UTILITY 
EASEMENT

10.0'
10.0'

10.0'
10.0'

8.0'

10' UTILITY 
EASEMENT

C 40' W
IDE UTILITY EASEMENT

L

C 4
0' 

W
ID

E U
TIL

ITY
 EA

SE
M

EN
T

L

20' 20'

FOR:

DRAWN BY:FIELD BOOK:JOB NUMBER:

R

PRELIMINARY PLAT
WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

PART OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 102 NORTH
RANGE 40 WEST, NOBLES COUNTY, MN

CITY OF WORTHINGTON

NPMF18.118187

R

SCALE   IN   FEET

0 100 200

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared
by me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly
Licensed Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of
Minnesota.

_______________________________
Joseph A. Haefner
License Number 43909

__________
       Date
01/22/2020

GLENWOOD HEIGHTS SECOND ADDITION

51.45 ACRES
SUBJECT PROPERTY

LEGEND
3/4" IRON PIPE MONUMENT SET
MARKED BY LIC. NO. 43909
MONUMENT FOUND
STONE FOUND

1501 SOUTH STATE STREET, SUITE 100
FAIRMONT, MINNESOTA  56031

(507) 238-4738

FIGURE 2
PRELIMINARY PLAT

Exhibit 3B

GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE  1/4   -   SEC.  28  -  T102N  -  R40W

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    5

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENWOOD   HEIGHTS   FIRST   ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STERLING    AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTHERLAND  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPBELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUCHANAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAILSHEIM      DRIVE    (C.S.A.H.   NO.  10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 1/2  -  SE  1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC.  28 - T102N - R40W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W 1/2  -  SE  1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC.  28 - T102N - R40W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STERLING    AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, Township 102 North Range 40 West, Nobles County, Minnesota, described as: Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 28; thence South 89 degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds West, (Minnesota County Coordinate System - Nobles County Zone - HARN NAD83 - 1996), along the north line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of 885.79 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 856.00 feet to an iron monument located on the west right-of-way line of Crailsheim Drive (County State Aid Highway No. 10); thence continuing South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 450.96 feet to the northeasterly corner of Glenwood Heights First Addition, according to the plat thereof on file and of record with the Nobles County Recorder, Minnesota; thence South 89 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds West, along the northerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 219.69 feet; thence North 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 459.69 feet to the most northerly corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, said point being the point of beginning; thence South 44 degrees 20 minutes 44 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 130.00 feet; thence South 19 degrees 15 minutes 07 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 77.30 feet; thence South 42 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 93.17 feet; thence South 57 degrees 21 minutes 04 seconds West, along said northerly line, a distance of 142.63 feet to the northwesterly corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along the westerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 130.84 feet; thence South 09 degrees 25 minutes 19 seconds West, along said westerly line, a distance of 78.97 feet; thence South 18 degrees 09 minutes 16 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 132.99 feet; thence North 66 degrees 50 minutes 00 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 185.98 feet; thence North 60 degrees 45 minutes 04 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 164.63 feet; thence South 32 degrees 17 minutes 32 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 120.25 feet; thence South 16 degrees 24 minutes 31 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 72.67 feet; thence South 20 degrees 40 minutes 38 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 156.13 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, along said westerly line, a distance of 713.27 feet to the southwesterly corner of said Glenwood Heights First Addition; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 50 seconds West, along the westerly extension of the southerly line of said Glenwood Heights First Addition, a distance of 107.17 feet; thence South 00 degrees 13 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 120.01 feet to a stone monument designating the southeast corner of the West Half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28; thence South 88 degrees 59 minutes 15 seconds West, along the East - West center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1325.82 feet to the Center of said Section 28; thence North 00 degrees 25 minutes 04 seconds West, along the North - South center line of said Section 28, a distance of 1775.28 feet to the southwest corner of the North 856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28; thence North 89 degrees 22 minutes 48 seconds East, along the south line of the North 856.00 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 28, a distance of 1085.48 feet to the point of intersection with a line which bears North 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds West from the point of beginning; thence South 45 degrees 39 minutes 16 seconds East, a distance of 178.64 feet to the point of beginning.  Containing 51.45 acres.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY & SITE DATA All Zoning and Setback information was obtained from the City of Worthington Code. For detailed zoning information and specific interpretation of code requirements, contact the City of Worthington. ZONING: Subject property - T, Transitional District Proposed Re-zone to R-1 & R-2, Residential Districts R-1 SETBACKS: Front        Main and Accessory Building  30 feet  30 feet  Street Side  Main and Accessory Building    15 feet  Side          Main and Accessory Buildings  10 feet  10 feet  Rear Main and Accessory Building  30 feet 30 feet Lot Area (minimum) = 7,500 sq.ft. Lot Width (minimum) = 75 feet Maximum Ground Coverage = 30% by all structures R-2 SETBACKS: Front        Main and Accessory Building  20 feet  20 feet  Street Side          Main and Accessory Buildings  10 feet   10 feet   Side          Main and Accessory Buildings  8 feet  8 feet  Rear Main and Accessory Building  20 feet 20 feet Lot Area (minimum) = 6,000 sq.ft. Lot Width (minimum) = 60 feet Maximum Ground Coverage = 30% by all structures



SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 
(APPROX.) 

Exhibit 3C

GRAY



•

•

•

•

•

•

Exhibit 3D

GRAY



City of Worthington
Page 2 of 4
January 10, 2020
AET #13-20454

We refer you to the standard sheet entitled “Exploration/Classification Methods” for details on the 
drilling and the sampling methods, and the water level measurement methods.  Data sheets
concerning the Unified Soils Classification System, the descriptive terminology, and the symbols 
used on the boring logs are also attached.

The test boring locations are shown on Figure 2.  The boring locations and surface elevations shown 
on the logs were provided by Bolton & Menk personnel.

3.0 Conditions Encountered

3.1 Soils

The site geology consists of existing fill and topsoil underlain by sandy lean clay, glacial till.

The surficial fill/topsoil layer was about 1½’ to 7’ deep at the boring locations. The fill and topsoil
consisted of black, lean clay with numerous visible organics. 

The main geologic deposit encountered at the site consisted of sandy lean clay, glacial till.  The 
upper portion of till was somewhat weathered.  The till varied in color from brown nearer the surface 
to gray at depth.  Additionally, the till contained some gravel and numerous lenses and layers of 
sand.  The consistency of the till varied from firm to stiff.

3.2 Groundwater
No ground water entered the boreholes at the time of drilling.  Because the profile is slow draining 
clay, it would take an extended time period to establish whether the hydrostatic groundwater level is 
within the bored depth.  Water may appear with time.  Also, the site is prone to perched water 
conditions.

The depth or lack of subsurface water noted at the boring locations should not be taken as an 
accurate representation of the actual subsurface water levels.  A long period of time is generally 
required for groundwater to stabilize in the impermeable soils generally present at the site; this 
period of time is generally not available during a typical subsurface exploration program.

The surface level in the nearby Lake Okabena could be expected to affect the subsurface water levels 
present at the site.

Exhibit 3E-1

GRAY



City of Worthington
Page 3 of 4
January 10, 2020
AET #13-20454

4.0 Geotechnical Review
The existing fill soils and topsoil should not be considered suitable for foundation or floor slab 
support.  After removal of the topsoil and existing fill soils, the underlying non-organic natural soils 
encountered at the soil boring locations should be considered capable of supporting the assumed 
residential building construction.  

5.0 Additional Exploration and Review
We have not been authorized at this time to provide specific foundation and earthwork 
recommendations.  We recommend additional soil borings be performed and completion of a full 
Geotechnical Engineering report for the project site. As additional project details become available, 
please contact us for specific design recommendations.

6.0 Limitations
Within the limitations of scope, budget, and schedule, our services have been conducted according to 
generally accepted geotechnical engineering practices at this time and location. Other than this, no 
warranty, either expressed or implied, is intended.

Important information regarding risk management and proper use of this report is given in the 
attached sheet entitled “Geotechnical Report Limitations and Guidelines for Use”.

Exhibit 3E-2

GRAY



R

FE
ET

SC
AL

E

0
60

12
0

TY
PE

G
LE

N
W

O
O

D
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 S
EC

O
N

D 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

W
O

RT
H

IN
G

TO
N

, M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

PA
RT

 O
F 

SE
CT

IO
N

 2
8,

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 1
02

 N
O

RT
H

RA
N

G
E 

40
 W

ES
T,

 N
O

BL
ES

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

N

FO
R:

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
W

O
RT

HI
N

G
TO

N

LE
G

EN
D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

TO
U

R

FU
LL

 B
A

SE
M

EN
T 

LO
T

FB LOW
O

W
AL

KO
U

T 
LO

T

LO
O

KO
U

T 
LO

T

SL
O

SI
D

E-
LO

O
KO

U
T 

LO
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

RA
IN

A
G

E 
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

PO
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

16
05

.0
0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 O

N
-S

IT
E 

BO
RR

O
W

 A
RE

A
S

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

 F
IL

LI
N

G

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

 G
RA

D
IN

G

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 O

VE
RF

LO
W

 S
W

AL
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

H
A

SE
 1

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

EO
F

16
05

FI
G

U
RE

 3
A

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

G
RA

DI
N

G
 &

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

S
>>

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

U
TU

RE
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

>>

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

>>

PH
A

SE
 1

 G
RA

D
IN

G
 L

IM
IT

S

03
/0

2/
20

20

>>

>>
>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>
>

>
>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>

>

60
+0

0
61

+0
0

62
+0

0

63
+0

0

64
+0

0

65
+0

0

66
+0

0

67
+0

0

68
+0

0
69

+0
0

70+
00

80
+0

0
81

+0
0

82
+0

0

83
+0

0

84
+0

0

85
+0

0

86
+0

0

87
+0

0

88
+0

0

89
+0

0

29+0030+0031+00

32+00

33+00

45+0046+00

47+00

48+00

49
+0

0

50
+0

0

6+007+008+009+0010+0011+0012+0013+0014+00
15+00

16+00

ST
A:

70
+2

8.
41

EL
: 1

59
2.

53

ST
A:

88
+9

3.
36

EL
: 1

60
4.

18

7

6 5 4
45

6

7

8

9

10

4

3

2
1

7
6

5
4

321
19 18

1 2 3 4

6
5

4
3

2

16

5

4

3

2
1

10987

6
5

4

3

2

1

17

O
U

TL
O

T 
L

O
U

TL
O

T 
J

OU
TL

OT
 K

B 
L O

  C
 K

    
2

B 
L O

   C
 K

    
7

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
   

 8

B 
L O

 C
 K

    
2

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
 

 1

C K       9

B 
L 

O
   

C 
K 

  
6

SL
O

LO

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

16
08

.0
0

16
16

.0
0

16
14

.0
0

16
06

.0
0

16
04

.0
0 16

12
.0

0

16
10

.0
0

16
02

.0
0

16
00

.0
0

16
08

.0
0

15
98

.00

16
06

.5
0

16
05

.0
0 16

05
.0

0
16

06
.5

0

16
06

.5
0

16
08

.5
0

16
08

.5
0

16
05

.0
0 15

97
.0

0
16

06
.0

0 15
98

.0
0

16
08

.0
0 16

00
.0

0

16
02

.0
0

1612.00

1619.00

16
14

.00

16
19

.00

16
19

.5
0

16
19

.5
0

1619.00

1619.00

1617.50

1617.50

16
16

.0
0

16
08

.0
0

16
05

.0
0

16
13

.0
0

16
10

.0
0

1615.50

1615.50

1613.00

1613.00

1614.00

1614.00 1615.00

1615.00 1616.50

1616.50

1618.00

1618.00

1618.00

1618.001616.00

1616.00

16
08

.5
0 16

03
.5

0
16

08
.5

0 16
03

.5
0

16
06

.0
0

16
11

.0
0

1612.00

1612.00

1611.50

1611.50

1612.00

1612.00

16
04

.0
0

16
07

.5
0

1611.00

1603.00

1603.00

1611.00

1603.00

1611.00

1604.50

1609.50

1609.00

1601.00

1609.50

1601.50

1610.00

1602.00

16
03

.5
0

16
11

.5
0

16
04

.5
0

16
05

.5
0

1603.50

.00

00

9.00

.00

16
12

.5
0

16

9.00

9.00

FB

LO

LO

FB

FB

LO

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

FB FB FB

FB

FB

FB

LO

FB FB FB

FB FB

FB

FB FB

W
O

W
O LO

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

EOF 1
601.0

W
ET

LA
N

D
 2

34
42

9
SQ

FT

10
05

 S
Q

FT

31
22

 S
Q

FT

1120 SQFT
1993 SQFT

>>
>>

>>
>>>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

16
02

.5
0

16
05

.0
0

FO
RB

AY

FI
LT

RA
TI

O
N

BA
SI

N

POND EXPANSIO
N

LO

16
08

.0
0 16

03
.0

0

ASPEN DR.

ST
ER

LIN
G 

AV
EN

UE

12
"

12
"

15
"

15
"

30
"24

"

24
"

24
"

24
"

54
" 54

"

24
"

24
"

18
"

18
"

18
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

12
"18

"

12
"18

"
18

"

18
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

24
"

24
"

24
"

30
"

12
"

12
"42

"

15
"

15
"

12
"

15
"

15
"

15
"24

"

48
"

>>

>>
>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

12
"

ASPEN DRIVE

ST
O

RM
 B

AS
IN

 1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 B
AS

IN

Exhibit 3E-3

GRAY



ST
A:

50
+2

8.
09

EL
: 1

59
7.

86

R

LE
G

EN
D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

TO
U

R

FE
ET

SC
AL

E

FU
LL

 B
A

SE
M

EN
T 

LO
T

FB LOW
O

W
AL

KO
U

T 
LO

T

LO
O

KO
U

T 
LO

T

SL
O

SI
D

E-
LO

O
KO

U
T 

LO
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

RA
IN

A
G

E 
D

IR
EC

TI
O

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

PO
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

16
05

.0
0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 O

N
-S

IT
E 

BO
RR

O
W

 A
RE

A
S

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

 F
IL

LI
N

G

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

 G
RA

D
IN

G

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 O

VE
RF

LO
W

 S
W

AL
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

H
A

SE
 1

 S
TO

RM
 S

EW
ER

EO
F

16
05

G
LE

N
W

O
O

D
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 S
EC

O
N

D 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

W
O

RT
H

IN
G

TO
N

, M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

PA
RT

 O
F 

SE
CT

IO
N

 2
8,

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 1
02

 N
O

RT
H

RA
N

G
E 

40
 W

ES
T,

 N
O

BL
ES

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

N

FO
R:

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
W

O
RT

HI
N

G
TO

N

FI
G

U
RE

 3
B

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

G
RA

DI
N

G
 &

 D
RA

IN
AG

E 
PL

AN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

D
 W

ET
LA

N
D

S
>>

TY
PE

12
0

60
0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

U
TU

RE
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

>>

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

>>

PH
A

SE
 1

 G
RA

D
IN

G
 L

IM
IT

S

03
/0

2/
20

20

X

>
>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>

>

>

>

90
+0

0
91

+0
0

92
+0

0
93

+0
0

94
+0

0
95

+0
0

96
+0

0
97

+0
0

98
+0

0
99

+0
0

10
0+

00
10

1+
00

10
2+

00
10

3+
00

80
+0

0
81

+0
0

82
+0

0

83
+0

0

84
+0

0

85
+0

0

86
+0

0

87
+0

0

88
+0

0

89
+0

0

20+0021+0022+0023+0024+00

25
+0

0
26

+0
0

27
+0

0

28+
00

29+0030+0031+00

32+00

33+00

40+0041+0042+0043+0044+0045+0046+00

47+00

48+00

49
+0

0

50
+0

0

0+001+002+003+004+005+006+007+008+009+0010+0011+0012+00
ST

A:
88

+9
3.

36
EL

: 1
60

4.
18

ST
A:

10
3+

00
.0

3
EL

: 1
60

0.
00

7

6 5 4 3 2 1
12345

6

7

8

9

10

4

3

2
1

7
6

5
4

3 2 1
11

10
9

14
13

12
15

8
7

654321
19 18

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

6
5

4
3

2
10

17 16

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9

O
U

TL
O

T
A

O
U

TL
O

T
B

O
U

TL
O

T
C

O
U

TL
O

T
D

O
U

TL
O

T
F

O
U

TL
O

T 
L

B 
L 

O
  C

 K
   

 5

B L O  C K    3

B 
L O

  C
 K

    
2

B L O  C K    4

B 
L O

   C
 K

    
7

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
   

 8

B L O   C K       9

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
   

   
 1

 0

B 
L 

O
  C

 K
 

 1
 1

B 
L 

O
   

C 
K 

   
6

SL
O

LO

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

16
08

.0
0

16
16

.0
0

16
14

.0
0

16
06

.0
0

16
04

.0
0 16

12
.0

0

16
10

.0
0

16
02

.0
0

16
00

.0
0

16
08

.0
0

16
06

.

1613.00

1613.00

1614.00

1614.00 1615.00

1615.00 1616.50

1616.50

1618.00

1618.00

1618.00

1618.001616.00

1616.00

16
08

.5
0 16

03
.5

0
16

08
.5

0 16
03

.5
0

16
06

.0
0

16
11

.0
0

1612.00

1612.00

1611.50

1611.50

1612.00

1612.00

16
04

.0
0

16
07

.5
0

1611.00

1603.00

1603.00

1611.00

1603.00

1611.00

1604.50

1609.50

1609.00

1601.00

1609.50

1601.50

1610.00

1602.00

16
03

.5
0

16
11

.5
0

16
04

.5
0

16
05

.5
0

1603.50

1609.00

1604.00 1608.50 1608.00 1608.00

1608.00

1603.00

1608.50

1603.50

1608.50

1600.50

1609.00

1601.00

16
07

.0
0

16
08

.0
0

16
08

.0
0

16
08

.5
0

16
08

.5
0

16
09

.0
0

16
09

.0
0

16
09

.7
0

16
09

.7
0

16
10

.5
0

1615.00

1615.00

1615.50

1615.50

16
14

. 5
0

16
14

.5
0

16
13

.0
0

16
13

.0
0

16
12

.0
0

16
12

.0
0

16
11

.5
0

16
11

.5
0

16
12

.0
0

16
12

.0
0

16
13

.0
0

16
13

.0
0

16
13

.5
0

16
13

.5
0

16
15

.0
0

16
15

.0
0

1617.50

1617.50

16
13

.5
0

16
12

.5
0

1611.50
1611.00

1606.00

1611.00

1611.00

1610.50

1610.50

1618.00

1618.00

1619.00

1619.00

1619.00

1619.00

1619.50

1619.50

1619.00

1619.00

1618.00

1618.00

1618.00

1618.00

1619.00

1619.00

16
11

.0
0

16
11

.0
0

16
11

.3
0

16
11

.3
0

16
11

.5
0

16
11

.5
0

16
11

.8
0

16
11

.8
0

16
12

.2
0

16
12

.2
0

16
12

.8
0

16
12

.8
0

16
13

.0
0

16
13

.0
0

16
15

.0
0

16
15

.0
0

16
17

.0
0

16
17

.0
0

FB

LO

LO

FB

LO

FB FB FB

FB FB

FB

FB FB

W
O

W
O LO

W
O

W
O

W
O W

O

W
O LO LO

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

W
O

FB FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB

FB

FB

FBFBFBFB

FB FB FB FB FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FB
FB

FBFBFBLO

EOF 1
601.0

W
ET

LA
N

D
 2

WETLAND 1

30
03

0
SQ

FT

34
42

9
SQ

FT

10
05

 S
Q

FT

31
22

 S
Q

FT

>> >> >> >>

>>

>> >> >> >> >>

>>
>>

>>

>> >> >> >>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>>>>>>>
>>

>>
>>

>>>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

16
02

.5
0

16
05

.0
0

O
F 

16
17

.0

LO

16
08

.0
0 16

03
.0

0

SU
TH

ER
LA

N
D

 D
RI

VE
16

07
.0

0
CAMPBELL BOULEVARD

1608.50 1608.00 1608.00

16
10

.5
0

24
"

12
"

12
"

15
"

18
"

12
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

12
"

18
"

18
"

18
"

24
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

15
"

15
"

30
"24

"

24
"

12
"

15
"

12
"18

"

12
"18

"
18

"

18
"

15
"

12
"

12
"

24
"

24
"

24
"

30
"

12
"

12
"42

"
30

"

42
"

>>

>>
ASPEN DRIVE

Exhibit 3E-4

GRAY



l l l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l

l
l

l
l

l
l l l l l

l

l
l

l
l

l l l l l l l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l
l

l

llllllll
l

ll

l

l

l
l

l
l

l

l

>>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

>
>

>

> > > >

>
>

>

>>>>>>
>

>

>

>

> > >>>>>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

>

>> >

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

SU
TH

ER
LA

N
D

 D
RI

VE

BU
CH

AN
AN

 C
O

UR
T

ST
ER

LIN
G 

AV
EN

UE

ASPEN DRIVE

STREET NAME B?

STREET NAME B?

CAMPBELL BOULEVARD

7

6 5 4 3 2 1
123456

7

8

9

10

4

3

2
1

7
6

5
4

3 2 1
11

10
9

14
13

12
15

8
7

654321

19 18

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

6
5

4
3

2

16

5

4

3

2
1

10987

6
5

4

3

2

1

17 16

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9

O
U

TL
O

T 
L

O
U

TL
O

T 
J

O
U

TL
O

T 
K

B 
L 

 O
 C

 K
   

 5

B L O  C K    3

B 
L O

  C
 K

   
 2

B L O  C K    4

B 
L O

   C
 K

    
7

B 
L O

   
C 

K 
   

8

B 
L O

   
C 

K 
   

2

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
  

  1
B L O   C K       9

B 
L 

O
 C

 K
   

   
 1

 0

B 
L 

O
  C

 K
   

   
 1

 1

B 
L 

O
   

C 
K 

   
6

>

>
>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>>>>>>
>

S

S

S

S

S

l

l

l

l
l

l

l

l

l

l

l
l

l l l l l l l l

l
l

l
l

l

l

l

l
l

ASPEN DRIVE

STERLING AVENUE

R

FE
ET

SC
AL

E

0
10

0
20

0
HO

RZ
.

N
O

TE
S: CO

N
N

EC
T 

TO
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 M
AN

H
O

LE

CO
N

N
EC

T 
TO

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 S

TU
B

CO
N

N
EC

T 
TO

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 W

AT
ER

M
AI

N

LE
G

EN
D

:

> l > l

A B C

C

C

C

C

B

B

A

FI
G

U
RE

 6
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 A

N
D 

W
AT

ER
 P

LA
N

R

G
LE

N
W

O
O

D
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 S
EC

O
N

D 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

W
O

RT
H

IN
G

TO
N

, M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

PA
RT

 O
F 

SE
CT

IO
N

 2
8,

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 1
02

 N
O

RT
H

RA
N

G
E 

40
 W

ES
T,

 N
O

BL
ES

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

N

FO
R:

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
W

O
RT

HI
N

GT
O

N

PH
AS

E 
1

FU
TU

RE

8"
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D

EX
IS

TI
N

G

8"
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

8"
 W

AT
ER

M
AI

N

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

AN
H

O
LE

8"
 W

AT
ER

M
AI

N

H
YD

RA
N

T

W
AT

ER
 V

AL
VE

 M
AN

H
O

LE

> l

PH
AS

E 
1 

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

01
/2

8/
20

20

Exhibit 3E-5

GRAY



1 

TIF DISTRICT #7 

 Workforce Housing 

Program & Policies
Adopted: November 10, 2008 

Amended: April 9, 2012 

PURPOSE / INTENT 
The purpose of the Workforce Housing Program (the Program) is to provide home ownership opportunities for 
individuals or families with incomes that do not exceed 80% of current area median income (AMI) within the 
City’s Redevelopment Project Area No. 7 using funds from the City’s existing TIF District #7.  

FUNDING 

The maximum amount of assistance for each loan/grant is $25,000 per individual or family; and $500,000 has 
been designated as pooled from the City’s TIF District No. 7 to finance such loans/grants (the Program Funding). 

INCOME TARGET 
Up to 80% of the current AMI by family size as established annually by the US Housing & Urban Development 
(HUD) and Minnesota Housing Finance Agency’s Minnesota City Participation Program as established for 
Greater Minnesota which is shown below for 2008, and adjusted by family size.  Income eligibility will be 
determined on an adjusted gross income basis.  The criteria and process for determining adjustments to gross 
incomes will be recommended by the program administrator and approved by the City. 

Household #s Income Limits 
1-4     $73,900 
5     $79,800 
6+     $84,895 

ELIGIBLE PROPERTIES 

Undeveloped lots that are zoned residential that are located within the boundaries of the City’s Redevelopment 
Project Area No. 7.   

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 

Homebuyers must meet the income criteria as noted above. 

IMPLEMENTATION 
To accomplish the purpose and intent of the Program, the Worthington City Council (the Council) has committed 
$500,000 from TIF District No. 7 for the following activities:  

1. To finance any outstanding assessments for public infrastructure levied against existing properties
in which the new single family dwelling has been constructed or purchased by an eligible person.

2. To finance any outstanding assessments for public infrastructure levied against any lot within a
new subdivision in which the new single family dwelling will be constructed or purchased by an

Exhibit 4A

GRAY



 

 
2 

eligible person.   
 
3.  To finance the costs of the public infrastructure for a lot within a residential subdivision where the 

new single family dwelling has been constructed or purchased by an eligible person.  The said 
infrastructure must have been completed by the developer and constructed in accordance with City 
specifications.   
 

 4. To finance proposed new residential subdivisions whereby the developer may request the 
infrastructure be completed by the City as an assessment project.  Under this scenario, the following shall 
occur: 
 

 City enters into a development agreement with Developer: 
 Lot values are established upfront; 
 Developer agrees to reserve 60% of the lots to be purchased by eligible persons; 
 Developer assures a minimum of 50% of the vacant lots will be made available for other 

contractors; and  
 Developer agrees to make assessment payments until lots are sold. 
 City will install the public infrastructure improvements and assesses the property as per 

City’s assessment ordinance. 
 City provides tax increment for eligible persons: 
 Increment used to ‘write down’ assessments of eligible persons; and 
 Increment may be used to reimburse developer for payments made on assessments. 

 
Tax increment will be provided as reimbursement for assessments up to the maximum amount.  In the event of 
default, the City shall receive ownership of the undeveloped lots and use the tax increment to make assessment 
payments until said lots are sold and development for eligible persons occurs.  The Developer shall be paid the 
established lot price at the time of sale. 
 
To ensure that the benefit of the tax increment assistance is passed along to eligible persons and families, the City 
shall require the following: 
 

 The developer/contractor must submit proper documentation of actual total development costs, 
including pre-determined lot values and infrastructure improvement costs; 

 The eligible homebuyer shall enter into a forgivable loan with the City whereby the homebuyer 
agrees to occupancy for a minimum of 5 years.  To the extent the term is less, the homebuyer is 
eligible for a portion of the tax increment assistance; and 

 The sale price of the home shall not exceed $237,031.  
 
APPLICATION 
Applications will be considered on a “first come - first served” basis.  A complete application shall consist of: 
 

 Letter requesting financial assistance; 
 Legal description of the subject property; 
 Proof of purchase agreement; and 
 Project budget. 

 
In addition, if the request is pursuant to Number 4 within the Implementation section, the applicant must comply 
with the City’s development and assessment process. 

Exhibit 4A

GRAY



 

 
3 

 
Upon submittal of a completed application, the Council shall schedule a date to consider the application.  The 
date shall not exceed 30 days from the date of application submittal.  The Council shall have the responsibility 
to determine which applications will be approved or denied. 
 
GENERAL UNDERWRITING CRITERIA 

Current on Debt Payments: 

Applicant must be current on contract for deed payments, mortgage loan payments and property taxes.  If any of 
these payments are delinquent, they must be made current before the application can be approved for funding. 
 
Income Qualification: 

Qualification of the income criteria will be determined on the annual gross income basis (80% of the current AMI 
as annually determined under MHFA guidelines).  Gross annual income is derived from all sources of income 
before tax or withholding, of all members of the household in a housing unit for at least 9 months of the year or 
who are claimed as dependants for federal income tax purposes.  The City’s income eligibility will be determined 
on an adjusted gross income basis.  The criteria and process for determining adjustments to gross incomes will 
be recommended by the City’s program administrator and approved by the Council. 
 
Qualifying income must be completed by the City’s program administer through one of the following sources: 
 

 Written verification from employers;  
 2 copies of most recent check or check stub; 
 Copies of 2 most recent years Federal Tax Returns, as filed;  
 Bank deposits; and 
 Copies of deposit slips. 

 
Loan to Value Ratio: 

All existing debt on property may not exceed 110% of the assessed market value. 
 
Debt to Income Ratio: 

Applicants must have the ability to repay the loan and must have a “debt-to-income ratio” at or less than 48%. 
 

DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
Program funds shall be disbursed after all terms of the development agreement or loan/grant agreement have been 
properly satisfied and a certificate of occupancy has been issued by the City’s building official.   
 

PROGRAM TERMINATION 
The Program shall expire when the Program Funding has been exhausted or upon the required date of 
decertification of TIF District #7 (12/31/2011), whichever occurs first.  
 
QUESTIONS 
Anyone with questions regarding the Program outlined may contact the City’s Community/Economic 
Development Department by phone (507-372-8640) or in person by visiting City Hall. 
 
DISCLAIMER 

Nothing herein shall obligate the City of Worthington to approve any grant or loan.  The Council must retain the 
right, in its sole discretion, to approve applications for the Program.    

Exhibit 4A

GRAY



Morning View Second Addition - TIF Income Guidelines for 2019 

Income Guidelines for TIF loan with the City of Worthington: 
The income guideline below is for total household income. 
If the total household income is over the Income limit shown below than the Buyers would not 
qualify for the TIF loan. 

Family Size  Income Limit 

1-4  $70,800 
5  $76,500 
6 $82,200 
7 plus $87,800 

Application Contact Information: 
Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership-Ali Joens 
507-836-1605

Exhibit 4B

GRAY



Year Awarded Address Amount Awarded Remaining Balance
2013 2163 Castlewood Drive $12,913.38 $487,086.62
2014 2219 Castlewood Drive $18,664.01 $468,422.61
2014 1734 Pauline Avenue $18,664.01 $449,758.60
2014 2243 Castlewood Drive $18,664.01 $431,094.59
2014 1736 Pauline Avenue $18,664.01 $412,430.58
2014 2211 Castlewood Drive $10,080.19 $402,350.39
2017 2227 Castlewood Drive $18,664.00 $383,686.39
2018 2217 Eleanor Street $24,701.00 $358,985.39
2018 2237 Eleanor Street $24,701.00 $334,284.39
2019 2234 Eleanor Street $24,701.19 $309,583.20
2019 2251 Eleanor Street $24,701.19 $284,882.01
2020 None $0.00 $284,882.01

Notes:  5 year, 5% forgivable loan

Workforce Housing Program

Initial Funding - $500,000.00

Budget code:  419-46549-5539

Exhibit 4C

GRAY



Rural Development Single Family Housing - Area Loan Limits

Select a state to see the area loan limits
 for the counties in that state.

WV

OH

PA

ME

VT
NH

MA
NY

MD
DC

DE
NJ

CT
RI

VA

NC

SC

WA

CA

NV

ID

MT

WY

ND

SD

NE

KS

OK

MN

IA

MO

AR

MS AL

WI

MI

IL IN

KY

TN

GA

FL

LA
TX

UT

AZ

AK

HI

WP/AS

PR
VI

NM

CO

OR

Exhibit 4D

GRAY



County or Equivalent Limit Effective 01-31-2020

Aitkin $265,400
Anoka Not Eligible

Becker $265,400
Beltrami $265,400
Benton $265,400

Big Stone $265,400
Blue Earth $265,400

Brown $265,400
Carlton $265,400
Carver $306,300

Cass $265,400
Chippewa $265,400
Chisago $306,300

Clay $265,400
Clearwater $265,400

Cook $265,400
Cottonwood $265,400

Crow Wing $265,400
Dakota $306,300
Dodge $265,400

Douglas $265,400
Faribault $265,400
Fillmore $265,400
Freeborn $265,400
Goodhue $265,400

Grant $265,400
Houston $293,400
Hubbard $265,400

Isanti $306,300
Itasca $265,400

Jackson $265,400
Kanabec $265,400

Kandiyohi $265,400
Kittson $265,400

Koochiching $265,400
Lac qui Parle $265,400

Lake $265,400
Lake of the Woods $265,400

Le Sueur $306,300
Lincoln $265,400

Lyon $265,400
McLeod $265,400

Mahnomen $265,400
Marshall $265,400

Martin $265,400

Minnesota

Homes financed under the program are generally 2,000 square feet or less. 
 

Area Loan Limits 
Single Family Housing Direct

Exhibit 4D

GRAY



County or Equivalent Limit Effective 01-31-2020

Meeker $265,400
Mille Lacs $306,300
Morrison $265,400

Mower $265,400
Murray $265,400

Nicollet $265,400
Nobles $265,400
Norman $265,400
Olmsted $265,400

Otter Tail $265,400
Pennington $265,400

Pine $265,400
Pipestone $265,400

Polk $265,400
Pope $265,400

Red Lake $265,400
Redwood $265,400
Renville $265,400

Rice $265,400
Rock $265,400

Roseau $265,400
St. Louis $265,400

Scott $306,300
Sherburne $306,300

Sibley $306,300
Stearns $265,400
Steele $265,400

Stevens $265,400
Swift $265,400
Todd $265,400

Traverse $265,400
Wabasha $265,400
Wadena $265,400
Waseca $265,400

Watonwan $265,400
Wilkin $265,400

Winona $265,400
Wright $306,300

Yellow Medicine $265,400

Homes financed under the program are generally 2,000 square feet or less. 
 

Area Loan Limits 
Single Family Housing Direct

Exhibit 4D

GRAY



 

 
1 

 

 
 TIF DISTRICT #7 

 Workforce Housing  

Program & Policies 

Adopted: November 10, 2008 

Amended: April 9, 2012 

Amended: June 8, 2020 
 
PURPOSE / INTENT 
The purpose of the Workforce Housing Program (the Program) is to provide home ownership opportunities for 
individuals or families with incomes that do not exceed 80% of current area median income (AMI) within the 
City’s Redevelopment Project Area No. 7 using funds from the City’s existing TIF District #7.  
 
FUNDING 

The maximum amount of assistance for each loan/grant is $25,000 per individual or family; and $500,000 has 
been designated as pooled from the City’s TIF District No. 7 to finance such loans/grants (the Program Funding). 
 

INCOME TARGET 
Up to 80% of the current AMI by family size as established annually by the US Housing & Urban Development 
(HUD) and Minnesota Housing Finance Agency’s Minnesota City Participation Program as established for 
Greater Minnesota which is shown below for 2008, and adjusted by family size.  Income eligibility will be 
determined on an adjusted gross income basis.  The criteria and process for determining adjustments to gross 
incomes will be recommended by the program administrator and approved by the City. 
 

Household #s  Income Limits 
      1-4      $73,900 
       5       $79,800 
       6+      $84,895 
 

 

ELIGIBLE PROPERTIES 

Undeveloped lots that are zoned residential that are located within the boundaries of the City’s Redevelopment 
Project Area No. 7.    
 
ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 

Homebuyers must meet the income criteria as noted above. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION 
To accomplish the purpose and intent of the Program, the Worthington City Council (the Council) has committed 
$500,000 from TIF District No. 7 for the following activities:  
 

1.  To finance any outstanding assessments for public infrastructure levied against existing properties 
in which the new single family dwelling has been constructed or purchased by an eligible person.  

 
2.  To finance any outstanding assessments for public infrastructure levied against any lot within a 

new subdivision in which the new single family dwelling will be constructed or purchased by an 

 

Exhibit 4E

GRAY



 

 
2 

eligible person.   
 
3.  To finance the costs of the public infrastructure for a lot within a residential subdivision where the 

new single family dwelling has been constructed or purchased by an eligible person.  The said 
infrastructure must have been completed by the developer and constructed in accordance with City 
specifications.   
 

 4. To finance proposed new residential subdivisions whereby the developer may request the 
infrastructure be completed by the City as an assessment project.  Under this scenario, the following shall 
occur: 
 

 City enters into a development agreement with Developer: 
 Lot values are established upfront; 
 Developer agrees to reserve 60% of the lots to be purchased by eligible persons; 
 Developer assures a minimum of 50% of the vacant lots will be made available for other 

contractors; and  
 Developer agrees to make assessment payments until lots are sold. 
 City will install the public infrastructure improvements and assesses the property as per 

City’s assessment ordinance. 
 City provides tax increment for eligible persons: 
 Increment used to ‘write down’ assessments of eligible persons; and 
 Increment may be used to reimburse developer for payments made on assessments. 

 
Tax increment will be provided as reimbursement for assessments up to the maximum amount.  In the event of 
default, the City shall receive ownership of the undeveloped lots and use the tax increment to make assessment 
payments until said lots are sold and development for eligible persons occurs.  The Developer shall be paid the 
established lot price at the time of sale. 
 
To ensure that the benefit of the tax increment assistance is passed along to eligible persons and families, the City 
shall require the following: 
 

 The developer/contractor must submit proper documentation of actual total development costs, 
including pre-determined lot values and infrastructure improvement costs; 

 The eligible homebuyer shall enter into a forgivable loan with the City whereby the homebuyer 
agrees to occupancy for a minimum of 5 years.  To the extent the term is less, the homebuyer is 
eligible for a portion of the tax increment assistance; and 

 The sale price of the home shall not exceed $237,031. The sale price of the home shall not exceed 
the most recent published United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Single 
Family Housing – Area Loan Limits for Nobles County 

 
APPLICATION 
Applications will be considered on a “first come - first served” basis.  A complete application shall consist of: 
 

 Letter requesting financial assistance; 
 Legal description of the subject property; 
 Proof of purchase agreement; and 
 Project budget. 

 

Exhibit 4E

GRAY



3 

In addition, if the request is pursuant to Number 4 within the Implementation section, the applicant must comply 
with the City’s development and assessment process. 

Upon submittal of a completed application, the Council shall schedule a date to consider the application.  The 
date shall not exceed 30 days from the date of application submittal.  The Council shall have the responsibility 
to determine which applications will be approved or denied. 

GENERAL UNDERWRITING CRITERIA 

Current on Debt Payments: 

Applicant must be current on contract for deed payments, mortgage loan payments and property taxes.  If any of 
these payments are delinquent, they must be made current before the application can be approved for funding. 

Income Qualification: 

Qualification of the income criteria will be determined on the annual gross income basis (80% of the current AMI 
as annually determined under MHFA guidelines).  Gross annual income is derived from all sources of income 
before tax or withholding, of all members of the household in a housing unit for at least 9 months of the year or 
who are claimed as dependents for federal income tax purposes.  The City’s income eligibility will be determined 
on an adjusted gross income basis.  The criteria and process for determining adjustments to gross incomes will 
be recommended by the City’s program administrator and approved by the Council. 

Qualifying income must be completed by the City’s program administer through one of the following sources: 

 Written verification from employers;  
 2 copies of most recent check or check stub; 
 Copies of 2 most recent years Federal Tax Returns, as filed; 
 Bank deposits; and 
 Copies of deposit slips. 

Loan to Value Ratio: 

All existing debt on property may not exceed 110% of the assessed market value. 

Debt to Income Ratio: 

Applicants must have the ability to repay the loan and must have a “debt-to-income ratio” at or less than 48%. 

DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
Program funds shall be disbursed after all terms of the development agreement or loan/grant agreement have been 
properly satisfied and a certificate of occupancy has been issued by the City’s building official.   

PROGRAM TERMINATION 
The Program shall expire when the Program Funding has been exhausted or upon the required date of 
decertification of TIF District #7 (12/31/2011), whichever occurs first.  

QUESTIONS 
Anyone with questions regarding the Program outlined may contact the City’s Community/Economic 
Development Department by phone (507-372-8640) or in person by visiting City Hall. 

DISCLAIMER 

Nothing herein shall obligate the City of Worthington to approve any grant or loan.  The Council must retain the 
right, in its sole discretion, to approve applications for the Program.   

Exhibit 4E

GRAY



06-01-2020 01:10 PM                         C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  5/29/2020                              PAGE:     1

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY LLP                 5/29/20 CR U JOINT                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          11.69-
                                        5/29/20 #322 U JOIN HYDRAULIC PUMP MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          23.38
                                        5/29/20 #332 U JOINT HYDRAULIC PUM MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          11.69_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              23.38
 
MICHAEL BURNS                           5/29/20 ADJUST DOOR CLOSER         GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS          40.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              40.00
 

C&B OPERATIONS LLC                      5/29/20 BELT                       MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT              15.83_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              15.83
 

C&S CHEMICALS INC                       5/29/20 4405 GALLONS OF ALUM       MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                5,131.83_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,131.83
 

COOPERATIVE ENERGY CO- ACCT # 5910807   5/29/20 4100 TORO                  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      20.55_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              20.55

 
DGR ENGINEERING                         5/29/20 ELECTRICAL ENG. SERVICES   ELECTRIC           O-DISTR STATION EXPENS       3,647.50
                                        5/29/20 SUBSTATION #2 SCADA ENHANC ELECTRIC           FA DISTR STATION EQUIP       1,760.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,407.50
 
DVS RENEWAL                             5/29/20 UNDERCOVER TABS            GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           14.25_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              14.25
 

ECHO GROUP INC                          5/29/20 PARTS                      ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          29.99
                                        5/29/20 PVC MISC                   ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          17.29
                                        5/29/20 PVC MISC                   ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE           5.08

                                        5/29/20 PVC MISC                   ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE           6.20_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              58.56
 

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC #1657          5/29/20 PVC                        ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                    33.19_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              33.19

 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATION SERVICES         5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       MAYOR AND COUNCIL               34.81
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       ADMINISTRATION                 510.13

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       CLERK'S OFFICE                 180.25
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       ACCOUNTING                      67.20
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN              166.85

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT           178.19
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       OTHER GEN GOVT MISC             26.11

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION            225.85
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              GENERAL FUND       CENTER FOR ACTIVE LIVI         285.53
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM            424.22

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      26.11
                                        5/29/20 BAC FIRE ALARMS            ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO TRAINING/TESTING CENTE          99.46
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                     307.56

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                      90.86
                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                130.10

                                        5/29/20 PHONE SERVICE              DATA PROCESSING    COPIER/FAX                      25.06_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,778.29
 

HACH COMPANY                            5/29/20 PHOSPHORUS TESTING SUPPLIE MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY          1,004.51_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,004.51
 

HY-VEE INC-61609 (UTILITIES)            5/29/20 TOILET PAPER, DISTILLED WA MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY              7.92
                                        5/29/20 TOILET PAPER, DISTILLED WA MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                   25.98



06-01-2020 01:10 PM                         C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  5/29/2020                              PAGE:     2

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
                                                                                                                     _______________

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              33.90
 
IDEAL LANDSCAPE & DESIGN INC            5/29/20 LANDSCAPE FABRIC           ELECTRIC           O-DISTR STATION EXPENS         225.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             225.00
 
J & A AUTOMOTIVE                        5/29/20 STEEL                      ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          20.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              20.00
 

JERRY'S AUTO SUPPLY OF WORTHINGTON INC  5/29/20 ANTIFREEZE                 RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      14.49
                                        5/29/20 #332 LEADER HOSE           MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT             238.52
                                        5/29/20 #330 HEADLIGHT             MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT              22.49_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             275.50
 
KHC CONSTRUCTION, INC                   5/29/20 PAY APP #8 EQ PUMP STATION MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT FA PURIFY STRUCTURES        69,471.96_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          69,471.96
 

LOCATORS & SUPPLIES INC                 5/29/20 MULE TAPE                  ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                   363.31
                                        5/29/20 MARKING SIGNS              ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         421.36_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             784.67

 
MEDIACOM                                5/29/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                  242.08_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             242.08

 
MINNESOTA CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CTR     5/29/20 GARNISHMENT                GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                39.22

                                        5/29/20 SUPPORT ORDER              GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 2.24
                                        5/29/20 SUPPORT ORDER              RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL                59.76
                                        5/29/20 SUPPORT ORDER              STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL                30.63

                                        5/29/20 SUPPORT ORDER              AIRPORT            NON-DEPARTMENTAL                26.89_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             158.74
 

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH          5/29/20 WATER SUPPLY CONNECTION FE WATER              O-DISTR METERS              10,101.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          10,101.00

 
MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LABS INC       5/29/20 MAY SALTY DISCHARGE TESTIN MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY            145.80_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             145.80

 
MISCELLANEOUS V DALEN AMY               5/29/20 RENTAL REFUND              MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL               250.00
                MILLS ANN               5/29/20 RENTAL REFUND              MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL               250.00

                O'DONNELL GRETCHEN      5/29/20 RENTAL REFUND              MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL               250.00
                HOEFKER KENNETH & ELLE  5/29/20 CUSTOMER REBATE            ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         350.00

                LEASE BRUCE             5/29/20 CUSTOMER REBATE            ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         350.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,450.00
 

NOBLES COUNTY RECORDER                  5/29/20 NOTARY PUBLIC COMMISSION-I ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN          20.00
                                        5/29/20 NOTARY PUBLIC COMMISSION-D ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN          20.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              40.00

 
ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOUTIL              5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           8.00

                                        5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          36.03
                                        5/29/20 TAPE, FOLDERS, PAPER, DIVI MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-SOURCE SUPERVISION            35.22
                                        5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT           7.99

                                        5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT          36.02
                                        5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          15.99
                                        5/29/20 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES     ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          72.05_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             211.30
 



06-01-2020 01:10 PM                         C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  5/29/2020                              PAGE:     3

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

SCHWALBACH ACE #6067                    5/29/20 OIL                        ELECTRIC           O-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE           7.98_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:               7.98
 

STUART C IRBY CO                        5/29/20 PVC DUCT                   ELECTRIC           FA DISTR UNDRGRND COND       2,220.00
                                        5/29/20 METERS P6242-6245          ELECTRIC           FA DISTR METERS              2,790.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,010.00

 
SWEENEY CONTROLS COMPANY                5/29/20 2 LIFT STATION HOUR METERS MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          78.83_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              78.83
 
TE UNDERGROUND LLC                      5/29/20 PAY APP #2-WATERLINE RELOC WATER              FA TRANS MAINS              36,634.12_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          36,634.12
 
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN              5/29/20 RECEIVER HITCH             GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   59.28_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              59.28
 

U S POSTAL SERVICE (QUADIENT-POC)       5/29/20 POSTAGE REFILL             DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING              2,000.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,000.00
 

VERIZON WIRELESS                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       MAYOR AND COUNCIL               41.57
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       ADMINISTRATION                  51.07
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN               92.32

                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT            31.73
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   36.16

                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                  102.14
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM             31.65
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      51.07

                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      36.57
                                        5/29/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           RECREATION         OLSON PARK CAMPGROUND           55.65_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             529.93

 
WORTHINGTON AREA UNITED WAY             5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                19.00

                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                19.00
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                19.00
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 5.00

                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 5.00
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 5.00
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.75

                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.75
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.75

                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.60
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.60
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 0.60

                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 3.65
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 3.65
                                        5/29/20 PAYROLL WITHHOLDING        ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 3.65_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              87.00
 

ZEP SALES & SERVICE-ACUITY SPECIALTY P  5/29/20 CLEANING SUPPLIES          ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                   435.27_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             435.27
 



06-01-2020 01:10 PM                         C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  5/29/2020                              PAGE:     4

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================
                                   101  GENERAL FUND                   2,483.98

                                   202  MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM            1,220.87
                                   229  RECREATION                       264.20
                                   231  ECONOMIC DEV AUTHORITY            99.46

                                   601  WATER                         46,781.40
                                   602  MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER          76,248.08

                                   604  ELECTRIC                      12,821.16
                                   606  STORM WATER MANAGEMENT            30.63
                                   609  LIQUOR                           307.56

                                   612  AIRPORT                          117.75
                                   702  DATA PROCESSING                2,155.16
                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:         142,530.25
                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    4



   6/01/2020  1:07 PM                          DIRECT PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER                                   PAGE:  1
  PACKET:      03524  LINCOLN FINANCIAL DUE 6/1

  VENDOR SET:  01     CITY OF WORTHINGTON        *** DRAFT/OTHER LISTING ***
  BANK:        1      WELLS FARGO-CITY

                                                             ITEM    ITEM                                 ITEM            ITEM

 VENDOR   I.D.                  NAME                         TYPE    DATE        DISCOUNT      AMOUNT      NO#          AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 

  J00036                        LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP        D  6/01/2020                             001179       3,943.98
 

                  * *  B A N K   T O T A L S  * *      NO#       DISCOUNTS        CHECK AMT        TOTAL APPLIED

                      REGULAR CHECKS:                   0            0.00              0.00                0.00
                      HANDWRITTEN CHECKS:               0            0.00              0.00                0.00
                      PRE-WRITE CHECKS:                 0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      DRAFTS:                           1            0.00          3,943.98            3,943.98
                      VOID CHECKS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      NON CHECKS:                       0            0.00              0.00                0.00
                      CORRECTIONS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      BANK TOTALS:                      1            0.00          3,943.98            3,943.98

 



   6/01/2020  1:03 PM                          DIRECT PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER                                   PAGE:  1
  PACKET:      03541  PAYROLL 5/29/20 - 9

  VENDOR SET:  01     CITY OF WORTHINGTON        *** DRAFT/OTHER LISTING ***
  BANK:        1      WELLS FARGO-CITY

                                                             ITEM    ITEM                                 ITEM            ITEM

 VENDOR   I.D.                  NAME                         TYPE    DATE        DISCOUNT      AMOUNT      NO#          AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 

  D00173                        DEFERRED COMP- MINNESOTA STATE D  6/03/2020                             001170       7,529.97
 

  E00088                        EFTPS                          D  6/03/2020                             001171      57,275.16
 
  M00309                        MINNESOTA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTD  6/03/2020                             001172       1,990.00

 
  O00021                        OPTUM HEALTH FINANCIAL         D  6/03/2020                             001173       3,241.89
 

  P00039                        PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSD  6/03/2020                             001174      45,380.76
 

  S00202                        STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPT OF REVED  6/03/2020                             001175      11,505.00
 

                  * *  B A N K   T O T A L S  * *      NO#       DISCOUNTS        CHECK AMT        TOTAL APPLIED
                      REGULAR CHECKS:                   0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      HANDWRITTEN CHECKS:               0            0.00              0.00                0.00
                      PRE-WRITE CHECKS:                 0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      DRAFTS:                           6            0.00        126,922.78          126,922.78
                      VOID CHECKS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00
                      NON CHECKS:                       0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      CORRECTIONS:                      0            0.00              0.00                0.00

                      BANK TOTALS:                      6            0.00        126,922.78          126,922.78

 



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     1

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

A H HERMEL COMPANY                      6/05/20 OFC COFFEE SERVICE, SUNDRI GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 42.30
                                        6/05/20 OFC COFFEE SERVICE, SUNDRI GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 42.31_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              84.61

 
ABRA AUTO BODY AND GLASS-WORTHINGTON    6/05/20 #19-42 REPAIRS             GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION        1,150.50
                                        6/05/20 #19-42 REPAIRS             GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          364.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,515.00
 

AMERICAN BOTTLING COMPANY               6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                90.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              90.00
 

ARCTIC GLACIER USA INC                  6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               121.60
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               136.20_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             257.80

 
ARTISAN BEER COMPANY                    6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               174.95_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             174.95
 
ATLANTIC  BOTTLING COMPANY              6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               312.59_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             312.59
 
BRADLEY BEHRENDS                        6/05/20 TRUCK SIGNS                ELECTRIC           O-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          85.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              85.50
 

BELLBOY CORPORATION                     6/05/20 MIX,                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               512.35
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                34.20-
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             6,021.45

                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               171.00-
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    6.73
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  139.00

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    4.00-
                                        6/05/20 MISC SUPPLIES              LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      79.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           6,549.33
 
BELTLINE AUTOMOTIVE LLC                 6/05/20 #17-28 MAINTENANCE         GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          551.80

                                        6/05/20 #17-28 MAINTENANCE         GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          205.65
                                        6/05/20 #17-23 OIL, FILTER         GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           32.24
                                        6/05/20 #17-23 OIL, FILTER         GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION            7.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             797.19
 

BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS INC                6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,476.00
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                15.60
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,541.70

                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                53.50
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL            12,072.21
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             9,438.05_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          38,597.06
 

BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY           6/05/20 TESTING LABELS             ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                   265.86_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             265.86
 

BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE MINNESOTA BEER LLC   6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             4,511.88
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                42.00
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                64.00

                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                73.65
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             4,450.99



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     2

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                43.00
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                96.00
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                85.50-

                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                85.50-
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                85.50-
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   60.13

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   50.64

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85-
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85-

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85-
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           9,133.94
 

MICHAEL BURNS                           6/05/20 DND KEYS                   GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           31.50_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              31.50

 
CAMPUS CLEANERS                         6/05/20 RENTAL MATS, BAR TOWELS    LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      36.67_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              36.67

 
CARLOS CREEK WINERY INC                 6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               850.50_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             850.50

 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE                     6/05/20 LODGING TAX-APRIL          GENERAL FUND       LODGING TAX/TOURISM         10,067.93_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          10,067.93
 
CITY OF WORTHINGTON                     6/05/20 PETTY CASH FOR OLSON PARK  RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL               100.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             100.00
 
CLAIR VAN GROUW CONSTRUCTION INC        6/05/20 SALES TAX-PARK PROJECTS BL RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL            16,930.28-

                                        6/05/20 SALES TAX-PARK PROJECTS BL RECREATION         PARK AREAS                 338,605.63_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:         321,675.35

 
CLEAR CHOICE WATER                      6/05/20 LAB DISTILLER REPAIR PARTS MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY             64.95_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              64.95

 
CORE & MAIN LP                          6/05/20 2ND & 11TH WATER           WATER              PROJECT #11                 19,918.90
                                        6/05/20 2020 WATER RECON-2ND & 11T WATER              PROJECT #11                  3,354.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          23,272.90
 

CULLIGAN OF WORTHINGTON                 6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS          57.95
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION             14.40
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                    5.00

                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          18.00
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          12.83_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             108.18

 
DACOTAH PAPER CO                        6/05/20 HAND SANITIZER             LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      91.37

                                        6/05/20 FACE MASKS, BAGS, TOWELS   LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                     337.49_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             428.86
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY             6/05/20 TITLE/REGISTRATION         GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           81.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              81.00
 

DESLAURIERS INC                         6/05/20 TEST CYLINDERS             IMPROVEMENT CONST  2019 HOMEWOOD HILLS ST          68.16
                                        6/05/20 TEST CYLINDERS             WATER              PROJECT #2                      22.80



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     3

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 TEST CYLINDERS             WATER              PROJECT #2                      45.60_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             136.56
 

DOLL DISTRIBUTING LLC                   6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,992.15
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               132.00
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               540.00

                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL            13,133.65
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             7,698.35

                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                28.00
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL            13,868.40
                                        6/05/20 BEER                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,557.20_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          42,949.75
 
DOUGLAS SPORTS                          6/05/20 PLEASANT TENNIS COURTS     RECREATION         PARK AREAS                     272.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             272.00
 

DUBOIS CHEMICALS INC                    6/05/20 CHEMICALS                  INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC                8,164.91
                                        6/05/20 CHEMICALS                  INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC                8,279.42_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          16,444.33

 
FASTENAL COMPANY                        6/05/20 REPAIR FLUSHING PUMP       MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT              76.61_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              76.61

 
FEDEX                                   6/05/20 MASKS                      GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           19.55_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              19.55
 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC #1657          6/05/20 CHAUTAUQUA RESTROOMS       RECREATION         PARK AREAS                     234.47

                                        6/05/20 RESTROOMS                  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      79.96
                                        6/05/20 PVC FITTING                ELECTRIC           O-DISTR STATION EXPENS           6.57
                                        6/05/20 SUMP PUMP                  ELECTRIC           O-DISTR STATION EXPENS         150.00

                                        6/05/20 CATCH BASIN REPAIRS        STORM WATER MANAGE STORM DRAINAGE                  31.42_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             502.42

 
FIFE WATER SERVICES INC                 6/05/20 FIFE WATER SERVICES INC    INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC               10,787.05_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          10,787.05

 
GALLS LLC                               6/05/20 BELTS                      GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           90.33_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              90.33

 
GOPHER STATE ONE CALL                   6/05/20 MONTHLY LOCATE SERVICES    WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    65.14

                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY LOCATE SERVICES    MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          65.13
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY LOCATE SERVICES    ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                   130.28_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             260.55

 
HACH COMPANY                            6/05/20 PIPET TIPS                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY            207.47_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             207.47

 
INTEGRITY AVIATION INC                  6/05/20 FBO MANAGEMENT FEE-MAY     AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                   2,312.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,312.00
 
JANITOR'S CLOSET                        6/05/20 SOAP DISPENSERS-RESTROOMS  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                     145.71_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             145.71
 
JAYCOX IMPLEMENT INC                    6/05/20 LAWN MOWER                 WATER              FA MACHINERY & EQUIPME       8,485.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           8,485.00
 



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     4

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

JC RAMSDELL ENVIRO SERVICES INC         6/05/20 REPAIR OF EQ LIINER        MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MISC                3,435.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,435.00
 

JERRY'S AUTO SUPPLY OF WORTHINGTON INC  6/05/20 PARTS                      GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   47.88
                                        6/05/20 HYDRANT REPAIR TOOLS       WATER              M-TRANS HYDRANTS                12.99
                                        6/05/20 HYDRANT REPAIR TOOLS       WATER              M-TRANS HYDRANTS                 3.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              64.37
 

JOBSHQ                                  6/05/20 RETAIL CLERK ADS           GENERAL FUND       PERSONNEL & RECRUITMEN         414.50_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             414.50
 

JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR CO              6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,300.00-
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                44.50-
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             9,755.85

                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             2,432.16
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                70.95

                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,351.25
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                37.00
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,902.58

                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,805.26
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                84.95
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                96.00

                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,779.00
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   16.90-

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  360.00-
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  163.42
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   98.01

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   18.59
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.69
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   61.90

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  132.68
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    9.30_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          22,079.19
 
LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INSURANCE TRUST     6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            15,396.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,651.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,136.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       MAYOR AND COUNCIL               67.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ADMINISTRATION                 268.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ELECTIONS                       16.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CLERK'S OFFICE                 465.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ACCOUNTING                     452.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN            1,045.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN              178.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT           864.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT           178.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS          44.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS       3,562.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       OTHER GEN GOVT MISC             90.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION       38,050.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION        7,944.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION        1,149.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                783.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                783.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION            409.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION            912.75



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     5

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION          1,617.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CIVIL DEFENSE ADMIN             18.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ANIMAL CONTROL ENFORCE          15.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                1,587.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                1,569.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                3,237.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ICE AND SNOW REMOVAL           162.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ICE AND SNOW REMOVAL         1,529.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       SIGNS AND SIGNALS               26.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       TRASH PICKUP                    40.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT               327.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT                93.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CENTER FOR ACTIVE LIVI          69.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       CENTER FOR ACTIVE LIVI       1,026.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PUBLIC ARTS                     23.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PUBLIC ARTS                     78.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       BAND                             5.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       BAND                         2,172.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       LAKE IMPROVEMENT                21.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       LAKE IMPROVEMENT               165.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       PROMOTIONAL COMMITTEE          536.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       MISC SPECIAL DAYS/EVEN          11.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ADI DEVELOPMENT                  5.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU GENERAL FUND       ADI DEVELOPMENT                951.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL                87.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIU NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,206.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM            262.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM          3,619.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU EVENT CENTER       NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 4.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU EVENT CENTER       NON-DEPARTMENTAL               477.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU EVENT CENTER       EVENT CENTER                    12.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU EVENT CENTER       EVENT CENTER                 1,431.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,537.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL               177.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL             6,293.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         RECREATION PROGRAMS             56.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         FIELD HOUSE                  1,677.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         SWIMMING BEACHES                12.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         SOCCER COMPLEX                  49.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         GOLF COURSE-GREEN                2.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         GOLF COURSE-GREEN              516.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         PARK AREAS                   2,007.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         PARK AREAS                     533.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         PARK AREAS                  16,593.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         OLSON PARK CAMPGROUND           50.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         OLSON PARK CAMPGROUND        1,771.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         10TH STREET PAVILION           671.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU RECREATION         TREE REMOVAL                    84.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO NON-DEPARTMENTAL               303.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO NON-DEPARTMENTAL               932.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO MISC INDUSTRIAL DEVELO         909.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT         2,797.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU PIR/TRUNKS         NON-DEPARTMENTAL               244.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU PIR/TRUNKS         SP ASSESS-ADMIN ESCROW         732.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU IMPROVEMENT CONST  NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,556.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU IMPROVEMENT CONST  OTHER MISC PROJECTS          4,670.25



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     6

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL BUILDING NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 1.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL BUILDING OTHER GEN GOVT MISC              3.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU OKABENA ESTATES    NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 5.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU OKABENA ESTATES    OKABENA ESTATES                 15.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,171.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL               261.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,456.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              PROPERTY INSURANCE          10,368.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              INJURIES AND DAMAGES         3,513.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU WATER              INJURIES AND DAMAGES           785.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,197.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL               268.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT NON-DEPARTMENTAL             2,834.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT INJURIES & DAMAGES           8,503.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT INJURIES AND DAMAGES         9,591.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT INJURIES AND DAMAGES           804.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,044.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL               264.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,537.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           PROPERTY INSURANCE          16,613.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           INJURIES & DAMAGES          15,132.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU ELECTRIC           INJURIES & DAMAGES             792.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA NON-DEPARTMENTAL               393.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA NON-DEPARTMENTAL                49.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,517.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC                1,180.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC                  147.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC                4,553.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL                40.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL                76.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL                45.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 4.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE NON-DEPARTMENTAL               343.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE STORM DRAINAGE                 121.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE STORM DRAINAGE                  12.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE STREET CLEANING                229.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE STREET CLEANING                135.75
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU STORM WATER MANAGE STREET CLEANING              1,030.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             2,282.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               821.00

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                   6,846.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                   2,463.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            NON-DEPARTMENTAL                20.75

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            NON-DEPARTMENTAL                80.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            NON-DEPARTMENTAL             5,720.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            NON-DEPARTMENTAL               152.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                      62.25
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                     241.50

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                  17,160.00
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                     457.50
                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU DATA PROCESSING    NON-DEPARTMENTAL                77.25

                                        6/05/20 2020-2021 INSURANCE PREMIU DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                231.75_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:         282,682.00
 

LOCATORS & SUPPLIES INC                 6/05/20 HI-VIS SHIRTS              ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                    79.11_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              79.11

 



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     7

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

LOU'S GLOVES INC                        6/05/20 NITRILE GLOVES             MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          92.00
                                        6/05/20 NITRILE GLOVES             MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                   92.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             184.00

 
MARTHALER CDJR                          6/05/20 #20-43 OIL CHANGE          GENERAL FUND       ANIMAL CONTROL ENFORCE          54.35_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              54.35

 
MARTHALER FORD OF WORTHINGTON           6/05/20 #20-32 NEW DOOR LOCK PAD   GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          100.00

                                        6/05/20 #20-32 NEW DOOR LOCK PAD   GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           59.50
                                        6/05/20 #18-30 OIL CHANGE          GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           30.90
                                        6/05/20 #18-30 OIL CHANGE          GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           23.45

                                        6/05/20 #14-34 OIL CHANGE          GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           30.90
                                        6/05/20 #14-34 OIL CHANGE          GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           23.45
                                        6/05/20 PARTS                      GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           58.90-

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             209.30
 

MC CUEN CONSTRUCTION INC                6/05/20 WATER CONCRETE RESTORATION WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL             2,151.60-
                                        6/05/20 WATER CONCRETE RESTORATION WATER              PROJECT #2                  43,032.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          40,880.40

 
MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES CORP         6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                  284.41
                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   46.63

                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                RECREATION         OLSON PARK CAMPGROUND          105.29
                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO TRAINING/TESTING CENTE         289.58

                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    18.50
                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                  397.18
                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                     285.37

                                        6/05/20 GAS SERVICE                AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                      98.90_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,525.86
 

MISCELLANEOUS V SWANSON SHAUN           6/05/20 PARK RENTAL REFUND         RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL                46.57
                SWANSON SHAUN           6/05/20 PARK RENTAL REFUND         RECREATION         NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 3.43

                ALCALA AGUSTIN BARRON   6/05/20 REFUND OF DEPOSITS-ACCT FI WATER              NON-DEPARTMENTAL                 2.53
                ALCALA AGUSTIN BARRON   6/05/20 REFUND OF DEPOSITS-ACCT FI WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           0.28
                ALCALA AGUSTIN BARRON   6/05/20 REFUND OF DEPOSITS-ACCT FI ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                95.00

                FISCHER JAMIE           6/05/20 REFUND OF CREDITS-ACCT FIN ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                51.95
                GARZA GRACIELA          6/05/20 REFUND OF CREDIT-ACCT FINA ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                71.38
                GEBREDNGL SIMON         6/05/20 REFUND OF CREDIT-ACCT FINA ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                48.63

                MEQUANENT AMARE         6/05/20 REFUND OF CREDIT-ACCT FINA ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                85.21
                WIEBE KAROLYN           6/05/20 REFUND OF CREDIT-ACCT FINA ELECTRIC           NON-DEPARTMENTAL                95.48

                AMERICAN LUTHERAN CHUR  6/05/20 CUSTOMER REBATE            ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN       1,250.00
                DO VICKY                6/05/20 QUALITY INSTALL REBATE     ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         350.00
                ENGLER LENAI            6/05/20 QUALITY INSTALL REBATE     ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         350.00

                RED CARPET INN          6/05/20 OFF-PEAK LIGHTING REBATE   ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         212.34
                WINCH ERIC              6/05/20 QUALITY INSTALL REBATE     ELECTRIC           CUSTOMER INSTALL EXPEN         350.00
                ALCALA AGUSTIN BARRON   6/05/20 REFUND OF DEPOSITS-ACCT FI ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           0.60_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,013.40
 

MORRIS ELECTRONICS INC                  6/05/20 TECHNICAL SUPPORT          WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          10.00
                                        6/05/20 TECHNICAL SUPPORT          MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT          10.00
                                        6/05/20 TECHNICAL SUPPORT          ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          20.00

                                        6/05/20 LICENSE                    DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                 66.92
                                        6/05/20 LICENSE                    DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                400.70
                                        6/05/20 REMOTE SUPPORT             DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                420.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             927.62
 



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     8

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

MUSCH CONSTRUCTION, INC                 6/05/20 CENTENNIAL PARK SIDEWALK   RECREATION         PARK AREAS                  15,120.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          15,120.00
 

NICOLE R KEMPEMA                        6/05/20 MAY CLEANING-CITY HALL     GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS       2,100.00
                                        6/05/20 MAY CLEANING-BAC           ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO TRAINING/TESTING CENTE         801.56_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,901.56

 
NOBLES COUNTY ATTORNEY                  6/05/20 WPD DWI FORFEITURE-SEIZED  GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           30.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              30.00
 
NOBLES COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER         6/05/20 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT-APR WASTE MANAGEMENT C SOLID WASTE/RECYCLE          7,262.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           7,262.00
 
NOBLES COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT              6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN               70.79

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT            33.66
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION        2,986.75

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       ANIMAL CONTROL ENFORCE         217.39
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                1,547.74
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       ICE AND SNOW REMOVAL           229.89

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT                50.32
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 RECREATION         SOCCER COMPLEX                 182.97
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 RECREATION         PARK AREAS                     508.17

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 WATER              O-PUMPING                      114.35
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 WATER              M-TRANS MAINS                  410.94

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          90.76
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY SUPERVISION            28.73
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                   33.96

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS         172.55
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS          80.88
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS         179.17

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 ELECTRIC           O-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE       1,064.72
                                        6/05/20 PERMIT LIGHTING            ELECTRIC           FA DISTR ST LITE & SIG         220.00

                                        6/05/20 PERMIT FIBER OPTICS        ELECTRIC           FA COMMUNICATION EQUIP         125.00
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 STORM WATER MANAGE STORM DRAINAGE                  90.77
                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 STORM WATER MANAGE STREET CLEANING                561.58

                                        6/05/20 APRIL FUEL                 AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                     185.57_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           9,186.66
 

NUTRIEN AG SOLUTIONS                    6/05/20 TREE SPRAY                 RECREATION         TREE REMOVAL                   466.33_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             466.33

 
ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOCITY              6/05/20 POST ITS                   GENERAL FUND       ADMINISTRATION                  14.62
                                        6/05/20 LEGAL PAD                  GENERAL FUND       ADMINISTRATION                  12.99

                                        6/05/20 ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOCITY GENERAL FUND       ENGINEERING ADMIN               10.47
                                        6/05/20 PAPER                      GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT            18.26
                                        6/05/20 CERTIFICATE PAPER          GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT             6.20

                                        6/05/20 ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOCITY GENERAL FUND       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT            10.47_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              73.01

 
ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-NCLAWE              6/05/20 LABELS                     GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 16.19
                                        6/05/20 LABELS                     GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 16.19_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              32.38
 
ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOCITY              6/05/20 COPIER SERVICE-MX2600N     GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   15.50

                                        6/05/20 PUBLIC WORKS COPIER SERVIC RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      59.00
                                        6/05/20 COPIER SERVICE-MXC301W     LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      68.27



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:     9

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 HAND SANITIZER             DATA PROCESSING    DATA PROCESSING                 89.40
                                        6/05/20 COPIER SERVICE-MX5140N     DATA PROCESSING    COPIER/FAX                     215.01
                                        6/05/20 BOX PAPER                  DATA PROCESSING    COPIER/FAX                     758.00

                                        6/05/20 DISINFECTING WIPES         SAFETY PROMO/LOSS  HEALTH/SAFETY/FITNESS           49.90
                                        6/05/20 DISINFECTING WIPES         SAFETY PROMO/LOSS  HEALTH/SAFETY/FITNESS           49.99_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,305.07

 
ONE OFFICE SOLUTION-WOUTIL              6/05/20 TONER                      WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    86.40

                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                WATER              ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES            6.25
                                        6/05/20 WEBCAM                     WATER              ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES           19.75
                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           6.25

                                        6/05/20 PENS                       WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           7.66
                                        6/05/20 PAPER                      WATER              ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           3.95
                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES            6.24

                                        6/05/20 WEBCAM                     MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES           19.75
                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT           6.24

                                        6/05/20 PENS                       MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT           7.64
                                        6/05/20 PAPER                      MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT ACCT-RECORDS & COLLECT           3.95
                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                ELECTRIC           ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES           12.50

                                        6/05/20 WEBCAM                     ELECTRIC           ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES           39.50
                                        6/05/20 PAPERTOWELS                ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          12.50
                                        6/05/20 PENS                       ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC          15.31

                                        6/05/20 PAPER                      ELECTRIC           ACCTS-RECORDS & COLLEC           7.91_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             261.80

 
OPTUM BANK                              6/05/20 HSA ADMIN FEE-MARCH        GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS          82.50_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              82.50

 
PAUSTIS WINE COMPANY                    6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             3,581.00
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   58.75_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,639.75
 

PEPSI COLA BOTTLING CO OF PIPESTONE, M  6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                44.95
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                74.90_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             119.85

 
PHILLIPS WINE & SPIRITS INC             6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             7,300.86
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               925.45

                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             4,075.00
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             6,246.76

                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             1,013.25
                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                50.28
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  133.43

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   39.81
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   98.03
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   83.66

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   33.80_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          20,000.33

 
POLLARD WATER.COM                       6/05/20 SERVICE LINE TOOLS         WATER              O-DIST UNDERGRND LINES         166.53_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             166.53

 
BRIAN POWERS                            6/05/20 MONTHLY BOILER CHECK-MAY   MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM            310.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             310.00

 
RADIO WORKS LLC                         6/05/20 SIGN-IN PACKAGE-MEDIA WORK GENERAL FUND       OTHER GEN GOVT MISC            500.00



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:    10

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
                                                                                                                     _______________

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             500.00
 
RED BULL DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC       6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               303.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             303.00
 
RILEY MARK                              6/05/20 BOOTS                      GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION           63.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              63.00
 

ROUND LAKE VINEYARDS & WINERY LLC       6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               882.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             882.00
 

RUNNINGS SUPPLY INC-ACCT#9502440        6/05/20 CLOCK                      WATER              O-PURIFY MISC                    8.99
                                        6/05/20 SERVICE LINE TOOLS         WATER              O-DIST UNDERGRND LINES         216.57
                                        6/05/20 SERVICE LINE TOOLS         WATER              O-DIST UNDERGRND LINES          26.58-

                                        6/05/20 SHOP SUPPLIES              WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    63.54
                                        6/05/20 SHOP SUPPLIES              WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    50.96

                                        6/05/20 SHOP SUPPLIES              WATER              O-DISTR MISC                    20.65
                                        6/05/20 HYDRANT REPAIRS            WATER              M-TRANS HYDRANTS                78.62
                                        6/05/20 COUPLER PARTS              MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-SOURCE MAINS & LIFTS           0.10-

                                        6/05/20 NUTS AND BOLTS             MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT               1.41
                                        6/05/20 FLEX TAPE, BOLTS           MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT              22.50
                                        6/05/20 MOP, BALL VALVE            MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT M-PURIFY EQUIPMENT              20.68

                                        6/05/20 HOSE CLAMPS                ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          14.90-
                                        6/05/20 HOSE CLAMPS                ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          16.19

                                        6/05/20 ROUNDUP                    ELECTRIC           M-DISTR UNDERGRND LINE          39.98_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             498.51
 

RUNNINGS SUPPLY INC-ACCT#9502485        6/05/20 BATTERY                    GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION            3.69
                                        6/05/20 BATTERY                    GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION            6.38
                                        6/05/20 LADDER FOR RANGE           GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          163.34

                                        6/05/20 BUNGEY CORD                GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION            4.98
                                        6/05/20 PIPE, COUPLERS, ELBOW      GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   47.50

                                        6/05/20 TAC SPRAYER                GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                   96.98
                                        6/05/20 WIRING LIGHTS              GENERAL FUND       ICE AND SNOW REMOVAL            57.25
                                        6/05/20 SAW BLADES-DOCK REPAIRS    GENERAL FUND       LAKE IMPROVEMENT                33.97

                                        6/05/20 NIKON TRAILBLAZER, BANDAGE MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM             61.50
                                        6/05/20 SHOP                       RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      17.45
                                        6/05/20 BEACH NOOK                 RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      87.66

                                        6/05/20 SHOP                       RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      34.47
                                        6/05/20 SHOP                       RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      12.01

                                        6/05/20 BIT, SCREW                 STORM WATER MANAGE STORM DRAINAGE                  12.98
                                        6/05/20 HANGAR                     AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                      83.38_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             723.54

 
SCHAAP SANITATION                       6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       GENERAL GOVT BUILDINGS         109.93
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       FIRE ADMINISTRATION             51.68

                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            GENERAL FUND       PAVED STREETS                  438.11
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            MEMORIAL AUDITORIU MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM             39.60

                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            WATER              O-DISTR MISC                   119.28
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY MISC                  283.43
                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                    77.09

                                        6/05/20 MONTHLY SERVICE            AIRPORT            O-GEN MISC                     100.44
                                        6/05/20 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT-APR GARBAGE COLLECTION SOLID WASTE/RECYCLE         70,201.74
                                        6/05/20 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT-APR GARBAGE COLLECTION SOLID WASTE/RECYCLE         14,160.90

                                        6/05/20 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT-APR GARBAGE COLLECTION SOLID WASTE/RECYCLE          1,187.73-
                                        6/05/20 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT-APR GARBAGE COLLECTION CODE ENFORCEMENT             4,538.75



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:    11

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
                                                                                                                     _______________

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          88,933.22
 
SCHWALBACH ACE HARDWARE-5930            6/05/20 SIGNS-RESTROOMS            RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      19.97

                                        6/05/20 BEACH NOOK SERVER WINDOWS  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      32.99
                                        6/05/20 BEACH NOOK SERVER WINDOWS  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      20.77
                                        6/05/20 BALL FOUNTAIN              RECREATION         PARK AREAS                       5.37

                                        6/05/20 BALL FOUNTAIN              RECREATION         PARK AREAS                       6.99
                                        6/05/20 BALL FOUNTAIN              RECREATION         PARK AREAS                       0.58

                                        6/05/20 BEACH NOOK                 RECREATION         PARK AREAS                       2.20_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              88.87
 

SCHWALBACH ACE #6067                    6/05/20 INFLUENT SAMPLE SHIPPING   MUNICIPAL WASTEWAT O-PURIFY LABORATORY             11.14_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:              11.14
 

SOUTHERN GLAZER'S  WINE AND SPIRITS LL  6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               712.80
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             6,841.12

                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                19.00
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL                36.00
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL             8,617.35

                                        6/05/20 MIX                        LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               137.12
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               440.00
                                        6/05/20 LIQUOR                     LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               132.00-

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   33.30

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   95.45
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    1.85

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                  115.16
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    9.25
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    9.25

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                   11.10_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          16,950.45

 
TRI-STATE GENERAL CONTRACTING           6/05/20 ENTERTAINMENT SPEC BLDG #8 ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO NON-DEPARTMENTAL            15,030.94-
                                        6/05/20 ENTERTAINMENT SPEC BLDG #8 ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT       300,618.80_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         285,587.86
 
TRI-STATE RENTAL CENTER                 6/05/20 LIQUID CARBON DIOXIDE      WATER              O-DIST UNDERGRND LINES          40.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              40.50
 

ULINE                                   6/05/20 EVIDENCE BOX, POLYTUBING   GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          386.49_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             386.49
 

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA              6/05/20 CONTRACT OPERATIONS FEE-JU INDUSTRIAL WASTEWA O-PURIFY MISC               52,822.60_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:          52,822.60
 

VERIZON WIRELESS                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          628.55
                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       POLICE ADMINISTRATION          595.27

                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 66.84
                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       SECURITY CENTER                 66.84
                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       ANIMAL CONTROL ENFORCE          35.01

                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT                89.12
                                        6/05/20 WIRELESS SERVICE           GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT                35.01_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,516.64

 
PHILLIP JAY WILLARDSON                  6/05/20 MOW & TRIM-808 MILTON AVEN GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT                35.00



06-04-2020 12:51 AM                          C O U N C I L   R E P O R T  6/5/2020                              PAGE:    12

VENDOR SORT KEY                          DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_
 

                                        6/05/20 MOWING & TRIMMING          GENERAL FUND       CODE ENFORCEMENT               105.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             140.00
 

WINE MERCHANTS                          6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               480.00
                                        6/05/20 WINE                       LIQUOR             NON-DEPARTMENTAL               288.00-
                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    6.76

                                        6/05/20 FREIGHT                    LIQUOR             O-SOURCE MISC                    5.07-
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             193.69

 
WORTHINGTON BUILDING MATERIALS INC      6/05/20 BEACH NOOK SERVING WINDOW  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      32.21
                                        6/05/20 BEACH NOOK SERVING WINDOW  RECREATION         PARK AREAS                      23.52_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              55.73
 
WORTHINGTON TOWNSHIP                    6/05/20 REIMB TAXES ON ANNEXED PRO ECONOMIC DEV AUTHO MISC HOUSING DEVELOPME         186.13

                                        6/05/20 REIMB TAXES ON ANNEXED PRO ELECTRIC           O-DISTR MISC                   186.12_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             372.25

 
WSB & ASSOCIATES INC                    6/05/20 BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY STU WATER              O-PURIFY MISC                3,115.50_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,115.50

 
WYCOFF DANNY                            6/05/20 WYCOFF DANNY               LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      34.27
                                        6/05/20 FEB/MARCH MILEAGE          LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      34.21

                                        6/05/20 APRIL/MAY MILEAGE          LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      34.16
                                        6/05/20 LATEX GLOVES               LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                      29.72_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             132.36
 
YMCA                                    6/05/20 CAL MANAGEMENT-MAY         GENERAL FUND       CENTER FOR ACTIVE LIVI       2,324.06

                                        6/05/20 SEMI ANNUAL AQUA INSURANCE AQUATIC CENTER FAC AQUATIC CENTER FACILIT       1,370.00_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,694.06
 

ZABINSKI BUSINESS SERVICES INC          6/05/20 INGENICO SIGNATURE CAPTURE LIQUOR             O-GEN MISC                     697.94_
                                                                                                          TOTAL:             697.94

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   101  GENERAL FUND                 123,973.46
                                   202  MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM            5,587.10
                                   214  EVENT CENTER                   1,925.00

                                   229  RECREATION                   371,331.44
                                   231  ECONOMIC DEV AUTHORITY       291,807.13

                                   321  PIR/TRUNKS                       976.00
                                   401  IMPROVEMENT CONST              6,295.16
                                   409  MUNICIPAL BUILDING                 4.00

                                   425  OKABENA ESTATES                   20.00
                                   431  AQUATIC CENTER FACILITY        1,370.00
                                   601  WATER                         96,885.75

                                   602  MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER          30,626.27
                                   604  ELECTRIC                      48,897.66

                                   605  INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER         87,895.98
                                   606  STORM WATER MANAGEMENT         2,736.75
                                   609  LIQUOR                       177,145.65

                                   612  AIRPORT                       26,675.29
                                   702  DATA PROCESSING                2,259.03
                                   703  SAFETY PROMO/LOSS CTRL            99.89

                                   873  GARBAGE COLLECTION            87,713.66
                                   878  WASTE MANAGEMENT COLL          7,262.00

                                   --------------------------------------------
                                                GRAND TOTAL:       1,371,487.22
                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:   12


	CC Agenda
	CC Minutes 5-26-20
	Minutes of Boards & Commissions (PINK)
	W & L Comm. Min 5-18-20
	EDAu Meeting Min 5-26-20
	Planning Comm. Min 5-5-20
	YMCA BOD Min 4-27-20
	YMCA BOD Min 3-20-20
	CVB BOD Min 1-29-20

	Administration Memo 
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2

	Public Works Memo (GREEN)
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3
	Exhibit 4
	Exhibit 5

	Engineering Memo (BLUE)
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3
	Exhibit 4

	Community Dev. Memo (GRAY)
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 2
	Exhibit 3
	Exhibit 4

	Bills Payable



